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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

% in crores

Particulars 2014-15* 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Operating results
Revenue from operations # 2,386 2,601 2,947 3,420 3,990 3,125 3,065 4173 4,922 4,906
Total revenue # 2,409 2,635 2,960 3,449 4,020 3,145 3,082 4,198 4,951 4,953
EBITDA 357 419 553 650 769 568 599 752 797 825
Interest 82 61 36 32 39 44 14 13 25 18
EBDT 275 358 517 618 730 524 585 739 773 807
Depreciation 88 92 90 98 110 137 147 153 157 168
EBIT 269 327 463 552 659 432 452 599 640 657
Profit before tax 177 221 425 520 620 376 438 556 615 639
Tax 42 7 109 152 184 62 110 149 152 159
Profit after tax 135 214 316 368 436 314 ¢ 328 407 464 480
Financial status
Net fixed assets 810 865 967 1,066 1,431 1,658 1,669 1,658 1,701 1,868
Investments 117 309 320 359 350 310 337 323 345 376
Net current assets 769 490 720 846 1,072 848 898 1,144 1,424 1,545
Share capital 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21
Reserves and surplus 838 1,017 1,292 1,568 1,887 1,996 2,312 2,524 2,886 3,258
Net worth 859 1,038 1,313 1,589 1,908 2,017 2,333 2,545 2,907 3,279
Loan funds 751 572 626 562 801 693 456 461 436 376
Deferred tax liability 86 54 68 120 144 107 115 118 127 135
Total capital employed 1,696 1,664 2,007 2,271 2,853 2,830 2,914 3,130 3,478 3,797
Performance parameters - %
Esgglﬁgg revenue from 150 161 188 194 193 182 195 180 162 168
EBIT to revenue from operations 1.3 12.6 15.7 16.3 16.5 13.8 14.7 14.4 13.0 13.4
PBT to revenue from operations 7.4 8.5 14.4 156.3 15.5 12.0 14.3 13.3 12.5 13.0
FF?C')TC/E?’”"QG capital employed 16.7 195 25.2 25.8 25.7 15.2 15.7 19.8 19.4 18.1
PAT / average net worth 16.6 22.6 26.9 254 24.9 16.0 15.1 16.7 17.0 15.5
EPS -3 6.44 10.18 15.01 17.49 20.76 14.95 15.62 19.39 22.07 22.83
Dividend per share - ¥** 1.75 2.15 4.50 4.60 5.10 4.15 4.70 6.45 8.63 6.85
Dividend payout ratio 27.17 21.11 29.92 26.26 24.57 27.77 30.09 33.26 39.10 30.00
Book value per share -3 40.88 49.40 62.50 75.67 90.83 95.99 111.04 121.13 134.60 151.69
Market value per share - ¥ 174.50 170.80  386.00 551.30 566.45 29250  800.45  899.80  978.00 1,093.60

* Financials for these years are as per Accounting Standards

** Represents dividend declared for the relevant financial year

# Revenue from operations and Total Revenue are net of excise duty

” Includes deferred tax favourable impact of ¥ 31.60 Crores
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Notice of the 61 Annual General Meeting to the Members

NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixty First Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on
Friday, August 9, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. IST (Indian Standard Time) through Video Conference (‘VC’)/Other Audio Visual
Means (‘OAVM’) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following items of business, as Ordinary Resolutions:

1.

To adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 along with the Report of the Board of
Directors and Auditor’s thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited financial statement including the consolidated financial statement for the year ended
March 31, 2024 together with the Auditor’s Report thereon and the Report of the Board of Directors for the financial
year ended on that date be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

To appoint Ms Arathi Krishna (DIN: 00517456), who retires by rotation, as a Director of the Company and being eligible
offers herself for re-appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT Ms Arathi Krishna (DIN: 00517456), who retires by rotation and being eligible for
re-appointment is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following item of business, as an Ordinary Resolution:

3.

To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of ¥ 5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakhs Only), in addition to reimbursement
of travel and out-of-pocket expenses, payable to Sri P Raju lyer, Practising Cost Accountant, (Membership No. 6987)
who was appointed as Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025, as recommended
by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby ratified.”

By Order of the Board

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager — Finance & Company Secretary

Chennai
May 22, 2024




STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Agenda No 3
Ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending March 31, 2025

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the Company is required to appoint a Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the
financial year ending March 31, 2025.

Sri P Raju lyer, FICWA, ACS, MIMA, MBA (UK), M Phil, Practising Cost Accountant (Membership No. 6987) was appointed
as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial years ended March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2024 for conducting the
Cost Audit as mandated by the Act. Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has considered
and approved the re-appointment of Sri P Raju lyer, Practising Cost Accountant, as the Cost Auditor for the financial year
ending March 31, 2025 at a remuneration of ¥ 5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakhs Only) in addition to reimbursement of travel
and out-of-pocket expenses.

The proposal for remuneration as set out in the Notice is placed for consideration and ratification of the shareholders by
way of an Ordinary Resolution.

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relative is concerned or interested in this item of business.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in the notice (Agenda No 3) for approval by the shareholders.

By Order of the Board

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager — Finance & Company Secretary

Chennai
May 22, 2024
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AS REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED UNDER (SS-2) SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON
GENERAL MEETINGS/ SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

AGENDA NO 2

Name Ms Arathi Krishna
Age 56 years
Director Identification Number 00517456

Qualification Master of Arts (MA) in Economics from the Stella Maris
College; Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the
University of Michigan Business School, USA.

Experience A visionary and results-driven business leader, Ms Arathi

Krishna has over three decades of experience in steering
the Company to success. Ms Arathi holds a Master of Arts
(MA) in Economics from Stella Maris College and a Master
of Business Administration (MBA) from the University of
Michigan Business School, USA. Post her MBA and her
on-the-job training in the United States, she initiated her
professional journey as a Management Trainee at Sundram
Fasteners Limited in 1990. Demonstrating swift growth, she
ascended through the corporate ranks from Manager to
General Manager by 1998.

Assuming the position of Managing Director in 2006, reporting
to the Chairman & Managing Director, she served as Executive
Director from 2006 to 2011 and as Joint Managing Director
from 2011 to 2018. On April 20, 2018, Ms. Arathi officially took
on the role of Managing Director for the Company.

Ms. Arathi’s stellar career spans diverse roles, with a strong
emphasis on cultivating a collaborative and inclusive culture
optimizing operations, fostering innovation, and driving
profitability. As a forward-thinking and decisive executive, she
thrives in dynamic environments, navigating challenges with
resilience. Committed to driving sustainable growth, she brings
a unique blend of strategic insight and operational expertise.

She is a Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel as defined
under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Date of first appointment on the Board

May 3, 2006

Shareholding in the Company

47,040 Equity Shares of % 1/- each

Current remuneration (last drawn remuneration)

¥ 757.22 lakhs per annum.

The Managing Director does not draw sitting fee for attending
the meetings of the Board and its Committee.

Relationship with other Directors, Manager and other Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company

Daughter of Sri Suresh Krishna, Chairman and Non-Executive
Director and sister of Ms Arundathi Krishna, Joint Managing
Director and Ms Preethi Krishna, Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director

Number of meetings of the Board attended during the year

1 (One) meeting attended during the financial year 2024-2025
out of 1 (One) meeting held/ conducted.

Other Directorships, Memberships / Chairmanship of
Committees of other Boards

Committee

Name of the Company Membership

Directorship

Nil

Nature of expertise in specific functional area

General Management / Marketing / Sales / Project
Management / Risk Management / Human Resources




NOTES:

1.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular dated September 25, 2023 read with circulars dated April 8,
2020, April 13,2020, May 5, 2020, June 15, 2020, September 28, 2020, January 13, 2021, June 23, 2021, December 14,
2021, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company
is being held through VC / OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly,
the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out the material facts in respect of special
business in Agenda No 3 of the Notice is annexed hereto.

Members desiring any information as regards financial statement are requested to write to the Company on
or before August 2, 2024 (Friday) through e-mail at investorshelpdesk@sfl.co.in. The same will be replied by the
management suitably.

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the first holder who tenders a vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes
of the other joint holders.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its circular dated November 3, 2021 (subsequently amended by
circulars dated December 14, 2021, March 16, 2023, May 17, 2023, September 26, 2023 and November 17, 2023)
has mandated all holders of physical securities to furnish the Permanent Account Number (PAN), Nomination details,
contact details including postal address with Postal Index Number (PIN), mobile number, e-mail address, bank account
details and specimen signature to the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company in Forms
ISR-1, ISR-2, SH-13 etc.

As per the above circulars, the RTA has obtained documents / is in the process of obtaining the details of PAN, KYC
details and nomination (wherever, the same is not available in the folio), while processing any service requests or
complaint from the holder(s) / claimant(s). The security holders shall be eligible to lodge any grievance or avail service
request and receive dividend from the Company only after furnishing the above said complete documents.

In case of non-updation of PAN or Choice of Nomination or Contact Details or Mobile Number or Bank Account Details
or specimen signature in respect of physical folios, dividend shall be paid only through electronic mode with effect from
April 1, 2024 upon furnishing all the aforesaid details in entirety.

If a security holder updates the PAN, Choice of Nomination, Contact Details including Mobile Number, Bank Account
Details and Specimen Signature after April 1, 2024, then the security holder would receive all the dividends declared
during that period (from April 1, 2024 till date of updation) pertaining to the securities held after the said updation
automatically.

In this regard, the members who have not yet submitted the above-mentioned documents are requested to furnish
the above-mentioned details in Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, SH-13 etc., The forms are available on the Company’s website
www.sundram.com. Alternatively, the members are urged to dematerialize all the shares held by them.

Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses and mobile numbers are requested to update the said
details in the records of the relevant depositories (National Securities Depository Limited / Central Depository Services
(India) Limited) through their depository participants (Or) may contact the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent,
Sri S Sriram, General Manager, Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited, Kences Towers, 2™ Floor,
No 1, Ramakrishna Street, North Usman Road, T Nagar, Chennai — 600 017, Telephone: 91-44-28140801-803,
E-mail: einward @integratedindia.in for receiving any documents / communication from the Company.

Members whose shareholding is in electronic mode are requested to notify change in address, if any, and update bank
account details to their respective depository participant(s).
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9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

Details of dividend declared by the Company from financial year 2016-2017 onwards are given below:

Financial Year Pay-out Date of Declaration Dsa;s:r: ;::-rsﬂ;g:g;f Due datt;e Ifg;'t:ransfer
2016-2017 Final 24-08-2017 27-09-2024 28-10-2024
2017-2018 15t Interim 02-11-2017 09-12-2024 08-01-2025
2017-2018 2" |nterim 09-05-2018 15-06-2025 15-07-2025
2018-2019 18t Interim 29-10-2018 05-12-2025 04-01-2026
2018-2019 2" |nterim 09-05-2019 15-06-2026 15-07-2026
2019-2020 15t Interim 04-11-2019 11-12-2026 10-01-2027
2019-2020 2" |nterim 26-02-2020 03-04-2027 03-05-2027
2020-2021 18t Interim 04-11-2020 11-12-2027 10-01-2028
2020-2021 2" |nterim 06-05-2021 12-06-2028 12-07-2028
2021-2022 Interim 10-02-2022 19-03-2029 18-04-2029
2022-2023 1t Interim 08-11-2022 15-12-2029 14-01-2030
2022-2023 2" Interim 04-05-2023 10-06-2030 10-07-2030
2023-2024 1t Interim 03-11-2023 08-12-2030 08-01-2031
2023-2024 2" Interim 22-05-2024 28-05-2031 27-06-2031

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants / demand drafts in respect of the above period are requested
to make their claim(s) by surrendering the uncashed warrants / demand drafts immediately to the Company.

Pursuant to the notification of Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Rules, 2016 by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA), relating to transfer of shares in respect of which dividend has not been claimed by the shareholders for
seven consecutive years or more to IEPF Authority, the Company has duly transferred 80,012 equity shares during the
financial year 2023-2024 to the IEPF Authority.

Members may note that pursuant to the SEBI circular dated October 7, 2023 the Notice of AGM and the Annual Report
for the financial year 2023-2024 will be available on the Company’s website www.sundram.com, websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.
com respectively, and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. For any communication in this regard,
members may send their request to investorshelpdesk @sfl.co.in / einward @integratedindia.in.

The Company shall send a physical copy of the Annual Report to those Members who request the same at
investorshelpdesk @sfl.co.in / einward @integratedindia.in by mentioning their correct Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA circulars and SEBI Circular dated October 7, 2023, the Notice of the AGM along
with the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-2024 inter-alia indicating the process and manner of remote e-voting /
e-voting during the meeting is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/ Depositories.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM.
All documents referred to in the notice will be available for electronic inspection. Members seeking to inspect such
documents electronically can send an e-mail to investorshelpdesk@sfl.co.in.

Corporate members are requested to provide a duly certified copy of the board resolution / power of attorney on or
before August 2, 2024 (Friday) authorizing their representatives for the purpose of voting through remote e-voting or
to participate and vote in the meeting through VC / OAVM.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

The Members can join the AGM through VC/OAVM either 15 minutes prior to the commencement of the meeting (Or)
within 15 minutes from the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through video conference will be made available for 1,000




members on first-come first-serve basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding more than 2%
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors who
are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first-come first-serve basis.

17. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

18. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the video recordings of the AGM will be made available on the website
of the Company, www.sundram.com.

Voting through electronic means
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Company is providing
facility of remote e-voting / e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”). For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using
remote e-voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the Annual General Meeting will be provided by NSDL.

The instructions for members to cast their votes through remote e-voting are given hereunder:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, August 6, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Thursday, August 8,
2024 at 5:00 P.M. (IST) The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members,
whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. August
2, 2024 (Friday) may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being August 2, 2024 (Friday).

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email id in their
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders | 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.

holding securities in demat https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the

mode with NSDL. e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or log in to
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp
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Type of shareholders Login Method

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility
by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

@ AppStore B Google Play

Individual Shareholders | 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through their existing
holding securities in demat user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
mode with CDSL. any further authentication. The users to login Easi/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and
then use your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there are also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able
to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
(holding securities in demat | Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in,
mode) login through their | you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option and you will be redirected
depository participants. to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see
e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note : Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot User ID and Forgot
Password option available at above mentioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with NSDL | sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 .

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with CDSL | sending a request at helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
1800 22 55 33.

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/

Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown

on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then
your user ID is IN30Q***12******,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user
ID is 12**************

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the
Form. Company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then

user ID is 101456001 ***

Your User ID is:

5. Password details for shareholders other than individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If youremail ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated
to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system
of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join the Annual General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join the Annual General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your
vote during the Annual General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed
under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your

. In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to skco.cs@gmail.com /
sriram.krishnamurthy @rediffmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com, Institutional shareholders (i.e.
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter
etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or
send a request to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com.
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and
password and registration of email ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) by email to investorshelpdesk@sfl.co.in / einward @integratedindia.in

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID),
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investorshelpdesk@sfl.co.in/ einward @integratedindia.in.
If you are an individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

The instructions for members for e-Voting on the day of the AGM are as under:-

1.
2.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members / shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible
to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day
of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system.
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful
login, you can see link of “WC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested
to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/
Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the
User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

System requirements: Further, the members may ensure availability of a Camera to facilitate interface and use Internet
Connection with good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. Please note that participants connecting
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due
to Fluctuation in their respective network and calls being received. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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Shareholders who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio
number, PAN, mobile number at investorshelpdesk@sfl.co.in from July 30, 2024 (9:00 a.m. IST) to August 2, 2024
(5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending
on the availability of time for the AGM.

Other information

vi.

The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
company as on the cut-off date, August 2, 2024 (Friday). Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder,
the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Any person who acquires the shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after dispatch
of the notice of AGM and the Annual Report through electronic mode and holding shares as of the cut-off date
August 2, 2024 (Friday) may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to evoting@nsdl.com /
einward @integratedindia.in.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by
the depositories as on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or e-voting on the day of
AGM.

The Company has appointed Sri K Sriram, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 2215) as Scrutiniser to scrutinize
the e-voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting on the date of AGM first count the e-votes cast during
the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in
the employment of the Company. The Scrutiniser shall within two working days of conclusion of the meeting submit his
report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman / Managing Director / Joint Managing Director /
Chief Financial Officer / Senior Manager — Finance & Company Secretary of the Company.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the meeting,
i.e., August 9, 2024. The results along with the Scrutiniser’'s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company
http://sundram.com/investors.php and on the notice board of the Company at its registered office immediately after the
declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be communicated
to the Stock Exchanges, BSE Limited/National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

By Order of the Board

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager — Finance & Company Secretary

Chennai
May 22, 2024
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present the Sixty First Annual Report together with the audited financial statement for the year

ended March 31, 2024.

Zin Crores

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE)
2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Revenue from Operations 4,905.65 4,921.61
Other Income 47.33 29.83
Total Revenue 4,952.98 4,951.44
Total Expenditure 4,127.61 4,154.27
Gross Profit before interest, depreciation and taxes 825.37 797.18
Less: Interest 17.31 18.67
Exchange Losses / (Gains) 0.68 5.96
Depreciation 168.31 157.25
Profit before Tax 639.07 615.30
Less: Provision for tax 159.36 151.56
Profit after Tax 479.71 463.74
Add: Balance brought forward 377.44 205.88
Balance available for appropriation 857.15 669.62

Appropriations

Interim / Final Dividends 120.61 117.12
Transfer to Reserves 200.00 175.00
Transfer from other comprehensive income to reserves 1.33 0.06
Balance carried forward 535.21 377.44
857.15 669.62

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has transferred ¥ 200.00 Crores to
Reserves.

DIVIDEND

The Board had earlier during the year, declared an
interim dividend of ¥ 2.68/- per share (268%) for the
financial year 2023-2024 absorbing a sum of ¥ 56.31
Crores and the same was paid to the shareholders on
December 1, 2023. The Directors have decided to pay
a second interim dividend of ¥ 4.17 per share (417%),
which, together with the first interim dividend, declared
and paid earlier, would amount to a total dividend of
¥ 6.85 per share (685%) for the financial year 2023-2024.

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board of
Directors.

The Dividend Distribution Policy, formulated in accordance
with Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is available
on the Company’s website at:

http://sundram.com/pdf/corporate/DividendDistributionPolicy02022017.pdf

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In addition to the financial statement, the audited Consolidated
Financial Statement of the Company and all of the subsidiaries
prepared in the same form and manner as that of its own
and in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), form part of the Annual Report.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has placed separate audited
financial statement in respect of each of its subsidiary on its
website, www.sundram.com. The Company shall provide a
copy of audited financial statement, as the case may be, as
prepared in respect of each of its subsidiary, upon request
by any of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate report on Corporate Governance together
with a certificate from the Company’s auditors confirming
the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
is enclosed to this report. Management Discussion and
Analysis detailing the state of the Company’s affairs is
also enclosed to this report (Please refer to Page Nos.
75 to 89).

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year under review, the Company has launched its
maiden Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) report,
which is hosted on the Company’s website at https://www.
sundram.com/esgreport.php

The Company prioritizes responsible operations and aligns
with the National Guidelines on Responsible Business
Conduct Principles and United Nation Sustainable
Development Goals. The Company has implemented
several initiatives to minimize its ecological footprint and
foster a sustainable future. On the social front, the Company
is committed to create a positive impact on society and
fostering sustainable development in the communities in
which it operates. To ensure good governance practices,
the Company has implemented a robust monitoring system
for compliance.

In pursuit of the ESG journey, the Company has identified
the following goals:-

S. No Themes Focus Areas Goals Measures
1 Energy and Greenhouse | Carbon Neutral operations by 2045 | Increase the share of renewable
Gas (GHG) Management energy to 70% by 2030
2 Waste Management Zero Waste to landfill by 2040 Process optimization to reduce
Environment generation of sludge
3 Water Management Water neutral operations by 2040 Reduction of 20% freshwater
consumption by 2030
4 Human rights and labour | To develop, respect and sustain the | 100% coverage of employees on
practices human rights of every stakeholder | Human Rights training by 2025
along the value chain
5 Employee wellbeing Create a healthy workplace by | Achieve improvements by 2030 on
implementing wellbeing programs the Company’s wellbeing index from
Social the baseline year of 2025
6 Occupational health and | Promote ‘zero incident work culture’ | Achieving 1ISO 45001 certification
safety across all locations by 2025
7 Training and development | Promote training programs for skillset | Sustain 100% training across all
enhancements workforce by 2030
8 Supply Chain Management | Magnify SFL’s supply chain | Coverage of the Company’s supply
management by adding environmental | chain program by extending training
and societal goals to 100% of critical suppliers by 2030
Governance
9 Data Security Protecting critical information from | Achieving ISO 27001 Certification
cyber risks by 2025

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the
year ended March 31, 2024 is enclosed to this report (Please
refer to Page Nos. 42 to 73).

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The existing composition of the Company’s Board is fully in
conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulations 17 and 17A of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
with regard to independent directors, women directors and
maximum number of directorships in listed entities.
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Ms Arathi Krishna, Managing Director (DIN: 00517456) of the
Company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM), and being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment. Necessary resolution for her re-appointment
is being placed for approval of the members at the AGM.
The Board recommends her re-appointment as a Director
of the Company. A brief resume of Ms Arathi Krishna and
other relevant information have been furnished in the notice
convening the AGM.

Dr. Nirmala Lakshman, Director (DIN: 00141632) has been
re-appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director for
the second term, from September 20, 2023 to September
19, 2028.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (7)
OF SECTION 149 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (ACT)

All the independent directors have submitted a declaration
pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013
stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Act.

ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of the requirement of Section 92(3) read with Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the draft annual return
of the Company as on March 31, 2024 is available on the
Company’s website, www.sundram.com.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were
held. The details of the meetings and the attendance are
furnished in the Annual Report disclosures under Regulation
34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which is
attached to this Report (Please refer to Page No. 76).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed and there were
no material departures.

b) they had selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that have been made are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2024.

c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis.

e) they had laid down the internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD, IF ANY, REPORTED
BY THE AUDITORS

M/s.B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, the
Statutory Auditors of the Company have stated that during
the course of their audit, there was no fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees noticed or
reported in Independent Auditors’ Report which forms part
of this Report. Hence, there was no requirement to report
the same to the Audit Committee or Board of Directors of
the Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Salient features of the Policy:

The policy is to ensure that the remuneration is in line with
best comparable market practices, as well as competitive vis-
a-vis that of comparable companies both in India and other
international markets, which will have a motivating effect to
act as a driving force to ensure long term availability of talent
and also retention of the best talents. The Policy will have
due regard to the situation of the specific regions in which
the Company operates.

A brief description about the Company’s Nomination
and Remuneration Policy on directors’ appointment and
remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of a Director and other
related matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 are provided in the Annual Report Disclosures
under Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(Please refer to Page No. 78).

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on the
Company’s website at:-

https://sundram.com/pdf/corporate/NominationandRemunerationPolicy.pdf

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees
given and securities provided along with the purpose for
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which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be
utilised by the recipient is enclosed vide Annexure - I.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES (REFERRED TO IN SUB-
SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013)

All transactions with related parties were on arm’s length
basis and in the ordinary course of business. There was no
material related party contract during the year. Form AOC-2
as required under Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies Act,
2013 is enclosed vide Annexure - Il to this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments, affecting
the financial position of the Company, which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the
report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuUTGO

Information with respect to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is enclosed vide
Annexure - Ill.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In compliance with Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
company has constituted a Risk Management Committee.

Brief description of terms of reference of the Commiittee is
as follows:-

i. To review and approve the risk management policy of
the Company and to make amendments thereto from
time to time.

ii. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems.

iii. To periodically review the risk management policy,
by considering the changing industry dynamics and
evolving complexity.

iv. To identify methodology, processes and systems to
monitor and evaluate risk.

v. Toidentify internal and external risks in particular including
financial, operational, sectoral, department-wise risk,
business sustainability particularly, Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) related risks, information,

cyber security risks. Cyber security risks cover
ransomware, phishing, data leakage, hacking, insider
threat etc.

The Company manages its risks through continuous
review of business parameters on a regular basis by the
management. Insurable risks are analysed and insurance
policies are taken to protect the company’s interests. The
Audit Committee is also informed periodically of the risks
and concerns. Corrective actions and mitigation measures
are taken as and when needed.

During the year, two meetings of the Risk Management
Committee were held. The details of the meetings are
furnished in the Annual Report disclosures under Regulation
34 and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which forms
part of this Report (Please refer to Page No. 80).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY
AND IMPLEMENTATION

The salient features of the Policy are to:

i. actively engage and extend support to the communities
in which it operates and thus build a better, sustainable
way of life by supporting the weaker sections of the
society and thus contribute to the human development;

ii. drive measures and to provide solutions that will balance
economic, social and environmental issues; and

iii. work together with our employees with a commitment
for adhering to responsible business practices in terms
of quality management, environmental sustainability and
support to the community.

The Company has undertaken activities as per the CSR
Policy and the Annual report on CSR activities for the
Financial Year 2023-2024 is enclosed vide Annexure — IV
forming part of this report.

The CSR Policy, including the annual action plan is available
on the Company’s website at
www.sundram.com/investors.php

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has carried out
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working
of its Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has
been carried out has been explained in the Annual Report
disclosures under Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 which forms part of this report (Please
refer to Page No. 78).
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PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH
OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE

The Company has four Domestic Subsidiaries and five
Overseas Subsidiaries. The financial performance of the
subsidiaries during the financial year 2023-2024 is given
hereunder: -

Sundram Fasteners (Zhejiang) Limited, China (SFZL, China),
Cramlington Precision Forge Limited, United Kingdom
(CPFL, UK) and TVS Next Inc., USA are step-down overseas
subsidiaries of the Company. The principal activity of SFZL,
China is manufacture of fasteners and bearing housing and
that of CPFL, UK is manufacture of precision forgings.

The total revenue from SFZL, China during the year under
review was at ¥ 368.61 Crores as against ¥ 335.75 Crores
in the previous year. The net profit was at ¥ 19.95 Crores
as against net profit of ¥ 4.30 Crores in the previous year.

The total revenue from CPFL, UK during the year under
review was at ¥ 183.33 Crores as against ¥ 176.55 Crores
in the previous year. The net profit was at ¥ 14.71 Crores
as against net profit at ¥ 3.69 Crores in the previous year.

The total revenue from TVS Next Inc., USA, a step-down
overseas subsidiary during the year under review was at
¥ 62.00 Crores as against ¥ 64.18 Crores in the previous
year. The net profit was at ¥ 0.81 Crores as against net profit
of ¥ 1.35 Crores in the previous year.

TVS Upasana Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary and
is engaged in the manufacture of spokes and nipples,
automobile kits, tools, dowel pins, small screws, cold
extruded parts and other parts catering to automotive
industry. The total revenue from TVS Upasana Limited during
the year under review was at ¥ 178.82 Crores as against
% 181.39 Crores in the previous year. The net profit was at
¥ 7.92 Crores as against ¥ 12.05 Crores in the previous year.

The total revenue from Sundram Non-Conventional Energy
Systems Limited, a subsidiary during the year under review
was at ¥ 3.28 Crores as against ¥ 3.04 Crores in the previous
year. The net profit was at % 2.73 Crores as against net profit
of ¥ 3.59 Crores in the previous year.

The total revenue from Sundram Fasteners Investments
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary during the year under
review was at ¥ 0.26 Crores as against % 0.24 Crores in the
previous year. The net profit was at ¥ 0.24 Crores as against
net profit of ¥ 0.27 Crores in the previous year.

TVS Next Limited (TVSN), a subsidiary, is engaged in
the information technology business providing Enterprise
Solutions for core industries like Manufacturing, Automotive
and Distribution and focuses on off-shore and outsourcing
operations for clients in India and the U.S.A. The total
revenue from TVSN during the year under review was at
% 75.52 Crores as against ¥ 82.86 Crores in the previous
year. The net profit was at % 7.45 Crores as against net profit
of ¥ 10.92 Crores in the previous year.

The total revenue from Sundram International Inc., USA, a
wholly-owned subsidiary during the year under review was
at ¥ Nil as against % Nil Crores in the previous year. The net
profit / (loss) was at % Nil as against net profit / (loss) of % Nil
in the previous year.

Sundram International Limited, United Kingdom, a
wholly-owned overseas subsidiary, was established as
an intermediate holding company that holds investments
in two operating subsidiaries viz., in China and the
United Kingdom. The total revenue from Sundram
International Limited during the year under review was at
% 2.79 Crores as against ¥ 0.21 Crores in the previous year.
The net profit/ (loss) was at ¥ 2.29 Crores as against net
profit/ (loss) of ¥ (27.20) Crores in the previous year.

The total revenue from all the subsidiaries of the Company
in aggregate during the year under review was at
% 875.06 Crores resulting in an overall contribution of 15.30%
of the consolidated revenue as against ¥ 845.12 Crores
which resulted in an overall contribution of 14.81% of the
consolidated revenue in the previous year.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient
features of the financial statement of the Company’s
subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures in detail in Form
AOC-1 is enclosed to the financial statement of the Company
in Page No. 254.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the
Company during the financial year.

NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR
CEASED TO BE COMPANY’S SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE
YEAR

During the year under review, two of the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, viz. Sunfast TVS Limited and
TVS Engineering Limited were merged with the Company
pursuant to the approval of the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Chennai bench. The appointed date for the
purpose was April 1, 2023. Except the foregoing, no other
Company has either become or ceased to be Company’s
joint venture or associate company during the financial year
2023-24.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits,
within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
No amount on account of principal or interest on deposits
from public was outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.
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REGULATORY / COURT ORDERS

No significant and material orders were passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its future operations.

PROCEEDINGS PENDING, IF ANY, UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

The Company has neitherfiled an application during the year
under review nor are any proceedings pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as at March 31, 2024.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT
OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

No such event has occurred during the year under review.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OF THE COMPANY

The Company maintains all its financial records in Systems,
Applications and Products (SAP) System and all financial
transaction flow and approvals are routed through SAP.
The Company has in-house internal audit team to monitor
the effectiveness of internal financial controls, ensuring
adequacy with respect to financial statement and verify
whether the financial transaction flow in the organisation is
being done based on the approved policies of the Company.
The internal auditor presents the internal audit report and the
management comments on the internal audit observations
every quarter to the Audit Committee. The internal control
mechanisms are in place for safeguarding of assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED
DISCLOSURES

The statement in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is enclosed vide
Annexure V forming part of this report.

Pursuant to Section 136 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the report of the Board of Directors is being sent to the
shareholders of the Company excluding the statement
prescribed under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The
statement is available for inspection by the shareholders at
the Registered Office of the Company during business hours.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 20183,
M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai,

(Registration No. 101248 W / W- 100022 with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India), were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the Fifty Ninth Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Company for the second term of five
consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of the
Fifty Ninth AGM (i.e., June 29, 2022). M/s. BSR & Co. LLP
holds Peer Review Certificate No 0014196 dated May 18,
2022 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had appointed
M/s S Krishnamurthy & Co., Company Secretaries, Chennai
as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial
year 2023-2024. Secretarial Audit Report issued by
Sri K Sriram, Practising Company Secretary (CP No.2215),
Partner, M/s. S Krishnamurthy & Co., Company Secretaries,
Chennaiin Form MR-3 is enclosed vide Annexure VI forming
part of this report and does not contain any qualification.
The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. S Krishnamurthy
& Co., Company Secretaries, Chennai as the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025.
Necessary consent has been received from them to act as
Secretarial Auditors. M/s. S. Krishnamurthy & Co, Company
Secretaries holds Peer Review Certificate No. 739/2020
dated May 28, 2020, issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, which is valid for a period of five years
from the date of issue.

COST AUDITOR

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, the Board of Directors has appointed Sri P Raju
lyer, Practising Cost Accountant (Membership No.6987) as
Cost Auditor for the financial year 2024-2025. The Audit
Committee recommended his appointment and remuneration
subject to the compliance of all the requirements as stipulated
under the Act and circulars issued thereunder. As specified
by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to maintain
cost records and accordingly, such accounts and records
are made and maintained.

BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

There are no qualifications, adverse remarks or reservations
made by Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors in their
report, which were required to be addressed by the Board
in its report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has adopted the Anti-Sexual Harassment
Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment
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of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. In compliance with the provisions
under Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013, Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) of the Company
has been constituted to redress complaints regarding sexual
harassment. No complaint was received during the calendar
year 2023.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has issued
Secretarial Standards (Meetings of the Board and General
Meetings) on various aspects of corporate law and practices
amended in line with the recent changes in the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations). The Company
has complied with each one of them.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY (VIGIL MECHANISM)

Pursuant to Sections 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company
has a Vigil Mechanism through a Whistle Blower Policy. The
details about the whistle blower policy are provided in the
Annual Report Disclosures under Regulation 34 read with
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Please refer to Page
No. 86).

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations continued to remain congenial during the
current year. The Directors thank the employees for their
contribution to the progress of the Company during the year
under review.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Directors wish to thank the Chinese Authorities, Officers
of Haiyan County, Jiaxin City, Zhejiang province, Chinese
tax and other administrative authorities for the support
extended to Sundram Fasteners (Zhejiang) Limited, a step-
down subsidiary. The Directors wish to thank One North
East, the Regional Development Authority for Cramlington,
United Kingdom for the continued support extended to the
step-down Subsidiary. The Directors also wish to thank the
Company’s bankers, State Electricity Boards in Tamil Nadu,
Puducherry, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh and Uttarakhand,
customers and vendors, employees for all the assistance
rendered by them from time to time.

On behalf of the Board

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
DIN: 00046919

May 22, 2024
Chennai
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Annexure - |

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
financial year ended March 31, 2024

T in crores
Amount of Purpose for which the loan /
Name of the Body Corporate Nature of Nature of transaction security / acquisition /
v P relationship transaction during the guarantee utilized by the
year recipient
First Energy 4 Private Limited NA Acquisition 4.74
- - . . Investment in Equity shares for
First Energy 5 Private Limited NA Acquisition 7.77 purchase of power under group
captive basis.
First Energy 6 Private Limited NA Acquisition 1.75
Sundaram Asset Management NA Investments in 1,854.00 Treasury Investments*
Co. Limited, Chennai, India:- Mutual Funds
Sundaram Overnight Direct
Growth Fund Scheme
Cramlington Precision Forge Step-down Corporate 31.51 With respect to renewal of working
Limited, United Kingdom Overseas Guarantee** capital facility availed from HSBC
Subsidiary Bank Plc

* It has been ensured that the outstanding investments of temporary surplus funds from time to time in the units of Mutual
Fund has not exceeded the maximum limit of ¥ 100 Crores fixed by the Board.

**The corporate guarantee is pending for regulatory approvals and will be effective after receipt of the regulatory approvals.

May 22, 2024
Chennai

On behalf of the Board

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
DIN: 00046919

Form No. AOC-2

Annexure - Il

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
All contracts / arrangements / transactions with related parties were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of

business.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

There was no material related party contract or arrangements or transaction during the year.

May 22, 2024
Chennai

On behalf of the Board

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
DIN: 00046919
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Annexure - i

The conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to the provisions
of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Conservation of Electrical Power:

The company has taken specific initiatives towards conservation of energy and made concerted efforts in using Renewable
energy sources via Group Captive and onsite solar mode to reduce the Scope 2 emissions.

The total renewable energy consumption aggregates to 1,311.02 lakh units during the financial year 2023-2024 which
represents 47.25% of total power consumption (1,080.35 lakh units during financial year 2022-2023 representing 39.91%
of total power consumption). The use of Renewable energy has resulted in reduction of emission of GHG Gases equivalent
to 1,07,504 tCO2e.

a. The Company also focused on energy savings at its manufacturing units through implementation of energy conservation
initiatives / projects. The steps taken on conservation of energy are as follows:-

Contribution of Onsite Solar energy in the Renewable energy has been doubled from 40.85 Lakh kWh units to 80.18
Lakh kWh units during the financial year 2023-2024.

Installation of additional coil to the existing heating source for eliminating electrical immersion heaters and providing
alternative source of energy for SY-5 & SY-4 Dephos tank.

Installation of energy efficient pumps (IE5) for RM cell raw water circulation pump.

iv. Power consumption of ADI furnace has been reduced by introduction of Thryistor control system.
v. Optimization of air conditioner running hours by providing sub-zero controller.
vi. Introduction of separate air receiver for heat treatment to reduce the compressor operating hours.
vii. Interlinking of hydraulic oil chiller with the hobbing machine control.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) | The efforts made towards technology | i. Introduction of High Volume Low Speed (HVLS) fan in shop floor.

absorption ii. In house development of Sliding sleeve with reverse taper and
special cold sizing tool.
iii.Development of part with curvic coupling machining by VMC
process.
iv.Development of catch bracket through forging process from
casting route.

(ii) | The benefits like product improvement, cost | The efforts made towards technology absorption has led to:-
reduc.tlor), ;?roduct development or import i. Developed high compressible water atomized pre-alloyed powder
substitution; ; -

for high performance application (PM Parts).
ii. Developed new mixes for P/M part automotive manufacturers as
per their requirement.
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(iii)

Imported Technology

a) Details of technology imported

b) The year of import

c) Whether the technology has been fully
absorbed

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and

Not Applicable

(iv)

Expenditure on Research and Development

Capital Expenditure :
Revenue Expenditure :

Total Research & Development Expenditure:

(Net of revenue)

T Nil
% 11.40 crores

¥ 11.40 crores

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The total foreign exchange earned and used are as under:
Foreign exchange earned ( in crores) ¥1,336.09
Foreign exchange used (R in crores) 3 427.34

The Company continues to be a net foreign exchange earner.

May 22,
Chennai

2024

On behalf of the Board

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
DIN: 00046919
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Annexure - IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL REPSONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

Brief Outline of the Company’s CSR Policy

The Company has framed the CSR Policy pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021.

Our social responsibility initiatives

The Company is dedicated to upholding social responsibility alongside profitable growth and stakeholder satisfaction.
The core values prioritize community well-being and sustainable development. Through the corporate social responsibility
(CSR) policy, the Company continually seeks to create opportunities for the communities it serves, collaborating with
specialized organizations for long-term positive impacts.

Empowering Through Education
Sundram Matriculation Higher Secondary School

Sundram Matriculation Higher Secondary School, established in 1993 and situated in Aviyur Village, Virudhunagar
District is committed to deliver quality education to children residing in eight surrounding villages near the Company’s
Krishnapuram plant. Operated under the auspices of the Krishna Educational Society, the Company’s CSR arm, the
school fosters modern learning environments. The Company bears the entire cost of running the school and it ensures
equal educational opportunities. Out of 467 total students, 223 are female students.

Supporting Primary and Higher Education

In addition to utilizing its own resources, the Company has partnered with special organizations to bolster its support
for primary and higher education initiatives. This includes aiding government schools near its plants in Rudrapur,
Kambikudi, and Aviyur by providing essential infrastructure such as benches, desks, and educational aids. Furthermore,
the Company has contributed to the construction of a fully equipped high school and Pre-University, catering to students
from economically disadvantaged backgrounds, predominantly from agricultural families.

The Company extends support to the Clarke School for the Deaf, an institution dedicated to educating and rehabilitating
hearing-impaired and differently abled children. Through institutions like the Sugun Thomas Foundation, the Company
assists deserving students in pursuing undergraduate education, thus removing financial barriers hindering their academic
pursuits.

In collaboration with Banyan Academy for Leadership in Mental Health (BALM), the Company established the Sundram
Fasteners Centre for Social Action and Research, aimed at addressing quality gaps in human resources and mental
health services for marginalized communities. Through education and training, the center aims to address complex
challenges faced by individuals with mental health issues, promoting collaborative care models grounded in social
justice principles. By offering immersive educational programs, the center has empowered over 857 students, fostering
a culture of applying acquired knowledge in practical settings to effect positive change.

Research conducted by the center informs social action and public policy initiatives, facilitating sustainable solutions
supported by students, volunteers, and faculty members. Additionally, the Company has contributed to the establishment
of a Mental Health Resource hub, serving as a repository for case studies and facilitating the creation of policies based
on research findings, thereby enhancing mental health care coordination in diverse settings.

Healthcare

Given the prevalent deficiencies and disparities in rural regions, it is crucial to identify and evaluate the developmental
requirements and initiatives necessary for consistently and effectively addressing the community’s needs to ensure
equitable progress. Within this framework, the Company has recognized rural healthcare as pivotal to rural development.
Through its CSR arm, the Krishna Educational Society, the Company provides free of cost medical services to villages
neighboring its Krishnapuram plant, benefiting approximately 2,500 families. The medical center serves a dual purpose
of delivering healthcare and conducting educational programs on various health-related topics.
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In partnership with the Vaastu foundation, the Company extends primary medical care to underprivileged communities
across eight villages in the Nagapattinam district of Tamil Nadu.

Furthermore, the Company covers the treatment expenses for children with cancer in collaboration with the Ray of Light
Foundation, India. It also finances the treatment of economically disadvantaged children with congenital and rheumatic
heart diseases through the CHIME foundation (MIOT Hospital). Without this financial aid, these children would not have
access to necessary treatment.

Additionally, the Company sponsors a program designed by Mithra Trust to engage in conversations around mental
health being accessible, available and inviting those who may need it including the queer community and those who
have faced gender-based violence.

In line with health and sanitation initiatives, the Company focuses on providing access to clean and hygienic toilets for
all. It has contributed to the construction of 75 toilets in Kadamangulam village near its Krishnapuram plant.

This year, the Company has aided the Cancer Institute, Adyar, a non-profit organization serving disadvantaged cancer
patients, in establishing a 3D live cell facility. This facility enables predictive testing of anti-cancer drugs on tumor tissue
organoids, enhancing treatment planning accuracy for patients. Furthermore, the Company has aided the Vijayaganga
Trust by providing heavy-duty battery-operated power systems, an Al-based mammogram facility, and a colonoscope.
These contributions help to reduce overhead costs for the hospital and increase accessibility of services for the
underprivileged, facilitating improved surgical precision and expanded patient reach.

Environment & Wildlife

The Company has undertaken the production of a documentary film aimed at showcasing the abundant diversity of
species and habitats within the state of Tamil Nadu. This film serves as a platform to address pertinent environmental
concerns of the present era, illustrating instances where people continue to share space and co-exist with wildlife.

Community Development

The Company has contributed to the rejuvenation of a pond in Thenmelpakkam Village, Kancheepuram district
demonstrating its commitment to the well-being of the local community adjacent to its factory grounds. This effort involved
the construction of a pathway around the pond, the installation of proper inlet and outlet systems, and the establishment
of earthen embankments to facilitate optimal water retention. Additionally, to safeguard against encroachments, a
protective fence has been erected around the perimeter of the pond.

Heritage, Art and Culture

The Company has aided in the restoration of the Sathyamurthi Perumal Temple, Pudukottai district a significant cultural
landmark managed by the Archaeological Survey of India as a preserved heritage site. This temple, believed to have
originated in the 9th century under the patronage of the Pandyas, stands as a testament to the profound historical
legacy of the nation.

Disaster Relief

The Company’s disaster relief efforts align CSR endeavors with providing prompt and effective aid to communities
impacted by calamities such as the Covid pandemic, Chennai floods of 2015, and the more recent floods in 2023.
Through collaboration with Helpage India, the Company extended assistance to the elderly community residing in old
age homes or living independently, who were adversely affected by the floods in Chennai in December 2023.

Skill Development

The Company has facilitated skill-oriented training through engagement of apprentices under the National Apprenticeship
Training Scheme (NAPS). The engagement of apprentices under the National Apprenticeship Training Scheme and the
payment of stipend are governed by the Apprentices Act 1961 (‘Apprentices Act’). In terms of the said Act, establishments
having an employee strength exceeding thirty are required to engage a minimum of 2.5% of the total work force and a
maximum of 15% of the total work force as apprentices.

The Company has been engaging apprentices in its establishment with a minimum of 2.5% and a maximum of 15% of
the total workforce as per the requirements under the Apprentices Act.
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Employee-Led Social Development Initiatives

The Company actively encourages its employees to dedicate their time and efforts to CSR initiatives aimed at aiding
the underprivileged and effecting positive change. Employees are urged to volunteer at least one working day annually
towards a social cause of their choice. They actively participate in various CSR activities focusing on education,
healthcare, and community outreach programs, either initiated by the Company or in collaboration with other organizations
and NGOs.

Since its inception in 2013, employees have wholeheartedly embraced the CSR volunteering movement, guided by
the ethos “SFL and You can make a difference.” Each year witnesses full employee engagement in both monetary
donation programs addressing societal needs and the employee-volunteering program.

The Company remains steadfast in its commitment to social responsibility, striving to provide avenues for employees
to channel their volunteering efforts in ways that are meaningful and impactful.

Composition of CSR Committee

S. Name of the Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of Number of
No. meetings Meetings
of CSR of CSR
Committee Committee
held during attended
the year during the year
1 Ms Arathi Krishna Managing Director / Chairperson of the 1 1
Committee
2 Ms Arundathi Krishna Joint Managing Director / Member of the 1 1
Committee
3 Dr Nirmala Lakshman Independent and Non-Executive 1 1

Director / Member of the Committee

The Web-Link

The Company has framed a CSR Policy pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, composition of CSR Committee and the CSR projects approved by the Board can be accessed at
http://www.sundram.com/investors.php

Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 if applicable: The impact assessment study is not required to be carried out
by the Company during the financial year 2023-24. The Company is working with an external agency to carry out an
impact assessment for 3 projects completed in March 2023. The impact assessment report will be published as part of
the annual report for the Financial Year 2024-2025.

a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): ¥ 540.56 crores

O

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5): ¥ 10.81 crores

o O

)
)
) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects/programmes of the previous financial year: Nil
) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

)

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c-5d): ¥ 10.81 crores

a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): ¥ 0.92 crores (includes
% 0.56 crores out of the current year budget and  0.36 crores out of Unspent CSR account) towards ‘ongoing
projects’ and % 10.25 crores towards ‘other than ongoing projects’.

b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [6a+6b+6c]. ¥ 10.81 crores
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Annexure V

Statement of particulars as per Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Percentage
S. No. Name of the Directors Designation Ratio (times) increase in
remuneration
1 Sri Suresh Krishna Chairman 4.27 (93.48%)
2 Ms Arathi Krishna Managing Director 109.15 60.18%
3 Ms Arundathi Krishna Joint Managing Director 105.80 32.85%
4 Ms Preethi Krishna* Director 1.89 0.77%
5 Sri B Muthuraman* Director 1.97 (0.72%)
6 Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis* Director 1.87 (5.80%)
7 Sri S Mahalingam* Director 2.00 3.73%
8 Dr Nirmala Lakshman* Director 1.92 3.91%
9 Sri R Dilip Kumar Chief Financial Officer 13.45 3.58%
10 | Sri G Anand Babu Senior Manager - Finance & 3.50 27.47%
Company Secretary

* Sitting fees were paid for attending the Board / Committee meetings / meeting of the Independent Directors during the financial
year 2023-2024. Further, the remuneration to the Independent and Non-Executive Directors is inclusive of the commission for the
financial year 2023-2024.

(ii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 11.96%

(ili) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2024: 3,058

(iv) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial
year i.e. 2023-2024 was 8.27% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year was
7.74%.

(v) ltis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other Employees.
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Annexure VI

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To the Members of

Sundram Fasteners Limited,
[CIN:L35999TN1962PLC004943]

98-A, VIl Floor, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai, Mylapore,
Chennai 600004

We have conducted a Secretarial Audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good
corporate practices by SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(hereinafter called “the Company”) during the financial
year from April 1,2023 to March 31, 2024 (“the year”/ “the
financial year”/ “audit period” / “period under review”), in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the Company’s corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

We are issuing this Secretarial Audit Report based on:

(i)  Our verification of the books, papers, minute books,
documents and other records maintained by the
Company and furnished to us, including scanned
copies provided through electronic mode, various
forms/ returns filed either with or as mandated by
applicable statutory / regulatory authorities, information
disseminated on the websites of the Company and
the stock exchanges (on which Equity shares of the
Company are listed), and compliance related actions
taken by the Company during the financial year as well
as after March 31, 2024 but before the issue of this
secretarial audit report;

(i) Our observations during our visits to the registered
office and some of the factories of the Company;

(i) Compliance certificates confirming compliance with
all laws applicable to the Company given by the key
managerial personnel / senior managerial personnel
of the Company and taken on record by the Audit
Committee; and

(iv) Representations made and information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives, during our conduct of the Secretarial
Audit.

We hereby report that, in our opinion, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31,
2024 the Company has:

(i) Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder;
and

(i) Board processes and compliance mechanism in place

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

The members are requested to read this report along with our
letter of even date annexed to this report as Annexure — A.

1. Compliance with specific statutory provisions
We further report that:

1.1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books
and other records maintained by the Company and the
forms, returns, reports, disclosures and information
filed or disseminated during the year, according to
the applicable provisions/ clauses of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Standards and Agreements set out
hereunder.

1.2. During the period under review, and also considering the
compliance related action taken by the Company after
March 31, 2024 but before the issue of this report, to
the best of our knowledge and belief and based on the
records, information, explanations and representations
furnished to us, the Company’s compliance with the
said applicable provisions/ clauses of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Standards and Agreements is as set out
hereunder.

1.3. The Company has complied with the following:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder (“the Act’);

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations
and bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(v) The listing agreements entered into by the
Company with the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE)
(“Listing Agreements”); and

(vi) Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (“ICSI”) to the extent applicable to the
60" Annual General Meeting held on 29" June,
2023 (‘60" AGM").

1.4. The Company has generally complied with the
following:

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“LODR’);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
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1.5.

(i)

(iv)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder (“FEMA”)
to the extent of:-

(a) Overseas Direct Investment; and
(b) External Commercial Borrowings.

The following laws that are specifically applicable
to the Company (“Specific laws”):

(a) The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and
the rules made thereunder (for the units
located in Special Economic Zones); and

(b) Export Oriented Unit Scheme (for the
units having Letters of Approval under the
Scheme); and

Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI on Meetings
of the Board of Directors (SS-1) to the extent
applicable to Board meetings. The Company has
not adopted the Secretarial Standards on Dividend
(SS-3) and the Secretarial Standards on Board’s
Report (SS-4) issued by ICSI, since they were not
mandatory.

The Company was not required to comply with
the following on account of the non-applicability/
non-occurrence of events that necessitate such
compliance, during the year:

(i)
(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

FEMA to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Act and dealing
with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021.

Board processes:
We further report that:

2.1

The constitution of the Board of Directors of the
Company (“the Board”) during the year was in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act and LODR.

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

As on March 31, 2024 the Board has 8 (Eight)
directors, comprising of:

(i) 2 (two) Executive Directors;

(ii) 2 (two) Non-Executive Non-Independent
Directors; and

(iii) 4 (four) Independent Directors.

As on March 31, 2024, the Board has 4 (four)
women directors, constituting 50% of its total
strength and comprising of:

(i) 2 (two) Executive Directors;

(i) 1 (one) Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director; and

(iii) 1 (one) Independent Director

The processes, including recommendations from
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as
well as the Board of Directors taking into account
the performance evaluation and skill sets, relating
to the following changes in the composition of
the Board, during the year, were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and
LODR:

(i) Re-appointment of Ms. Arundathi Krishna
(DIN:00270935), an Executive Director who
retired by rotation at the 60" AGM, by way of
an Ordinary Resolution; and.

(i) Approval of the re-appointment of
Dr. Nirmala Lakshman (DIN: 00141632),
as an Independent Director for her second
consecutive term of 5 (five) years from
September 20, 2023 to September 19, 2028,
by the members at the 60" AGM, by way of
a Special Resolution.

Adequate notice was given to all the directors to
enable them to plan their schedule for the Board
meetings.

Notice of Board meetings were sent at least 7
(seven) days in advance.

Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
to all the directors at least 7 (seven) days before
the Board meetings except for the following items,
for which they were either circulated separately or
at the concerned Board meetings and consent of
the Board for so circulating/ presenting them was
duly obtained as required under SS-1:

(i) Supplementary agenda notes and annexures
in respect of unpublished price sensitive
information such as audited accounts/ results,
unaudited financial results and connected
papers; and

(i)  Additional subjects/ information/ presentations
and supplementary notes.
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2.8 A system exists for directors to seek and obtain
further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meetings and for their meaningful
participation at the meetings.

2.9 We noted from the minutes that, at the Board
meetings held during the year:

(i) Majority decisions were carried through; and

(i) No dissenting views were expressed by any
of the Board members on any of the subjects
discussed, that were required to be captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

Date: May 22, 2024
Place: Chennai

Compliance mechanism

We further report that there are reasonably adequate
systems and processes, commensurate with the
Company’s size and operations, to monitor and
ensure compliance with all the applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Specific events / actions

We further report that the National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT), Chennai Bench, sanctioned the
Scheme of Amalgamation of two Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries, namely Sunfast TVS Limited and TVS
Engineering Limited, with the Company effective from
1st April 2023 under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.

For S Krishnamurthy & Co.,

Company Secretaries,

Firm Unique ldentification Number: P1994TN045300
(Peer Review Certificate No 739/2020)

K Sriram

Partner

Membership No: F6312
Certificate of Practice No: 2215
UDIN: F006312F000420627
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Annexure — A to Secretarial Audit Report of even date

To the Members of

Sundram Fasteners Limited, [CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943]
98-A, VIl Floor, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai, Mylapore,

Chennai 600004

Our Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is to be read
along with this letter.

1.

10.

Management’s Responsibility:

The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records, making the statutory/ regulatory
disclosures/ filings and compliance with the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and
standards.

Secretarial Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility as the Secretarial Auditor is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and
maintenance of records based on our audit.

We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records and the audit was conducted in accordance with
applicable auditing standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Those Standards require that
the Auditor comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, we have also considered compliance related action
taken by the Company after March 31, 2024 but before the issue of this report.

We have considered compliance related actions taken by the Company based on independent legal/ professional
opinion obtained as being in compliance with law, wherever there was scope for multiple interpretations.

We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are reflected
therein. We have also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed for our verification provide a reasonable basis for forming our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements, financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

We have obtained the Management’s representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening
of events, wherever required.

Our Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable
risk that some mis-statements or material nhon-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with the Auditing Standards.

For S Krishnamurthy & Co.,

Company Secretaries,

Firm Unique ldentification Number: P1994TN045300
(Peer Review Certificate No 739/2020)

K Sriram
Partner

Date: May 22, 2024 Membership No: F6312
Place: Chennai Certificate of Practice No: 2215

UDIN: F006312F000420627
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Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Year: 2023-2024

Industry structure and developments

The Indian economy has registered a stellar performance reporting an average annual growth rate of 8% over the last three
fiscal years. The GDP for the current fiscal year is set to grow by 7.6%, making India the fastest-growing major economy
in the world. With a GDP size of about USD 4 trillion, India is the fifth-largest economy in the world and is expected to
become fourth-largest economy by FY 2025-26. The Government has continuously increased the allocation for infrastructure
development in the last three years creating a multiplier effect on the economy. The eight core sectors which have a
weightage of 40% in the Index of Industrial Production have grown by 7.5%, though the weakness in external demand has
impacted a few export-oriented sectors.

The economy’s growth has been aided by stability in the macroeconomic fundamentals. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
has kept inflation within its target range of 4% to 6% through a prudent monetary policy. The calibrated increase in policy
rates under the liquidity adjustment facility has ensured that the inflation is aligned to the target. The crude oil prices have
remained relatively stable during the fiscal keeping the inflation under control. Better expenditure control and the tax buoyancy
have helped the Government to rein in the fiscal deficit. India’s consumption story is intact as evidenced by GST collections
of more than Rs.20 trillion during the year.

The Indian Rupee has remained range-bound throughout the year and closed at 83.40 against the USD, compared to
82.17 levels on March 31, 2023. The RBI has also built up sizable foreign currency reserves, which has given a cushion
against currency volatility arising from political or economic incidents. FDI inflows and Fll investments have also bolstered
India’s foreign exchange reserves. With other major economies slowing down, India has become a favourable destination
for global investors.

India experienced a deficiency in the monsoons due to the impact of El Nino. This resulted in erratic and uneven rainfall
distribution, causing significant deficits in some regions and surpluses in others. The monsoon impact has affected the
agricultural sector, rural purchasing power and sentiments.

India’s passenger vehicle (PV) industry has had another year of robust growth of 8%, with the sector touching a mark of 4.2
million car sales during the fiscal year. This growth has come on the back of a high base of FY 2022-23. The triggers for
the growth are the new model launches, high safety standards, enhanced product offerings to meet the evolving consumer
expectations. The need for personal mobility, rapid urbanization and the availability of easy financing options have further
supported the growth of the passenger vehicle segment. There has been a shift in consumer preferences from sedans to
SUVs with demand for entry-level vehicles having plateaued. SUV’s share of PV sales is about 60%. The Electric Vehicles
(EVs) sales continue to gain traction given the increased environmental awareness, support from the Government like
Make in India initiatives, incentives for the adoption of EVs, and the development of charging infrastructure. The EV sales
accounted for 4% of the total passenger vehicles sales during the fiscal year.

The Commercial Vehicles (CV) segment had a stable year, with a growth of 3% during the financial year 2023-24. Rural
demand was affected by a below-par monsoon, and the urban demand has been driven by manufacturing momentum and
fleet expansion of logistics players. The bus segment registered a good growth owing to the mandatory scrappage policy
for Government vehicles, which drove the replacement demand.

Tractor sales which had crossed 1 million mark last year registered a sale of 0.97 million units in FY 2023-24. The demand
for tractors has been tepid due to a sub-normal monsoon.

The two-wheeler (2W) sales are nearing pre-pandemic levels. The segment continued the recovery path with double-digit
growth reporting a sale of 21 million units. The EV sub-segment has made an impressive stride of 30% growth encouraged
by the Government incentives.
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Segment-wise or Product Wise Performance

The following table depicts the production trend of various segments in the automotive industry.

Category Production
April-March
Segment/Sub-segment
2023-2024 2022-2023 % Change
I Passenger Vehicles (PVs)
Passenger Cars 19,79,911 21,84,844 (9.40)
Sports Utility Vehicles (SUVs) 27,77,051 22,61,749 22.80
Vans 1,44,882 1,40,523 3.10
Total Passenger Vehicles (PVs) 49,01,844 45,87,116 6.90
I Commercial Vehicles (CVs)
M&HCVs
Passenger Carrier 55,067 43,807 25.70
Goods Carrier 3,37,407 3,35,452 0.60
Total M & HCVs 3,92,474 3,79,259 3.50
LCVs
Passenger Carrier 73,229 45,011 62.70
Goods Carrier 6,00,726 6,11,356 (1.70)
Total LCVs 6,73,955 6,56,367 2.70
Total Commercial Vehicles (CVs) 10,66,429 10,35,626 3.00
Ill Three Wheelers
Passenger Carrier 8,43,161 7,23,524 16.50
Goods Carrier 1,16,141 1,00,221 15.90
E-Rickshaw 29,830 28,185 5.80
E-Cart 3,803 3,766 1.00
Total Three Wheelers 9,92,935 8,55,696 16.00
IV Two Wheelers
Scooter 63,91,272 56,01,501 14.10
Motorcycles 1,45,89,393 1,34,21,208 8.70
Mopeds 4,87,862 4,36,300 11.80
Total Two Wheelers 2,14,68,527 1,94,59,009 10.30
Grand Total of All Categories 2,84,29,735 2,59,37,447 9.60

Source: Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers
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Revenues
Domestic Sales:

Domestic sales of the Company grew at 3.14% from % 3,237.42 Crores in the previous year to % 3,339.20 Crores for the
year ended March 31, 2024. The increase in domestic sales is attributable to strong demand from the domestic Original
Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs).

In the aftermarket (Retail), the Company continued to witness surge in the order inflow for the industrial and the auto segments.

Export Sales:

The headwinds in global markets impacted the export performance of the Company. The Company recorded export sales
of ¥ 1,409.43 crores in comparison to ¥ 1,528.95 Crores in the previous year.

Operating Revenues:

The operating revenue of the Company was at % 4,905.65 Crores (PY: ¥ 4,921.61 Crores).

Financial Performance:

Steel is one of the principal raw materials used by the Company. During the year under review, the steel prices have softened
both internationally and domestically. The Company mitigates its raw material price risks through identification of alternate
sources of suppliers, alternate usage of materials, price negotiations and localisation efforts. Further, the yield improvement
projects have helped to reduce raw material consumption.

The Company continues to procure cost effective renewable sources of power under group captive scheme. Further the
Company has installed roof-top solar panels in its factories to optimise the power cost. The share of renewable power has
increased from 39% to 47% in the current financial year.

During the financial year 2023-2024, PBIDT (Profit before interest, foreign exchange fluctuation, depreciation, exceptional
income and tax) was at ¥ 825.37 Crores as against ¥ 797.18 Crores in the previous year, recording an increase of 3.54%.

Finance costs amounted to % 17.99 Crores (PY: ¥ 24.63 Crores). The Company continues to exercise prudence in its
borrowings and management of working capital requirements.

Profit before tax was higher at ¥ 639.07 Crores (PY: ¥ 615.30 Crores). After providing for taxes, the Profit after Tax amounted
to ¥ 479.71 Crores (PY: % 463.74 Crores).

Summary of Operating Results:

Zin Crores
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Net Revenue from Operations 4,905.65 4,921.61
Other Income 47.33 29.83
Total Income 4,952.98 4,951.44
Total Expenditure 4,127.61 4,154.26
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (PBIDT) 825.37 797.18
Finance Cost 17.99 24.63
Depreciation/Amortization 168.31 157.25
Provision for impairment of investments in subsidiaries - -
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 639.07 615.30
Provision for Tax 159.36 151.56
Profit After Tax (PAT) 479.71 463.74
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Details of significant changes in key financial ratios:

Significant Detailed
. Current Previous change explanation
Sr. . Unit of .
No Key Ratios measurement year year compared with for
: 2023-24 2022-23 previous year i.e. | significant
25% or more change
1 Debtors Turnover Days 78 70 N.A. N.A.
2 | Inventory Turnover Days 59 58 N.A. N.A.
3 | Interest Coverage Ratio Times 37.92 33.86 N.A. N.A.
4 | Current Ratio Times 2.04 1.90 N.A. N.A.
5 | Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.11 0.15 * *
6 | Operating Profit Margin (%)
(PBT before exception item % 13.03% 12.50% N.A. N.A.
/ Revenue from operations)
7 | Operating Profit Margin (%)
(EBITDA / Revenue from % 16.82% 16.20% N.A. N.A.
operations)
8 | Net Profit Margin (%) % 9.78% 9.42% N.A. N.A.

* Due to higher networth and reduced borrowings, the debt equity ratio was lower.

Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year along with
a detailed explanation thereof:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Return on Net worth 15.50% 17.00%

Due to higher net worth compared to the previous year, the return on net worth was lower.

Consolidated Performance:

The total revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis during the year under review was at
¥ 5,720.47 Crores as against % 5,707.60 Crores.

Capacities and Capital Expenditure:

During the year, the Company incurred ¥ 230.15 Crores towards capital expenditure on existing and new projects. The
capital investments were incurred in tandem with the production plans of key customers.

Awards:

During the year under review, the Company received Awards for its various units as given hereunder:-

S. No. Units Awards

1 Metal Forms Division, Hosur “Capable Supplier” and “Consistent vendor performance” Award from
Endurance Technologies Limited

“Quality” Award from Bajaj Auto Limited

“Supplier Quality Excellence” Award from General Motors

“Zero PPM” Award from Mahle Electric Drives
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S. No. Units Awards

2 Fasteners Division, Chennai, | “Green Champion” Award from Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board
Madurai and Puducherry

2" Prize in 18" Quality Circle Competition from Automotive Component
Manufacturers Association (Southern Region)

“SQ Mark Certification” from Hyundai Motor

Winner of Automotive Component Manufacturers Association Excellence
Awards 2023 at ACMA Excellence Awards & 9" Technology Summit 2024
at New Delhi

Platinum Award in National Lean Competition by Confederation of Indian
Industry

Second Prize in Engineering Category in Kaizen Mela Competition by
Quality Circle Forum of India-Madurai Chapter

3 Hot and Warm Forgings, “Zero Defect Champion“ Award from SKF India Limited
Puducherry “Zero Defect” and Industry 4.0 Techniques implementation” Award from
John Deere
4 Autolec Division, Chennai Special Award for contribution in Proprietary Parts from Volvo Eicher

Commercial Vehicles

“Best Supplier” Award in the category of Continual Improvement from
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries

5 Radiator Caps & Assembly “Supplier Quality Excellence Award” from General Motors
Division, Chennai “Excellence in Safety Management” from Hanon Systems
6 Powertrain Components, Appreciation Award from Ford, Sanand - Engine Plant

Chennai and Sricity

Total Quality Management, Human Resources, Industrial Relations, Learning and Development:

The Company continues its focus on the principles of Total Quality Management (TQM). During the Financial Year 2023-
24, the Company has focused on sustaining the strong manufacturing processes through the “can’t receive the defect,
can’t make the defect and can’t flow off the defect” system to ensure the supply of zero-defect products to the customers.
The Company further initiated digitization activities (IoT - Internet of Things) in the processes to improve its internal quality
besides sustaining its existing Total Quality Management (TQM) activities. This has aided the Company to reduce the
complaints from customers and a decline in internal rejections.

The Company is dedicated to fostering an environment conducive to attracting, nurturing and retaining talent while cultivating
a positive workplace environment. Various programs are in place to bolster overall employee well-being, encompassing
mental, physical, and financial health wellness. Each employee participates in giving back to the community by actively
participating in both monetary contributions and volunteering activities, enriching not only the community but also nurturing
strong engagement among employees. The Company places great value on its workforce, recognizing them as invaluable
assets essential to its success. Employees are involved and contribute towards continuous improvements.

The Company’s Human Resources Development framework includes Workforce planning, Employee engagement,
Performance and rewards, Learning and Development, Career and Succession Planning and Organization Development,
which have a structured approach, policies and standard operating procedures that are reviewed and updated periodically.
Emphasizing the importance of continuous learning and development, the Company invests significantly in educational
programs tailored to enhance employee skills and expertise. Leveraging the expertise and experience of internal trainers, who
are subject matter experts, the Company focuses on upskilling employees to meet higher responsibilities. The Company’s
strategic approach identifies key competencies essential to organizational growth, with individual development plans tailored
for high-potential employees, grooming them for future leadership roles through targeted leadership development programs.

Across all manufacturing units, industrial relations remain harmonious, fostering a work environment conducive to productivity
and growth.
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Health, Safety and Environment:

Ensuring the safety and well-being of the employees remains paramount for the Company, with various measures in place
to uphold this commitment. The business processes are meticulously designed with full regard and adherence to health
and safety protocols. Comprehensive safety training is provided to all employees, underscoring Company’s dedication to
maintaining a secure work environment.

Furthermore, all the manufacturing facilities are equipped with round-the-clock medical facilities.

Recognizing the importance of mental health, the Company offers robust support through an Employee Assistance Program,
providing access to counsellors to ensure the well-being of the workforce. Mental wellness programs are regularly conducted.

All the Company’s manufacturing facilities comply with occupational health and management safety systems.

Internal Control Systems:

All business-related transactions are handled through Systems, Applications and Products (SAP) system. To facilitate and
ensure consistency in working, relevant policies and standard operating procedures have been documented, reviewed
periodically, and revised wherever necessary.

All transactions relating to major processes, i.e. sourcing, procurement, production, sub-contracting, sales and dispatch,
costing and finance, are handled through the SAP system, wherein necessary checks and controls have been built to
facilitate the users in handling such transactions seamlessly.

Internal controls are benchmarked with industry standards, continuously monitored, and periodically reviewed for improving
quality and effectiveness. Internal controls relating to key areas, i.e. operations, inventory, fixed assets, financial records,
reporting, and compliance with requirements under various statutes, are reviewed by the Audit Committee for adequacy
and effectiveness. The present internal control framework is adequate and provides assurance to the management that
they are effective.

Prospects, Risks and Concerns:

India’s GDP is estimated to grow by 7% in financial year 2024-25 driven by strong domestic consumption. The exogenous
factors may moderate the GDP growth. The outcome of the general election in India may have an impact on the market
sentiment and the continuation of Government’s economic and investment policies. However, GDP growth is expected to
be secular and broad based.

The monetary transmission of repo rate hikes is fully reflected in the current interest rate structure, giving policy headroom
for RBI to cut interest rates. The benign interest rate environment will spur economy’s growth with inflation subdued. The
favourable policy framework of the Government and RBI will propel India to GDP of USD 7 trillion by 2030. The demographic
profile, large working population with high disposable income are the structural tailwinds that would facilitate the expansion
of the economy.

The price of crude oil and the USD/INR exchange rates are expected to be stable in FY 2024-25. This augurs well for the
balance of payments position as it will keep the current account deficit low. The stability in currency rates will encourage
merchant trade and enhance export competitiveness in the global market. With the inclusion of India in the Global Bond
Index, the rupee may have an appreciation bias owing to the likely inflow of funds from foreign investors.

India is expected to benefit from above-normal monsoon this year. A good crop yield and higher minimum support price
will improve rural cash flows and spur rural demand. The Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) and Auto sectors are
expected to benefit from the bounty rainfall and the positive rural sentiment. The automobile sector which is a barometer of
the economy is expected to have another strong year. The dominance of India in the automotive sector is established as
India is the largest manufacturer of the two-wheelers in the World. India also ranks as third-largest heavy truck and fourth-
largest car manufacturer in the World.

The CV segment is expected to benefit from higher government spending in the second half of the financial year with focus
on infrastructural development.

The PV segment may witness a moderate growth with a significant uptick in the luxury segment shaped by affluent buyers
in Tier-II cities. The continued transition towards electric vehicles is likely to pave the way for India to become third-largest
EV market by 2025. India is expected to emerge as a manufacturing hub for export of cars to the global markets.
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The tractor segment is expected to rebound with favourable monsoon, timely start of sowing season, arrival of agricultural
produce in the mandis and launch of features-rich new models with higher HP. This segment has the potential to scale
previous peak of 1 million units achieved in 2022-23.

The downside risks to the positive outlook are extreme temperatures, monsoon failures, geopolitical uncertainties, disruption

in supply chain and inflation in commaodity prices. Despite these challenges, India with its talent pool, is well placed to offer
sustainable growth in future.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might
differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company’s
operations include developments in the global or domestic or both fronts, significant changes in the political and economic

environment in India or key markets abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relations, foreign currency fluctuations and interest
costs.
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Annexure VII

Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the financial year 2023-24

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Details of the listed entity

1.
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13.

14.
15.

17.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity: L35999TN1962PLC004943

Name of the Listed Entity: Sundram Fasteners Limited (SFL)

Year of incorporation: 1962

Registered office address: No. 98-A, VII Floor, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai, Mylapore, Chennai 600 004
Corporate office address: No. 98-A, VII Floor, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai, Mylapore, Chennai - 600 004
E-mail: hg@sfl.co.in / investorshelpdesk @sfl.co.in

Telephone: +91 44 28478500

Website: www.sundram.com

Financial year for which reporting is being done: FY 2023-24

. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed: National Stock Exchange of India Limited (‘NSE’) and the

BSE Limited (‘BSE))

. Paid-up Capital: ¥21.01 crores

. Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of any queries

on the BRSR report:

Sri R Ganesh, Senior General Manager — Finance & Projects
+91 44 2847 8500

investorshelpdesk @sfl.co.in

Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on
a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities which form a part of its consolidated financial statements,
taken together). — Standalone basis

Name of the assurance provider: Not applicable for the year under review

Type of assurance obtained: Not applicable for the year under review

Products/services
16.

Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover)

S. Description of Main . . - % of Turnover of the
. Description of Business Activity .
No. Activity entity

1 Metal and metal products 56%

Manufacturing Plastics products, non-metallic mineral products,

2 rubber products, fabricated metal products

34%

Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover)

S.
No.

1 High Tensile Fasteners 25991 38%

, | Parts and accessories for motor 2930 56%
vehicles

Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover contributed
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Ill. Operations
18. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location * Number of plants Number of offices Total
National 18 5 23
International 2 0 2

* Includes the offices/plants of the Subsidiary Companies

19. Markets served by the entity

a. Number of locations

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 28 States and 8 Union Territories
International (No. of Countries) 35

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?

For FY 2023-24, exports contributed about 29% of the total turnover

c. A brief on types of customers:-

The Company manufactures a diverse range of products for varied customer segments namely from automotive,
wind energy, aerospace, defense, farm equipment and industrial amongst others with significant contribution
coming from the automotive segment.

IV. Employees
20. Details as at the end of Financial Year

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S. . Total Male Female
No. Particulars (A) No.(B) | %(B/A) | No.(C) | %(C/A)
EMPLOYEES
Permanent (D) 2,043 1,904 93.20% 139 6.80%
. | Other than Permanent (E) - - - - -
3. | Total employees (D + E) 2,043 1,904 93.20% 139 6.80%
WORKERS
Permanent (F) 1,015 1,013 99.80% 2 0.20%
Other than Permanent (G) 6,640 5,070 76.36% 1,570 23.64%
Total workers (F + G) 7,655 6,083 79.46% 1,572 20.54%
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b. Differently abled Employees and workers:

Particulars

Total
(A)

Male

Female

No.(B) | % (B/A)

No.(C) | %(C/A)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES

Permanent (D) 2 1 50% 1 50%
2. | Other than Permanent (E) - - - - -
3 Total differently abled 2 1 50% 1 50%
employees (D + E)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
Permanent (F) 5 5 100% - -
5. | Other than permanent (G) - - - - -
Total differently abled o
6. workers (F + G) S 5 100%
21. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
No. and percentage of
Total Females
(A)
No. (B) % (B /A)
Board of Directors 8 4 50%
Key Managerial Personnel (excludes Managing Director, Whole-time > 0 )
Director, if any)

22. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

(Disclose trends for the past 3 years)

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023 Financial Year 2022
. . . (Turnover rate in the year
(Turnover rate in current (Turnover rate in previous .
FY) FY) prior to the
previous FY)
Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Permanent | 4 5o. | 15.11% | 11.40% | 10.50% | 18.70% | 11.00% | 10.00% | 26.30% | 11.10%
Employees
Permanent i i i ) ) i i i i
Workers
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V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

23. Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

Name of the holding / Indicate whether % of shares Does the entity |r.w!|catefj
L . - . - at column A, participate in
S. subsidiary /associate Holding / Subsidiary / held in/ . -
. . . . . . the Business Responsibility
No. companies / joint Associate / Joint by listed L - .
. initiatives of the listed entity?
ventures(A) Venture entity
(Yes/No)
1 TVS Sundram Fasteners Promoter / Holding 48.51% No
Private Limited (along with
Promoter
Group)
2 TVS Upasana Limited Wholly-owned 100.00% No
subsidiary
3 | Sundram Non- Subsidiary 52.94% No
Conventional Energy
Systems Limited
4 | Sundram Fasteners Wholly-owned 100.00% No
Investments Limited subsidiary
TVS Next Limited Subsidiary 67.65% No
Sundram International Wholly owned 100.00% No
Limited, United Kingdom subsidiary
7 | Sundram Fasteners Step-down subsidiary 100.00% No
(Zhejiang) Limited, China
8 | Cramlington Precision Step-down subsidiary 100.00% No
Forge Limited, United
Kingdom
9 | Sundram International Wholly-owned 100.00% No
Inc., USA subsidiary
10 | TVS Next Inc. USA Step-down subsidiary 67.65% No

VI. CSR Details

24. (i)

Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes
(i) Turnover (in %) — 4,905.65 crores
(iii) Net worth (in ) — 3,279.22 crores
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VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

25. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National guidelines on Responsible

26.

Business Conduct

Grievance
Redressal Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Mechanism " . . . .
. (Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)
in Place
Stakeholder group from | (Yes/No)
whom complaint is (If Yes, then Number of Number of
. . Number of . Number of .
received provide . complaints . complaints
X complaints . complaints .
web-link for X pending ! pending
. filed - filed .
grievance - resolution at | Remarks - resolution at | Remarks
during the during
redressal close of the close of the
- year the year
policy) year year
Communities 0 0 - 0 0 -
Investors (other than
shareholders) Y 0 0 ) 0 0 )
Shareholders Y 0 0 - 0 0 -
Employees and workers Y 0 0 - 0 0 -
Customers Y 0 0 - 0 0 -
Value Chain Partners Y 0 0 - 0 0 -
Others (please specify) NA 0 0 - 0 0 -

* The policy for internal stakeholder is available on the intranet portal of the organisation and for external stakeholder
in the website www.sundram.com.

Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues
Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and
social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach
to adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format

S. Material issue Indicate Rationale for identifying | In case of risk, approach to adapt Financial
No. identified whether the risk / opportunity or mitigate implications
risk or of the risk or
opportunity opportunity
(R/O) (Indicate
positive or
negative
implications)
1 Energy Opportunity | This is critical for reducing | The Company has implemented Positive
and GHG and managing emissions | measures to lower scope 1 emissions implication
Management and moving towards de- | by reducing the dependency on Diesel
carbonization. and LPG through a variety of initiatives
(battery operated electric forklift). The
Company has also reduced its Scope
2 emission intensity through energy
efficiency measures and procurement
of renewable energy.
2 Waste Risk This represents the | Through partnerships with authorized Positive
Management company’s responsibility | agencies, the Company constantly implication
towards managing waste | strives to develop mechanisms of
generated in the business | recycling and reusing hazardous and
and transitioning towards | Non-hazardous waste generated
environmental preservation. | across its operations.
3 Water Risk This implies the company’s | Constant efforts (recycling of water) are Partly
Management judicious use of a shared | being made to lower the consumption Negative
resource as our operations | of water in processes and domestic implication
are located in water scarce | use, and to promote recycling and
areas. reusing of water wherever possible.

46



S. Material issue Indicate Rationale for identifying | In case of risk, approach to adapt Financial
No. identified whether the risk / opportunity or mitigate implications
risk or of the risk or
opportunity opportunity
(R/O) (Indicate
positive or
negative
implications)

4 Product Opportunity | This holds significance - Positive

Stewardship as it is crucial for brand implication
reputation and ensuring
customer and end-user
safety.

5 Biodiversity Opportunity | To care about the flora - Positive

and fauna around the implication
Company’s operations is
equally important.

6 Human Rights | Opportunity | SFL always stands for - Positive
and Labor the rights and respect of implication
Practices its employees and firmly

believes in non-tolerance
and non-discrimination.

7 Employee Opportunity | Employee wellbeing is - Positive
well-being of utmost importance to implication

SFL. SFL continuously
works towards the mental,
physical, and financial
needs of its employees.

8 Occupational | Opportunity | SFL continuously strives to - Positive

Health and provide a safe workplace implication
Safety for its employees.
9 Training and Opportunity | Enabling employees to - Positive
Development grow professionally as well implication
as upskill them at work
is cornerstone to SFL’s
success as an organization.
10 Diversity and Opportunity | SFL firmly believes in - Positive
Inclusion providing opportunities to implication
everybody and thereby
becoming an inclusive
organization.
11 CSR and Opportunity | SFL continuously works - Positive
Impact to provide for and uplift implication
Assessment the communities around
its operations and cater
to the needs of the under
privileged.

12 Fair Business | Opportunity | Working ethically is central - Positive

Practices to long term sustenance implication

of an organization. This is
central to the company’s
vision.
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S. Material issue Indicate Rationale for identifying | In case of risk, approach to adapt Financial
No. identified whether the risk / opportunity or mitigate implications
risk or of the risk or
opportunity opportunity
(R/O) (Indicate
positive or
negative
implications)
13 Supply chain Opportunity | Management of supply - Positive
Management chain is crucial in implication
manufacturing the products
and thereby meeting the
Company’s business
objectives.
14 Economic Opportunity | Consistent profitability - Positive
Performance and strong financial implication
fundamentals are
necessary for the business
to remain resilient and
expand globally.
15 Customer Opportunity | To become a trusted - Positive
Centricity and preferred player in implication
the market is important to
growth as an organization.
16 Stakeholder Opportunity | Stakeholders hold great - Positive
Engagement significance inside and implication
outside the organization.
17 Data Security Risk This emphasizes privacy | The Company has currently adopted Positive
and confidentiality | leading industry security standards implication
of information of all | and practices such as ISO 27001
stakeholder groups | and TISAX to develop and implement
involved across the|a robust information security
organization. management framework.
18 Innovation Opportunity | Innovation is imperative for - Positive
Management building new products and implication

meeting the needs of the
company’s customers.

List of Principles covered under Section B of the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report:-

Principle Nature of Principle

P-1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical, Transparent
and Accountable

P-2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

P-3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their value chains

P-4 Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

P-5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

P-6 Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

P-7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner that is
responsible and transparent

P-8 Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

P-9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards adopting
the National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBC) Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions

plpPp[P|[P][P[P]P]P
1| 2| 3|4 |5 |6 | 7] 8

© T

Policy and management processes

1.

a. | Whether your entity’s policy/policies cover each principle and its core
elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y

b. | Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y

c. | Web Link of the Policies, if available

https://www.sundram.com/corpgov.php

Whether the entity has translated the policy into procedures. (Yes / No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y

Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain partners? (Yes/No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y

Name of the national and international codes / certifications / labels /
standards (e.g. Forest Stewardship Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance,
and Trustea) standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by your
entity and mapped to each principle.

SFL is certified with IATF 16949, ISO 14001, ISO 45001,
ISO/IEC 17025 at most of its manufacturing locations

Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the entity with defined
timelines, if any.

Based on stakeholder inputs and materiality assessment,
the Company has identified focus areas to develop
commitments, goals, and targets with defined timelines

Performance of the entity against the specific commitments, goals and
targets along-with reasons in case the same are not met.

The Company has goals that fructify from financial year
2025 and hence, the performance will be captured in next
year’s report.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. | Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related challenges, targets and achievements
(listed entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this disclosure) -
The statement by Ms. Arathi Krishna, Managing Director forms part of the ESG report available at
https://www.sundram.com/esgreport.php
8. | Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation and | Ms. Arathi Krishna, Managing Director
oversight of the Business Responsibility policy (ies).
9. |Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/ Director | Ms. Arathi Krishna, Managing Director is responsible for
responsible for decision making on sustainability related issues? (Yes / | decision making on sustainability related issues.
No). If yes, provide details.
10. | Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:
Subject for Review Indicate whether review was Frequency (Annually/ Half yearly/
undertaken by Director / Committee of | Quarterly/ Any other — please specify)
the Board / Any other Committee
p,P,P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P
1/2(3|(4|5|6|7|8|9|1(2|3|4|5|6|7/|8|9
Performance against above policiesand| Y | Y | Y [ Y [ Y |Y | N|Y |Y Quarterly
follow up action
Compliance with statutory requirementsof | Y | Y | Y | Y | Y |Y [ N|Y |Y Quarterly
relevance to the principles, and, rectification
of any non-compliances
11. |Has the entity carried out independent Frequency
assessment/ evaluation of the working of its P P P P P P P P P
policies by an external agency? (Yes/No). If 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
yes, provide name of the agency. N N N N N N B N N
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12. | If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

Questions plplP[P][P[P][P]P]P
1/2|3|4|5|6|7]s8s

The entity does not consider the principles material to its business (Yes/No) Considering the nature of Company’s business,
principle 7 has limited applicability. The Company
complies with Regulations governing its operations
and has taken initiatives to promote inclusive
growth and environmental sustainability

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position to formulate and implement -

the policies on specified principles (Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial or / human and technical resources available -
for the task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be done in the next financial year (Yes/No) -

Any other reason (please specify) -

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements with
key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential
indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may
be voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially, environmentally
and ethically responsible.

Principle 1 : Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical,
Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1) Percentage coverage by training and awareness programs on any of the principles during the financial year:

Segment Total number of training Topics / principles covered under the % of persons in respective
and awareness programs training and its impact category covered by
held awareness programs
Board of Directors Seven training and * CSR Progress — Discussions pertaining to 100%
Key Managerial Personnel |awareness programs SFL’s CSR programs, and the outcomes

® An overview of the legal function covering
Principles 1,2,4,5,6,8 and 9 and extension
of SFL’s ESG perspectives to its Value
Chain Partners

e Program on Governance areas (Section
B-Management and Process Disclosure).

e Update on SFL’s ESG Program.

Employees other than Board | 252 internal training * On becoming Effective Manager 100%
and KMP programs » Talent Capacity Building

217 external training * Lean Six Sigma

programs * World Class Supply Chain Management

¢ IR Practice and Legal Compliances
* Team Development Program

* Women Wellbeing Workshop

* Communicate to Succeed

¢ Step Up Leadership

¢ Customer Centricity

* Behavior Based Safety

* Create a Workable Budget

Workers Multiple sessions Health and safety 100%
Skill upgradation
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2)

3)

6)

Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings (by the
entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in
the following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s website):

Monetary
NGRBC Principle | Name of regulatory/ Amount in INR Brief of the case | Has an appeal been
enforcement preferred (Yes/No)
agencies/ Judicial
Institutions
Penalty/Fine
Settlement Nil

Compounding fee

Non-Monetary

NGRBC Principle Name of regulatory/ enforcement Brief of the case | Has an appeal been
agencies/ Judicial Institutions preferred (Yes/No)
Imprisonment
- Nil
Punishment

Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where monetary or
non-monetary action has been appealed:

Case Details Name of regulatory/ enforcement agencies/ Judicial Institutions

Not Applicable

Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, provide a
web-link to the policy.

The organization’s business-as-usual activities, strategies, manufacturing systems, and stakeholder engagement
practices are guided by its policies such as the Code of Conduct, Code of Fair Practices, and Whistleblower Policy,
covering the internal stakeholders, thereby promoting a transparent business culture, a safe working environment, and
increased long-term stakeholders’ sustainable value.

The Code of Conduct policy document ensures compliance with the regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy, lays out the roles and responsibilities to be carried out with honesty and integrity.
The policy is available on the Company’s website: www.sundram.com.

Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law enforcement
agency for the charges of bribery/corruption:

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023

Directors
KMPs
Employees

Nil

Workers

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Number Remarks Number Remarks
Number of complaints received in relation to issues
of conflict of interest of directors Nil
Number of complaints received in relation to issues
of conflict of interest of KMPs
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Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action taken by regulators /
law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest. Not Applicable

Number of days of accounts payable ((Accounts payable * 365) / Cost of goods / services procured) in the following

format:

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Number of days of accounts payable 74

70

Open-ness of business:

Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties along-with
loans and advances & investments, with related parties, in the following format:

Parameter Metrics Financial Year 2024 | Financial Year 2023
Concentration of Purchases a. Purchases from trading houses as % of total Nil Nil
purchases
b. Number of trading houses where purchases Nil Nil
are made from
c. Purchases from top 10 trading houses as % Nil Nil
of total purchases from trading houses
Concentration of sales a. Sales to dealers / distributors as % of total 11.61% 10.72%
sales
b. Number of dealers / distributors to whom 142 131
sales are made
c. Sales to top 10 dealers / distributors as % of 13.59% 14.53%
total sales to dealers / distributors
Share in RPTs in a. Purchases (Purchases with Related parties / 0.47% 0.25%
total purchases)
b. Sales (Sales to related parties / Total Sales) 2.79% 2.83%
c. Loans & advances (Loans & advances given 89.38% 89.90%
to related parties / Total loans & advances)
d. Investments (Investments in related parties / 89.15% 91.22%
Total investments made)

Leadership Indicators

1)

Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Total number of awareness
programs held

Topic/principles covered under training

% of value chain partners
covered (by value of business
done with partners) under
awareness programs

Multiple sessions

The programs include providing training on processes and topics
such as 5S, Safety, product inspection and handling FMEA, SOP,
7QC tools, QC story and tools, Kaizen, Quality Manual, Kanban,
Green Supply chain, PPAP (Production Part approval process) and

other Quality Management Systems related topics.

Total Quality Management (TQM) training is extended to sub-
contractors to support them in manufacturing and supplying high

quality products.

100% of downstream value
chain partners
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2) Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of the Board? (Yes/
No) If Yes, provide details of the same

Yes, The Code of conduct defines clauses related to conflict of interest, confidentiality maintenance, protection of assets,
and corporate opportunities to avoid exploitation of organisation properties for personal gain.

Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe
Essential Indicators

1) Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental
and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023 I?etalls of |mprove_ment 'n
environment and social aspects

R&D - - -

Capex 6.20% 0.90% Capex investments in renewable energy
projects and other specific technologies
to improve environmental and social
aspects.

2) a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)

The Organization is currently developing a Supplier code of conduct with a comprehensive coverage of all ESG
principles aligned with UNGC and other ESG standards. The Company further intends to prioritize procurement
from local suppliers which shall also be included in the supplier code of conduct.

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs was sourced sustainably? Not Applicable

3) Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end of life,
for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

To substitute usage of plastic packaging, the Company has introduced sustainable packaging where bio-degradable
plastic is used as packaging material. The Company also promotes the usage of gunny bags instead of plastics.
Consumption of virgin packaging materials like cartons and wooden pallets have been greatly reduced by reusing them
wherever possible across all the sites.

Through partnerships with authorized agencies, the Company constantly strives to develop mechanisms of recycling
and reusing hazardous waste generated across its operations. Since majority of the Company’s products are composed
of steel, therefore the MS scrap is re-used as an input material by feeding the scrap into steel melting furnaces. Other
waste are disposed through authorised agencies for reusing / recycling.

4) Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether the
waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control
Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Yes. EPR is applicable to the Company’s activities, since plastics are used in packaging materials in its products. One
of the Company’s manufacturing facilities has partnered with registered plastic waste processors to recycle plastic
waste in conformance to its plan submitted to the Pollution Control Board for fulfillment of its EPR obligation.

Leadership Indicators

1) Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for manufacturing industry)
or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following format?

NIC Code | Name of Product / % of total Boundary for which Life cycle Whether Results communicated
service turnover perspective/assessment was conducted by in public domain
contributed conducted independent (Yes/No)
external agency If yes, provide the web
(Yes/No) link
The organization has not conducted any Life Cycle Assessments (LCA).
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2) If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or disposal of your
products / services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly
describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same.

Name of Product/service | Description of risk/concern | Action taken
Not Applicable

3) Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for manufacturing

industry) or providing services (for service industry).
Recycled or reused input material to total material
Indicate input material
Financial Year 2024 | Financial Year 2023
Not Applicable

4) Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused, recycled, and

safely disposed, as per the following format:
Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Safely Safely
Re-used Recycled disposed Re-used Recycled disposed

Plastics (including - - - - - -
packaging)

E-waste - - - - - -
Hazardous waste - - - - - -
Other waste - - - - - -

5) Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product category
Indicate product category Reclaimed products and their packaging materials as % of total
products sold in respective category
Not Applicable

Principle 3 : Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their
value chains

Essential Indicators

1)

(a) Details of measures for the well-being of employees

% of employees covered by
Category - - - - -
Total | Health insurance Accident Maternity Paternity Benefits Day Care
(A) insurance benefits facilities
Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(B) (B/A) (C) (C/A) (D) (D/A) (E) (E/A) (F) (F/A)
Permanent employees
Male 1,904 1,904 100% 1,904 100% - - 1,904 100% - -
Female 139 139 100% 139 100% 139 100% - - 139 100%
Total 2,043 2,043 100% 2,043 100% 139 100% 1,904 100% 139 100%
Other than Permanent employees
Male - - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - - -
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3)

(b) Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Workers engaged on contractual basis are paid gratuity subject to completion of five years and as per the Company’s
policy. ESl is applicable for employees engaged on contractual basis. For employees on the rolls of the Company,
a separate insurance cover is available covering the employee and family members.

% of workers covered by

Category Total | Health insurance Accident Maternity Paternity Benefits Day Care

(A) insurance benefits facilities

Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(B) (B/A) © (C/A) (D) (D/A) (E) (E/A) (F) (F/A)
Permanent workers
Male 1,013 1,013 100% 1,013 100% - - 1,013 100% - -
Female 2 2 100% 2 100% 2 100% - - 2 100%
Total 1,015 1,015 100% 1,015 100% 2 100% 1,013 100% 2 100%
Other than Permanent workers

Male 5,070 5,070 100% 5,070 100% - - - - - -
Female 1,570 1,570 100% 1,570 100% - - - - 1,570 100%
Total 6,640 6,640 100% 6,640 100% - - - - 1,570 100%

(c) Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and other than
permanent) in the following format:-

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Cost incurred on well-being measures as a
% of total revenue of the Company

0.09%

0.07%

Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year.

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
. emNTéoées No. of workers Deducted and | No. of employees No. of workers Deducted and
Benefits ploy ’ deposited with covered as ’ deposited with
covered as covered as a % - o covered as a % -
a % of total of total workers the authority a % of total of total workers the authority
(Y/N/N.A.) employees (Y/N/N.A.)
employees
PF 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
Gratuity 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
ESI 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y

Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the requirements of
the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167 If not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard.

The Company has engaged persons who are differently abled primarily in office functions. In the corporate office, there
is a provision for lift to facilitate persons approaching office have easy access. Most of the Company’s operations are
out of factories located in ground floor. In the plants, most of the offices are planned to be on the ground floor with clear
identifications for approaching any location.

Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167? If so, provide
a weblink to the policy.

Yes, Equal opportunity employment process is reflected throughout SFL’s policies and procedures. SFL does not
discriminate employment opportunities based on race, colour, religion, caste, community, language, gender, national,
origin, age, or disability.
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5) Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

Permanent employees Permanent workers
Gender Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate
Male 100% 100% 100% 100%
Female 100% 100% 100% 100%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

6) Isthere a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and worker?
If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief

Yes/No
(If yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)
Permanent Workers Yes
Other than permanent workers Yes
Permanent employees Yes
Other than permanent employees Yes

Proper channels have been provided for workers and employees of the Company to discuss any workplace-related
complaints with their factory HR personnel. There is also a provision of an escalation matrix if their concerns are not
satisfactorily resolved, i.e., through immediate supervisor / Head of Department / Unit or Divisional HR heads / Unit
Head / Divisional Presidents / Head HR / Management.

7) Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognized by the listed entity:

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Total No. of employees / % (B/A) Total No. of employees / % (D/C)
Category employees/ | workers in respective employees workers in respective
workers in category, who are part / workers in | category, who are part
respective | of associations or Union respective | of associations or Union
category (A) (B) category (C) (D)
Total Permanent 2,043 Nil - 1,896 Nil -
Employees
- Male 1,904 Nil - 1,773 Nil -
- Female 139 Nil - 123 Nil -
Total Permanent 1,015 934 92% 1,061 941 89%
workers
- Male 1,013 933 92% 1,056 940 89%
- Female 2 1 50% 5 1 20%

8) Details of training given to employees and workers:

FY2023-24 FY2022-23
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Category On Health and On SkiI_I On Health and On Skill upgradation
Total (A) safety measures upgradation Total (A) safety measures
No.(B) | % (B/A) | No.(B) | % (B/A) No.(E) | % (E/D) | No.(F) | % (F/D)
Permanent Employees
Male 1,904 1,904 100% 1,904 100% 1,773 1,738 98% 1,738 98%
Female 139 139 100% 139 100% 123 123 100% 123 100%
Total 2,043 2,043 100% 2,043 100% 1,896 1,861 98% 1,861 98%
Other than Permanent Employees

Male - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - -
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FY2023-24 FY2022-23
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Category On Health and On SkiI_I On Health and On Skill upgradation
Total (A) safety measures upgradation Total (A) safety measures
No.(B) | % (B/A) | No.(B) | % (B/A) No.(E) | % (E/D) | No.(F) | % (F/D)
Permanent Workers
Male 1,013 1,013 100% 1,013 100% 1,056 1,056 100% 1,056 100%
Female 2 2 100% 2 100% 5 5 100% 5 100%
Total 1,015 1,015 100% 1,015 100% 1,061 1,061 100% 1,061 100%
Other than Permanent Workers
Male 5,070 5,070 100% 5,070 100% 5,118 5,118 100% 5,118 100%
Female 1,570 1,570 100% 1,570 100% 1,363 1,363 100% 1,363 100%
Total 6,640 6,640 100% 6,640 100% 6,481 6,481 100% 6,481 100%

1.

Training on health and safety can include general training on health and safety as well as training on specific work-
related hazards, hazardous activities, or hazardous situations. It can also include training on mental health.
Training programs on skill upgradation can include both internal training courses and funding support for external
training or education.

9) Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and workers:

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Category
Total(d) | No.(B) | % (BIA) TotalC) | No.(D) | %(DIC)
Employees
Male 1,904 1,904 100% 1,773 1,773 100%
Female 139 139 100% 123 123 100%
Total 2,043 2,043 100% 1,896 1,896 100%
Workers

Male 1,013 1,013 100% 1,056 1,056 100%
Female 2 2 100% 5 5 100%
Total 1,015 1,015 100% 1,061 1,061 100%

10) Health and safety management system:

a.

Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/ No).
If yes, the coverage such system?

Yes. SFL has implemented occupational health and safety measures across all the manufacturing locations. Most
of the locations are certified for ISO 45001.

What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-routine basis
by the entity?

Each site at SFL has its own safety department and its own safety goals and objectives. The sites follow the Plan,
Do, Check, Act (PDCA) framework in meeting the objectives. Once the PDCA is complete, it is followed by the
assessment of the safety impacts. To identify the safety-related risks across all the sites, the company performs
Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (HIRA).

Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves from such
risks. (Y/N) - Yes

Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare services? (Yes/
No) - Yes
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11) Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

12)

Safety Incident / Number Category Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) (per one Employees Nil Nil
million-person hours worked) Workers 0.05 0.11
Total recordable work-related injuries Employees Nil Nil

Workers 1 3
No. of fatalities Employees Nil Nil

Workers Nil Nil
High consequence work-related injury or ill-health | Employees Nil Nil
(excluding fatalities) Workers Nil Nil

Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy workplace

Company’s top management conducts timely review of all the factories with regards to Health and Safety compliance.
External application is used by factories to monitor legal compliance. The factories also conduct monthly safety audits,
and the critical areas are identified, tracked, and closed. Employees and Workers at all levels receive relevant and
necessary Health and Safety Executive training and education periodically.

13) Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:
Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Pending Pending
Filed during resolution Remarks Filed during resolution Remarks
the year at the end of the year at the end of
year year
Working Conditions NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Health & Safety NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
14) Assessments for the year:
% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or
statutory authorities or third parties)
Health and safety practices 100%
Working Conditions 100%

15

~

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and on significant
risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working conditions.

The workers are involved in case of any safety related incident and their feedback is collected on how the incident could
have been mitigated. The safety teams prepare risk reduction strategies and implement the necessary measures to
enhance the safety standards of the workspace.

Leadership Indicators

1)

Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A) Employees (Y/N)
(B) Workers (Y/N)?

In the event of any unfortunate death of an employee or worker, the Company ensures that the families are covered
through Employees’ Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme to ensure their stability and well-being.

Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and deposited by
the value chain partners.

Every month invoice from the value chain partners is processed upon production of documents evidencing remittance
of statutory dues for the previous month.
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3)

Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury / ill-health / fatalities
(as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been rehabilitated and placed in suitable employment or
whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

No. of employees/workers that are rehabilitated
Total no. of affected employees / workers and placed in suitable employment or whose family
members have been placed in suitable employment
Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023 Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Employees NIL NIL Not Applicable Not Applicable
Workers NIL NIL Not Applicable Not Applicable

Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the management of
career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (Yes/ No)

Yes. During the tenure SFL support employee schemes comprising defined benefit and contribution plans, such as
gratuity, group terminal plan, and provident fund provisions. The Company has a dedicated financial well-being program
which focuses on addressing the career ending resulting from retirement. SFL have also extended the working tenure
of talent resources.

Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed

100%. The Company’s conducts annual supplier audits for all its value chain partners through
Health and safety practices site visits to their respective facilities. The Company reviews their safety standards and working
conditions and ensures that the partners comply with all relevant laws and regulations. In addition
to the audits, the Company also conducts workshops and training programs to help the suppliers
improve the overall ESG performance.

Working Conditions

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from
assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners. Not Applicable

Principle 4 : Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1.

Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

The Company has mapped its internal and external stakeholders based on analyzing the impact of the stakeholders
on the company’s operations. It uses both formal and informal mechanisms to engage with various stakeholders to
understand their concerns and expectations. Individual departments within the organization have roles and responsibilities
identified and defined to engage with various stakeholders. The company has developed a stakeholder engagement
framework that outlines how the company will engage with each stakeholder group to address their needs and concerns
and build mutually beneficial relationships.

List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder group.

Stakeholder Whether Channel of communication Frequency of Purpose and scope of engagement
group identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, engagement including key topics and concerns
vulnerable/ Pamphlet, Advertisement, (Annually/ raised during each engagement
marginalized | Community meetings, notice | Semi-annually/
group (Yes/ board, website), others quarterly/others
No) please specify)
Employees No - Internal communication Continuous High Performance Work Culture
platforms Talent development and retention
- Learning and Development fulfilment of Company’s vision, mission
programs and achieving sustainability objectives
- Engagement initiatives Professional capacity building
Cordial industrial relation
Occupational health and safety and
safe working environment
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Stakeholder Whether Channel of communication Frequency of Purpose and scope of engagement
group identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, engagement including key topics and concerns
vulnerable/ Pamphlet, Advertisement, (Annually/ raised during each engagement
marginalized | Community meetings, notice | Semi-annually/
group (Yes/ board, website), others quarterly/others
No) please specify)
Customers No - Digital platforms and Continuous Product and service quality
applications Complaint resolution
- In - person engagement On-time delivery
- Customer satisfaction survey
- Feedback mechanisms
Suppliers No - In - person engagement Continuous Product and service quality
- Supplier meetings Complaint resolution
- Supplier assessment On-time delivery
- Trainings and workshops
Investors No - Press releases and Need-based / Financial performance
publications Continuous Business updates
- Investor conferences Growth plans
- Annual General Meeting Product innovation pipeline
- Stock Exchange ESG performance
announcements
Regulators No - Mandatory compliance reports | Continuous Statutory compliance requirements:
environmental, social and governance
Local Communities Yes - Corporate Social Need-based Improved access to healthcare,
& NGOs Responsibility initiatives education
Welfare measures and financial
assistance to the underprivileged
Community development measures

Leadership Indicators

1.

Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and social
topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.

Making use of both formal and informal channels, the Company interacts with stakeholders to learn about the economic,
environmental, and social concerns that are important to them. Throughout these interactions, the Company keeps
them informed about the organization’s development and solicit their input, ideas, needs, and concerns.

Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental, and social
topics (Yes / No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on these topics
were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

Yes, SFL’s primary ESG material topics have been determined through stakeholder discussions. Taking the inputs into
consideration, the Company has developed strategies to mitigate the risks arising from critical material topics.

Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/ marginalized
stakeholder groups.

SFL takes part in community engagements predominantly focusing on education and healthcare for vulnerable groups.
In the early 90s, certain requests of the people of Aviyur village near SFL Krishnapuram operations were considered
and SFL’s leadership decided to bring education to the community through development of a school. It was decided to
start an English medium school for the people from the village offering quality education. The Sundram Medical Centre
was established to support and offer free healthcare facilities to the villages near SFL’s Krishnapuram operations. This
medical centre has benefitted over 2500 families by providing them with quality medical care and enabling education
and training for people on health-related aspects. SFL offers financial support for the Sundram Matriculation Higher
Secondary School and Sundram Medical Center.
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Principle 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human rights
Essential Indicators

1) Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, in the
following format:

Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
No. of No. of
Category Total (a) | SMPIOVees/ | o, (g /a) Total(C) | SMPIOVees/ | o p/c)
covered (B) covered (D)
Employees
Permanent 2,043 2,043 100% 1,896 1,896 100%
Other than permanent - - - - - -
Total Workers 2,043 2,043 100% 1,896 1,896 100%
Workers
Permanent 1,015 1,015 100% 1,061 1,061 100%
Other than permanent 6,640 6,640 100% 6,481 6,481 100%
Total Workers 7,655 7,655 100% 7,542 7,542 100%

2) Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Category Total Equal ::v) Minimum | More than Minimum Total Equal to Minimum | More than Minimum
) age wage ©) wage wage
No.(B) | % (B/A)| No.(C) | % (C/A) No.(E) | % (E/D) | No.(F) | % (F/D)
Employees
Permanent 2,043 - - 2,043 100% 1,896 - - 1,896 100%
Male 1,904 - - 1,904 100% 1,773 - - 1,773 100%
Female 139 - - 139 100% 123 - - 123 100%
Workers
Permanent 1,015 - - 1,015 100% 1,061 - - 1,061 100%
Male 1,013 - - 1,013 100% 1,056 - - 1,056 100%
Female 2 - - 2 100% 5 - - 5 100%
g;:‘:\'a:‘gi't‘ 6,640 - -| 6640 100%| 6,481 - -| 6481  100%
Male 5,070 - - 5,070 100% 5,118 - - 5,118 100%
Female 1,570 - - 1,570 100% 1,363 - - 1,363 100%
3) Details of remuneration/salary/wages

As a responsible manufacturing company, SFL believes in fair remuneration for all the employees, regardless of their
level within the organization. The Company indulges in promoting a culture of transparency and openness when it
comes to remuneration. The Company’s compensation practices are regularly reviewed to ensure that they are aligned
with SFL’s values and that they are fair and equitable across all levels of the organization.
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7)

a) Median remuneration / wages: T in crores
Male Female
Median remuneration Median remuneration
Number / salary / wages of Number / salary / wages of
respective category respective category
Board of Directors (BOD) 4 0.14 4 2.67
Key Managerial Personnel 2 0.59 - -
Employees other than BoD and 1,902 0.06 139 0.06
KMP
Workers 1,013 0.07 2 0.02

b) Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity, in the following format:-

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

total wages

Gross wages paid to females as % of

3.65

3.30

Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused
or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No) - Yes

Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues

Proper channels have been provided for workers and employees to discuss any workplace-related complaints with their
individual HR. There is also a provision of an escalation matrix if their concerns are not satisfactorily resolved.

Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Pending Pending
Filed during | resolution Remarks Filed during | resolution Remarks
the year at the end of the year at the end of
year year

Sexual Harassment

Discrimination at workplace

Child Labour

Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour

Wages

Other than human rights issues

Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassments of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013, in the following format:

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment of Women

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 Nil Nil
(POSH)

Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees / workers Nil Nil
Complaints on POSH upheld NA NA

Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.

The Company’s policy protects complainants wishing to raise a concern about any serious irregularities within the
Company. Employees are assured that they will not be identified as the complainant and that the information received

is truly confidential.
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9)

The Code of Conduct also includes provisions that address topics such as discrimination, harassment, ethical behavior
among others that fosters a sense of trust and safety, promotes, and enhances the overall reputation of an organization.

Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes / No): Yes

10) Assessments for the year:

SFL strictly prohibits any forms of Child labor, forced labor, and ensures the same as a prerequisite to value chain
partners. In the key agreements, the Company generally incorporates clauses that mandates value chain partners to
bind themselves for ensuring compliances with all the laws applicable to them.

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities
or third parties)

Child labour 100%
Forced/involuntary labour 100%
Sexual harassment 100%
Discrimination at workplace 100%
Wages -

Others — please specify -

11) Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the

assessments at Question 10 above. Not Applicable

Leadership Indicators

1)

5)

Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights grievances/complaints.
There has been no such event requiring the Company to modify / introduce a process as a result of addressing human
rights grievances / complaints.

Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due diligence conducted.

The coverage of human rights policy being exercised at the Company is applicable to all stakeholders and not merely
restricted to the employees in the workplace.

Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons
with Disabilities Act, 20167

Yes. The Company has engaged persons who are differently abled primarily in office functions. In the corporate office,
there is a provision for lift to facilitate persons approaching offices have easy access. Most of the Company’s operations
are out of factories located on the ground floor. In the plants, most of the offices are planned to be on the ground floor
with clear identifications for approaching any location.

Details on assessment of value chain partners

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed
Child Labor 100%
Forced/involuntary Labor 100%

Sexual Harassment -

Discrimination at workplace -

Wages -

Others - please specify -

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the
assessments at Question 4 above - Not Applicable
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Principle 6 : Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

Essential Indicators
Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

1.

Parameter

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

From renewable sources (GJ)

Total electricity consumption (A) 4,71,968 3,88,927
Total fuel consumption (B) - -
Energy consumption through other sources (C) - -
Total energy consumed from renewable sources (A+B+C) 4,71,968 3,88,927
From non-renewable sources (GJ)

Total electricity consumption (D) 5,17,541 5,75,348
Total fuel consumption (E) 2,70,036 2,86,419
Energy consumption through other sources (F) - -
Total energy consumed from non-renewable sources (D+E+F) (GJ) 7,87,577 8,61,767
Total energy consumed (A+B+C+D+E+F) (GJ) 12,59,545 12,50,693
Tota energy consumedFevens fom aperations) 0.0000257 0.0000254
Energy intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity

(PPP) 0.00058745 0.00058139
(Total energy consumed / Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Energy intensity in terms of physical output 411.89 422.96

Energy intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name

of the external agency - Not Applicable

Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve
and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme
have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

Not Applicable, since the Company is not identified as designated consumer.

Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water

(ii) Groundwater 2,06,554 2,083,882
(iii) Third party water 4,25,222 4,00,830
(iv) Seawater / desalinated water - -
(v) Others- Rainwater 3,826 1,718
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 6,35,602 6,06,431
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 6,29,227 6,00,171
Waterllntensny per rupee of turnover (Total water consumption / Revenue from 0.0000128 0.00000122
operations)

Water intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity

(PPP) 0.000293 0.000279
(Total water consumption / Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Water intensity in terms of physical output 205.76 202.97

Water intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name

of the external agency - Not Applicable.
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4. Provide the following details related to water discharged:-

Parameter

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in Kilo liters)

(i) To Surface water

- No treatment

- With treatment — please specify level of treatment

(ii) To Groundwater

- No treatment

- With treatment — please specify level of treatment

(iii) To Seawater

- No treatment

- With treatment — please specify level of treatment

(iv) Sent to third parties

- No treatment

- With treatment — please specify level of treatment 6,375 6,260
(v) Others

- No treatment - -

- With treatment — please specify level of treatment - -
Total Water discharged (in Kilo liters) 6,375 6,260

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name

of the external agency - Not Applicable.

5. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and

implementation.

Yes. The Company has implemented Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) across most of the units, eliminating discharge of
waste water. At Uttarakhand Unit, to comply with the common effluent treatment plant (CETP) requirements to provide
water to the nearby locality, the treated waste water is being discharged to CETP for further use. The ZLD system makes
use of Effluent treatment plants, Ultra filtration, Reverse Osmosis, Multiple Effect Evaporator and ATFD (Agitated thin

film drier) to effectively recycle water and eliminate discharge.

6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Please specify

Financial Year

Financial Year

Parameter unit 2024 2023
NOx Tons 93.97 84.53
SOx Tons 47.07 45.77
Particulate matter (PM) Tons 86.55 83.50

Persistent organic pollutants (POP)

Volatile organic compounds (VOC)

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP)

Others - please specify

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name

of the external agency - Not Applicable
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7.

Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter

Unit

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into CO2,
CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of
CO, equivalent

21,425

22,652

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into CO2,
CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of
CO, equivalent

1,17,884

1,31,052

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of
Turnover

(Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions / Revenue from
operations)

0.00000284

0.00000312

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity per rupee
of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)
(Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions / Revenue from
operations adjusted for PPP)

0.000065

0.000071

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity in terms of
physical output

45.56

51.98

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity (optional)

— the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

tCO2e/ton of
production

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name

of the external agency - Not Applicable

Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details.

Yes. The Company has implemented measures to lower scope 1 emissions by reducing the dependency on Diesel
and LPG through a variety of initiatives such as the use of battery-operated forklifts instead of their diesel counterparts.
The Company has also reduced its Scope 2 emission intensity through energy efficiency measures including process
modifications and retrofits at the manufacturing locations and has increased the capacity of the onsite solar plant by
5.78 MW in FY24. The company procures around 47.25% of the power from offsite renewable sources.

Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

(Total waste generated / Revenue from operations)

Plastic waste (A) 75.00 56.00
E-waste (B) 2.38 4.02
Bio-medical waste (C) 0.015 0.016
Construction and demolition waste (D) - -
Battery waste (E) 1.91 5.91
Radioactive waste (F) - -
Used Oil (G) 516.00 411.00
Oil laden waste (H) 513.00 561.00
Metal scrap (I) 21,606.00 21,692.00
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (J) (Empty discarded barrel) 6,709.00 6,687.00
e pazartoss vase genaated (0
Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G + H+l+J+K) 32,958.30 33,031.95
Waste intensity per rupee of turnover 0.000000672 0.000000671

(PPP)

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity

(Total waste generated / Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

0.000015372

0.000015355
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10.

11.

12.

Parameter Financial Year 2024 | Financial Year 2023

Waste intensity in terms of physical output 10.78 11.17

Waste intensity (optional)
— the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or
other recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Recycled 29,283.79 29,528.99
(ii) Re-used - -
(iii) Other recovery operations 511.50 539.94

Total 29,795.29 30,068.93

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Incineration 0.01 0.02
(if) Landfilling 3,163.00 3,233.00
(iii) Other disposal operations - -
Total 3,163.01 3,233.02

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name
of the external agency - Not Applicable

Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted by
your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices
adopted to manage such wastes.

Through partnerships with authorized agencies, the Company constantly strives to develop mechanisms of recycling and
reusing hazardous waste generated across its operations. Since the majority of the Company’s products are composed
of steel, the MS scrap generated is being recycled and re-used by feeding the scrap into steel melting furnaces.
The company’s manufacturing operations have been optimized to reduce the usage of hazardous chemicals in the
processes. Hazardous waste like chemical sludge, waste or residues containing oil are directed to cement industries
for co-incineration as per Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board (TNPCB) norms.

If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife sanctuaries,
biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals /
clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

Whether the conditions of environmental approval / clearance are
being complied with? (Y/N)
If no, the reasons thereof and corrective action taken, if any.

S. Location of operations/ Type of
No. offices operations

Not Applicable

Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the
current financial year:

EIA Whether conducted by Results
Name and brief details of e independent external | communicated in | Relevant Web
. Notification Date . . .
project No agency public domain link
: (Yes / No) (Yes / No)
Not Applicable
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13. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water

(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and
rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

Any fines / penalties /
action taken by regulatory Corrective action taken, if
agencies such as pollution any
control boards or by courts

Specify the law / regulation /| Provide details
S. No. guidelines which was not of the non-
complied with compliance

Not Applicable

Yes. The Company is compliant with all applicable environmental laws and regulations in India. To ensure compliance,
the Company has implemented a comprehensive environmental management system that monitors environmental
performance and enhances the decision-making processes.

Leadership Indicators

1.

Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres):

The Company recognizes the importance of water resources and the urgent need to protect and conserve them. As
a responsible organization, the Company is committed to taking proactive steps to reduce the water footprint through
investments in technologies and practices for optimizing water use efficiency. The Company works closely with
stakeholders and local communities to raise awareness about water scarcity, encourage responsible water use, and
support initiatives that enhance water availability and quality.

Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity:
SFL is in the process of assessing its scope 3 emissions based on the GHG Protocol. The Company is developing the

necessary capabilities to account the emissions of the applicable scope 3 categories.

With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 11 of Essential Indicators above, provide details
of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-with prevention and remediation
activities.

Not Applicable.

If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve resource
efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste generated, please provide details of the same
as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format:

S. e Details of the initiative (Web-link, if e
Initiative undertaken . . Outcome of the initiative
No any, may be provided along-with summary)
1 Improve and sustain the | Merger of Hosur CE-Il plant EB service connection at| 1. 810 kVA demand reduction saving
Power factor to control the | 11kV with Main plant EB service connection at 33 kV % 54 lakhs.
Maximum Demand resulting in multiple benefits 2. 1.000 kVA transformer switched off

reducing constant losses saving
0.31 lakh units (equivalent to 25
tCO2e)

3. Reducing Group captive power

wheeling distribution losses by
1.23%

Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/ web link.

The Company has a dedicated Emergency Response team (ERT) across all the sites to address all potential risks and
ensure the continuity of operations and protect the business’s bottom line. The ERT members are trained on potential
incidents and mock drills are conducted to identify the gaps and ensure the right process is followed.

Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity. What mitigation
or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard.

There is no significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of SFL.
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7. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for environmental

impacts.

Supplier assessment includes aspects such as environmental, legal compliance, health, and safety, training, business
continuity, financial sustainability, and product quality, among many others. The Organization is currently developing
a Supplier code of conduct with a comprehensive coverage of all ESG principles aligned with UNGC. The Company
further intends to prioritize procurement from local suppliers.

Principle 7 : Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner
that is responsible and transparent

Essential Indicators

1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.

SFL is associated with thirteen trade and industry associations

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of such body)
the entity is a member of/ affiliated to:-

l\‘lsc.). Name of the trade and industry chambers/ associations ReacQS(;fot;';ctjii:;c(jsi?;:/s’tlrgt%hnzr:;bers/
1 Automotive Component Manufacturers Association of India National
2 | Madras Chamber of Commerce & Industry State
3 The Confederation of Indian Industry National
4 Employer's Federation of South India National
5 The Indian Roads & Transport National
6 Indo American Chamber of Commerce National
7 | Indo German Chamber of Commerce National
8 Engineering Export Promotion Council National
9 Federation of Indian Export National
10 | Export Promotion Council of EOUs and SEZ National
11 | Indian Wind Power Association National
12 | Tamil Nadu Electricity Consumer’s Association State
13 | The Aerospace Industry Development Association of Tamil Nadu State

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct by the entity,
based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

Name of Authority Brief of the case

Corrective action taken

Leadership Indicators

1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:

S. Nos.

Public polic Method resorted | Whether information
advocgtedy for such is available in public
advocacy domain (Yes/No)

Frequency of review by board
(Annually/Half yearly/Quarterly/
Others please specify)

Web link if
available

The Company has not advocated any public policy
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Principle 8 : Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Essential Indicators

1)

Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year

Whether conducted Results

Name and brief
details of project

SIA Notification
Number

Date of notification

by independent
external agency
(Yes/No)

communicated in
public domain
(Yes/No)

Relevant web link

Not Applicable

Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being undertaken by your
entity, in the following format:

Number of

S. No.

Name of project
for which R&R
is ongoing

State District

project affected
families (PAFs)

% of PAFs
covered by R&R

Amount paid to
PAFs in FY (INR)

Not Applicable

Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

The Company’s HR teams from the respective manufacturing units are tasked with receiving and redressing grievances
of the communities close to the units. Any major grievances are taken up by the Company’s corporate HR team.

Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

Financial Year 2024

Financial Year 2023

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers

Directly from within India

suppliers.

SFL procures from vendors based on quality, cost, and delivery
aspects. SFL strives for a fair, transparent, and inclusive,
procurement process that provides equal opportunities for all

Job creation in smaller towns- Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or workers employed
on permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following locations, as % of total wage cost:

Location Financial Year 2024 Financial Year 2023
Rural 22.92% 21.99%
Semi-Urban 7.05% 8.98%
Urban 17.98% 18.04%
Metropolitan 52.05% 50.99%

(Place to be categorized as per RBI Classification System - rural / semi-urban / urban / metropolitan)

Leadership Indicators

1.

2.

Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact Assessments
(Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):

Details of negative social impact identified | Corrective actions taken

Not Applicable

Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational districts as
identified by government bodies:

S. No. State Aspirational district Amount spent (INR)
% 1.70 Crore for Krishna Educational Society (KES)
1 Tamil Nadu Virudhunagar [Sundram Matriculation Higher Secondary School], Aviyur,
Virudhunagar District
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(a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers comprising
marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No).

No, the Company does not have a preferential procurement policy for the marginalized/vulnerable group. SFL
procures from vendors based on quality, cost, and delivery aspects. Preference of the customers are also taken
into consideration for procurement. SFL strives for a fair, transparent, and inclusive, procurement process that
provides equal opportunities for all suppliers.

(b)

From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?

Not Applicable
(c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?

Not Applicable

Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your entity (in the current
financial year), based on traditional knowledge

Benefit shared
(Yes/No)

Intellectual property based on
traditional knowledge

Owned/Acquired
(Yes/No)

Not Applicable

Basis of calculating benefit

S. No. share

Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related disputes
wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

Name of Authority Brief of the case Corrective actions taken

Not Applicable

Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

s Number of person % of beneficiaries
Nc;. CSR Project benefitted frpm the CSR | from .vulrlwerable and
project marginalized groups
1 Krishna Educational Society (KES) [Funding for Sundram Matriculation 467 100%
Higher Secondary School]
2 Banyan Academy for Leadership in Mental Health (BALM)-SFL Centre 353 -
for Social Action and Research
3 Sugun Thomas Foundation- Mentoring for economically challenged 26 100%
students
4 Mithra Trust -Conceptual framework and actionable tools for an individual 491 -
to work through their feelings during emotional stress
Clarke School for Deaf- Supporting specially abled students 78 100%
NAPS/ Apprentice Scheme- Stipend paid to apprentices towards skill - -
building
7 Uttarakhand School Project 50 -
Vaastu Foundation- Medical Welfare Project - -
Ray of Light Foundation- Holistic Treatment of Paediatric Cancer 5 100%
10 | MIOT Hospitals, Chennai- Children’s Heart Internationale-Funding for 28 100%
emergency and trauma care
11 | Cancer Institute- Support setup of a 3D live cell facility - -
12 | Vijayaganga Trust - Support purchase equipment/ machineries for aiding - -
Orthopaedics surgery and Mammogram
13 | Gramalaya Trust - Construction of 75 smart toilets in Kodamangulam 75 -
Village (Sanitation) for the benefit of Women, senior citizens, and young
girls in the village
14 | Manjappai Vending Machine - Environmental sustainability which would - -
help in the implementation of single use plastic bag ban policy
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No.

CSR Project

Number of person
benefitted from the CSR
project

% of beneficiaries
from vulnerable and
marginalized groups

15 | Production of a documentary on Wildlife Tamil Nadu

16 | Restoration of Rangappa Pond in Thenmelpakkam village

17 | Thirumayyar Charitable Trust - (Sri Sathyamurthi Perumal Temple)

18 |HelpAge India

800 Families and 20 Old

equipped high school and Pre-University College

age Homes
19 | Kambikudi Panchayat Union Middle School and Aviyur Govt Higher 485 -
Secondary School — Support construction of a new borewell
20 |Contribution to Yoga Deepika — Support for construction of a fully 169 -

Principle 9 : Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner

Essential indicators

1)

Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

SFL conducts customer satisfaction surveys annually on the basis of QCD (Quality, Cost and Delivery) aspects which
includes quality, delivery, logistics, and new product development. The Company reviews customer feedbacks and
prioritizes addressing the complaints within seven days with detailed action plans. Trends of customer satisfaction is

also tracked and monitored regularly for all manufacturing units.

Turnover of products and/or services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information about:

As a percentage to total turnover

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product

Safe and responsible usage

Recycling and/or safe disposal

with relevant safety.

The Company’s products comply with all relevant statutory
requirements. They are regularly tested to ensure compliance

Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

Financial Year 2024

Received Pending Received Pending
during the | resolution Remarks durina the | resolution Remarks
9 at the end of 9 at the end of
year year
year year

Financial Year 2023

Data privacy

Advertising

Cyber-security

Delivery of essential
services

Restrictive Trade Practices

Unfair Trade Practices

Other

Not Applicable

SFL supplies domestic
and global OEMs and
after market segments.
The materials supplied by
SFL then goes into end
products manufactured
by the OEMs. There is no
direct sale to consumers.

Not Applicable

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Number

Reasons for recall

Voluntary recalls

Forced recalls

Not Applicable
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Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If available,
provide a web-link of the policy.

Yes, The Company has developed an information security policy which has been made available to all the employees.
The policy guides the employees about the principles to protect critical information assets of the organization from any
data breaches.

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery of essential
services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty / action
taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.

There have been no issues related to advertising, and delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy
of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls.
Provide the following information relating to the data breaches:

a. Number of instances of data breaches: Nil
b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers: Not Applicable
c. Impact, if any, of the data breaches: Not Applicable

Leadership Indicators

1)

Channels / platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide web link, if
available).

Information regarding the products and services can be accessed via the link mentioned below:-
www.sundram.com

Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or services

SFL supplies to domestic and global OEMs and after market segments. The materials supplied by SFL then goes
into end products manufactured by the OEMs. To the extent legally required, SFL captures the details about safe and
responsible usage of products it manufactures.

Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services.

SFL supplies to domestic and global OEMs and after market segments. The materials supplied by SFL then goes into
end products manufactured by the OEMs. Consequently, there is no interaction with the consumers directly.

Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per local laws? (Yes/No/
Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction
relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a
whole? (Yes/No)

Yes. SFL carries out customer satisfaction (domestic and global OEMs) surveys across all manufacturing locations to
collect feedback on aspects such as quality, cost, and delivery.
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BSR &Co.LLP KRM Tower, 1%t & 2™ Floors, No. 1, Harrington Road,
Chartered Accountants Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015

To the Members of Sundram Fasteners Limited
1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 14 October, 2022.

2. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sundram Fasteners Limited (“the
Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of regulation
46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (“Listing Regulations”) pursuant to the Listing
Agreement of the Company with Stock Exchanges.

Management’s Responsibility

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the listing regulations is the responsibility
of the Company’s Management including the preparation and maintenance of all the relevant records and documents.
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure
the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility
4. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the

compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

5. Pursuantto the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations for the
year ended 31 March, 2024.

6. We conducted our examination of the above corporate governance compliance by the Company in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and Guidance Note on Certification
of Corporate Governance both issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"), in so far as
applicable for the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements
of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control

for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

Opinion
8. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

9. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

10. The certificate is addressed and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling the Company
to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other
purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration number: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No. 203491

UDIN: 24203491BKCQPN8600

Place:Chennai
Date: May 22, 2024
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ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURES AS SPECIFIED UNDER REGULATION 34 READ WITH SCHEDULE V OF SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

A. Related Party Disclosures

The necessary disclosures as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015) and the Indian Accounting Standards are provided in the
financial statement.

Details of transactions with entities belonging to the promoter / promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more
shareholding in the Company:

% in Crores
Nature of transaction TVS Sundram Fasteners Private Limited
Services received 3.66
Sale of Goods 114.08
Dividend paid 58.33
Due to the Company 27.15

Due by the Company -

B. Management Discussion And Analysis
Management Discussion and Analysis is provided in the Annual Report in Page Nos. 35 to 41.

Necessary disclosures relating to accounting treatment as prescribed in the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) are provided
in the financial statements.

C. Corporate Governance Report
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company truly believes in independence, responsibility, transparency, professionalism, accountability and code of
ethics, which are the basic principles of corporate governance. The Company always stressed in achieving optimum
performance at all levels by adopting and adhering to best corporate governance practices. The Company has focused on
corporate governance as a means to maximize long-term stakeholders’ value through disciplined and sustained growth
and value creation.

The Company strives hard to achieve establishment of internal controls and risk management, internal and external
communications, high standards of safety, health and environment management, accounting fidelity, product and service
quality. The Company also believes that for a Company to succeed, it must consistently maintain commendable standards
of corporate conduct towards its employees, customers, society and other stakeholders.

2. Board of Directors
Composition of the Board
The Board has eight Directors, with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Managing Director

and Joint Managing Director hold Executive positions. There are six Non-Executive Directors, of whom four are independent.
The Non-Executive Directors, use independent judgment in the Board deliberations and decisions.

The Company immensely benefits from the professional expertise of the Independent Directors in their capacity as
Independent Professional / Business Executives and through their invaluable experience in achieving corporate excellence.
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Directors’ attendance record and directorships, committee meetings held during the year under review

Attendance No. of Comrnittee .Member#ships Name of the listed entities
Name and Category of the DIN Directorships held (including SFL) in which the person is a
Director in Companies Chairman / Director and the category of
Board | AGM | (including SFL)® Chairperson Member Directorship
Sri Suresh Krishna 00046919 5 Yes 2 - - Sundram Fasteners Limited
Non-Executive Director Chairman
Chairman
Ms Arathi Krishna 00517456 5 Yes 1 - 1 Sundram Fasteners Limited
Executive Director Managing Director
Managing Director
Ms Arundathi Krishna 00270935 5 Yes 2 - 1 Sundram Fasteners Limited
Executive Director Joint Managing Director
Joint Managing Director
Ms Preethi Krishna 02037253 5 Yes 1 - - Sundram Fasteners Limited
Non-Executive Non-Executive Non-
Non-Independent Director Independent Director
Sri B Muthuraman 00004757 5 Yes 1 1 1 Sundram Fasteners Limited
Non-Executive Non-Executive
Independent Director Independent Director
Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis 01680435 4 Yes 2 - 2 (i) Sundram Fasteners
Non-Executive Limited
Independent Director (i) India Nippon Electricals
Limited
Non-Executive
Independent Director
Sri S Mahalingam 00121727 5 Yes 7 2 5 (i) Sundram Fasteners
Non-Executive Limited
Independent Director (i) JSW Steel Limited
(iii) Sundaram Finance
Limited
Non-Executive
Independent Director
Dr Nirmala Lakshman 00141632 5 Yes 1 1 1 Sundram Fasteners Limited
Non-Executive Non-Executive
Independent Director Independent Director

@ Excludes private, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

# Includes only the membership of Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

None of the Directors is a member of more than ten Board-level Committees or Chairman of more than five such Committees,
as required under Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, across all companies in which they are directors.
None of the Independent Directors are whole-time directors of any listed entity.

Number of Board Meetings

There were five Board Meetings during the year ended March 31, 2024 which were held on April 4, 2023, May 4, 2023,
July 27, 2023, November 3, 2023 and February 2, 2024. The maximum interval between any two meetings was not more
than 120 days.

Disclosure on relationships between directors inter se

Sri Suresh Krishna, Chairman is the relative of Ms Arathi Krishna, Managing Director, Ms Arundathi Krishna, Joint Managing
Director and Ms Preethi Krishna, Director.
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Number of shares held by Non-Executive Directors in the Company as at March 31, 2024

Name of the Director Number of Equity Shares % holding
Sri Suresh Krishna 42,440 0.02
Ms Preethi Krishna - -
Sri B Muthuraman - -

Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis - -

Sri S Mahalingam - -

Dr. Nirmala Lakshman - -

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments.

Familiarization programme

Details about the familiarization programme for the financial year 2023-2024 can be accessed under the weblink:
https://www.sundram.com/pdf/SFLFamiliarisationprogramme2024.pdf

Chart setting out the skills / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business
and sectors for it to function effectively:

Name of the Director Category of Directorship Nature of expertise in specific functional area
Sri Suresh Krishna Chairman :
General Management / Marketing / Sales /
Ms Arathi Krishna Managing Director Project Management/ Risk Management/Human
S . . . Resources
Ms Arundathi Krishna Joint Managing Director
Ms Preethi Krishna Non-Executive Non-Independent Director | Corporate Strategy and General Management

Sri B Muthuraman

Engineering / Corporate Strategy / Finance /
. . General Management / Marketing / Sales / Risk

Non-Executive Independent Directors .

Sri S Mahalingam Management / Project Management / Human

Resources / Foreign Exchange

Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis

Dr Nirmala Lakshman

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

Detailed reason for the resignation of an Independent Director who resigns before the expiry of his/ her tenure along with
a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided.

There was no such event during the year under review.

3. Audit Committee
Brief description of terms of reference

The Terms of Reference / Role of the Audit Committee cover the matters specified under Regulation 18 and Part C of
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 which includes, among
other things, the following:-

¢ Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process.

¢ Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors.
¢ Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report.
e Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

¢ Internal financial controls and risk management systems.

* Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems
and reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function.

¢ Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
¢ Reviewing the statement of significant related party transactions.
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In addition to the above, the Audit Committee looks into controls and security of the Company’s critical IT applications, the
internal and statutory audit reports of all units / divisions and reviews deviations, if any.

Meetings, Composition of Audit Committee of the Board, and the attendance record of Committee Members
The Audit Committee met four times during the year on May 4, 2023, July 27, 2023, November 3, 2023 and February 2, 2024.

Name of the Committee Member Category No. of meetings attended

Chairman of the Committee

St B Muthuraman (Independent Director) 4
Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis Independent Director 3
Sri S Mahalingam Independent Director 4

Sri G Anand Babu, Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary acted as Secretary of the Committee. The Internal
Auditor and the Statutory Auditors were invited to attend and participate at meetings of the Committee. Sri B Muthuraman,
Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the 60" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on June 29, 2023 through
Video Conference (‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’).

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Brief description of terms of reference

The NRC had approved the Policy on Board diversity appropriate to the business requirements of the Company. The scope
of the Remuneration policy and terms of the reference of NRC is as per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part
D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, which includes the following matters:-

e The criteria which a person should possess to be considered eligible for appointment as an Independent Director or
senior managerial personnel.

e Criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors.
e The criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.
* Remuneration for the Directors.

* Remuneration for the Key Managerial Personnel (i.e. Managing Director, Whole-time Director, Manager, CEO, CFO
and Company Secretary); and

* Remuneration of senior management personnel and other employees.

Meetings, Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and the attendance record of Committee
Members

The Committee met once during the financial year on May 1, 2023.

The attendance of each Member of the Committee is given below:

Name of the Committee Member Category No. of meetings attended
. Chairman of the Committee
St B Muthuraman (Independent Director) !
Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis Independent Director 1
Ms. Preethi Krishna Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 1

Sri B Muthuraman, Chairman of the Committee was present at the 60" AGM held on June 29, 2023 through VC / OAVM.

Sri G Anand Babu, Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary acted as Secretary of the Committee at its meeting
held on May 1, 2023.

Performance Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors,
Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation encompass the following
areas relevant to their functioning as independent directors, member of Board or Committees of the Board.
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e Attendance to the Board and Committee meetings, and active participation thereof.

e Flow of information to the Board.

e Experience and competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations.

* How their performance is reflected in the overall engagement of the Board and its Committees with the Company.

5. Remuneration to Directors for the year ended March 31, 2024 % in Lakhs
_ Sitting Salaries N Compan_y’s Contribution | Commission and
Name of the Director Fee and Perquisite | to Provident Eund and .Performanc.e Total
Allowances Superannuation Fund | Linked Incentive
Sri Suresh Krishna N.A. N.A. 27.43 N.A. N.A. 27.43
Ms Arathi Krishna N.A. 94.80 129.71 17.70 515.00| 757.21
Ms Arundathi Krishna N.A. 95.16 109.23 14.59 515.00| 733.98
Ms Preethi Krishna 3.10 N.A. N.A. N.A. 10.00 13.10
Sri B Muthuraman 3.70 N.A. N.A. N.A. 10.00 13.70
Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis 3.00 N.A. N.A. N.A. 10.00 13.00
Sri S Mahalingam 3.90 N.A. N.A. N.A. 10.00 13.90
Dr Nirmala Lakshman 3.30 N.A. N.A. N.A. 10.00 13.30

The tenure of office of Managing Directors is for five years from their respective dates of appointment. The sitting fees
paid to Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the commission paid to Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors are within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. Sitting fee indicated above also
includes payment for Board-level committee meetings and Independent Directors meetings. There is no separate provision
for payment of severance fees. The notice period is mutually agreed between the Directors and the Board. The Company
does not have any stock option scheme. Other than above mentioned fees and commission, no other remuneration was
paid to Non-Executive Directors. The Company has no pecuniary relationship / transaction with any of the Non-Executive
Directors other than those disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report. The criteria of making payments to non-executive
Directors can be accessed under the web link: http:/sundram.com/investor.php

6. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
The Committee met two times during the year on July 27, 2023 and February 2, 2024.

Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board and the attendance record of Committee Members

Name of the Committee Member Category No. of meetings
attended
Dr Nirmala Lakshman Chairperson of the Qommlttee 2
(Independent Director)
Ms Arathi Krishna Managing Director 2
Ms Arundathi Krishna Joint Managing Director 2

Sri G Anand Babu, Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer and Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee deals inter alia with redressal of investors/shareholders complaints relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt
of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends.

Details of Complaints received in SCORES during the year:

No. of Shareholder's Complaints . No. of Complaints not Number of Complaints
. . ) : No. of Complaints . . .
received during the financial solved to the satisfaction of remaining unresolved and
resolved .
year Shareholders pending
3 3 - -

79



Sundram Fasteners Limited

7. Risk Management Committee
Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of Reference / role of Risk Management Committee is to monitor and review the risk management plan and
such other functions, as it may deem fit, including the function covering cyber security, commodity risks etc. In addition, the
Committee’s role specifically include:-

i. Toreview and approve the risk management policy of the Company and to make amendments thereto from time to time.

ii. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of risk
management systems.

iii. To periodically review the risk management policy, by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity.

iv. To identify methodology, processes and systems to monitor and evaluate risk.

v. Toidentify internal and external risks in particular, including financial, operational, sectoral, department-wise risk, business
sustainability particularly, ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) related risks, information, cyber security risks.

Meetings, Composition of Risk Management Committee of the Board, and the attendance record of Committee Members

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the year on August 10, 2023 and February 2, 2024.

Name of the Committee Member Category No. of meetings attended
S Managing Director
Ms Arathi Krishna (Chairperson of the Committee) 2
Ms Arundathi Krishna Joint Managing Director 2
Sri S Mahalingam Independent Director 2
Ms Preethi Krishna Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 2

Sri G Anand Babu, Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary acted as Secretary of the Committee.

8. Senior Management

In accordance with the criteria laid down in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has identified 11 employees as Senior Management Personnel across the functions in addition to the Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and the employees being one level below the Managing Director.

The employees head functions such as Operations, Marketing, Information Technology, Direct Taxation, Internal Audit,
Indirect Taxation, Legal, Human Resource and Treasury. During the year under review, there was no change in the Senior
Management.

9. Independent Directors and compliance of their obligations

All the independent directors have fulfilled their obligations as specified under Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was
held on March 8, 2024, to review the frequency and procedures for conducting the separate meetings of the Independent
Directors, to review the performance of Non-independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the Board as whole. The
Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management
and the Board and its Committees, which is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform and discharge their duties.
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Attendance of the Independent Directors present at the meeting

Sri B Muthuraman, Sri Heramb R Hajarnavis, Sri S Mahalingam and Dr Nirmala Lakshman are the Independent Directors
of the Company as on March 31, 2024. All the Independent Directors attended the meeting.

10. General Meetings

Details of the location, date and time of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) and the details of special resolutions
passed at the AGMs or passed by Postal Ballot:

Year Location Date Time

2023 29-06-2023 10:00 a.m. IST

AGM held through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / R ]
2022 Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM') 29-06-2022 | 10:00 am. IST

2021 20-08-2021 10:00 a.m. IST

Special resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held for the financial year 2022-23 on June 29, 2023 to
approve the re-appointment of Dr Nirmala Lakshman (DIN: 00141632) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company for the second consecutive term of 5 (five) years commencing from September 20, 2023 to September 19,
2028.

No special resolution was passed during the Annual General Meeting held on August 20, 2021 and June 29, 2022.

No Resolution was passed through postal ballot during the year under review.

As on the date of the report, there is no proposal to pass any special resolution through postal ballot.

11. Means of Communication

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in widely circulating national and local dailies such as Business
Line, The Hindu (English) and Makkal Kural (Tamil) newspapers. These are not sent individually to the shareholders.

The financial results are displayed on the website of the Company - www.sundram.com and also in the websites of BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company’s website also displays official press releases and
other disclosures made to the Stock Exchanges.

No presentation was made to the institutional investors / analysts.

12. General Shareholder Information

a | Annual General Meeting Day and Date: Friday, August 9, 2024
Date, Time and Venue Time: 10.00 a.m. IST

Venue: The Company is conducting the meeting through Video Conferencing
(VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) as set out in the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

b |Financial year April 2024 to March 2025

® First Quarter Results — on or before August 14, 2024

® Second Quarter/Half-yearly Results — on or before November 14, 2024
® Third Quarter Results — on or before February 14, 2025

® Annual Results for the year ending March 31, 2025 - on or before
May 30, 2025

The timelines are subject to any extension of time that may be granted by the
Regulators.
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¢ |Dividend Payment date for
dividends declared during the
Financial Year 2023-2024

Second Interim Dividend for the Financial year 2022-2023 was declared
by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 4, 2023 and paid on
June 1, 2023.

First Interim Dividend for the Financial year 2023-2024 was declared by the
Board of Directors at its meeting held on November 3, 2023 and paid on
December 1, 2023.

d |Name and address of Stock
Exchange(s) at which company’s
shares are listed

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:

BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor, Plot No.C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
(East), Mumbai — 400 051

The Company has paid the annual listing fees due to the Stock Exchanges for
the financial year 2023-2024.

e | Stock Code

500 403 — BSE Limited (BSE)
SUNDRMFAST — National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

f | Market Price Data — High, Low during each month in last financial year

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Month Price - Index- Sensex Price - Index- Nifty

High Low High Low High Low High Low
Apr, 2023 |1,069.95| 973.00 | 61,209.46 | 58,793.08 | 1,070.00 972.65 | 18,089.15 17,312.75
May, 2023 |1,139.80| 1,028.20 | 63,036.12 | 61,002.17 | 1,140.00 |1,028.40| 18,662.45 18,042.40
June, 2023 |1,234.00| 1,099.40 | 64,768.58 | 62,359.14 | 1,234.80 |1,098.55| 19,201.70 18,464.55
July, 2023 (1,275.00|1,185.00 | 67,619.17 | 64,836.16 | 1,275.50 |1,173.20| 19,991.85 19,234.40
Aug, 2023 |(1,280.00| 1,167.45| 66,658.12 | 64,723.63 | 1,281.95 |1,168.65| 19,795.60 19,223.65
Sep, 2023 |1,334.15(1,191.50 | 67,927.23 | 64,818.37 1,340.70 |1,185.45| 20,222.45 19,255.70
Oct, 2023 |1,330.90(1,224.45| 66,592.16 | 63,092.98 | 1,333.00 |1,223.30| 19,849.75 18,837.85
Nov, 2023 |1,304.30|1,203.85| 67,069.89 | 63,550.46 | 1,309.80 |1,205.90| 20,158.70 18,973.70
Dec, 2023 |1,277.95|1,216.85 | 72,484.34 | 67,149.07 1,276.00 |1,216.00| 21,801.45 20,183.70
Jan, 2024 [1,291.45|1,201.00| 73,427.59 | 70,001.60 1,295.00 |1,215.00| 22,124.15 21,137.20
Feb, 2024 [1,281.50|1,051.95| 73,413.93 | 70,809.84 | 1,286.50 |1,035.00| 22,297.50 21,530.20
Mar, 2024 [1,107.50| 1,002.05 | 74,245.17 | 71,674.42 1,108.85 | 1,003.50 | 22,526.60 21,710.20
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g |Share Performance in comparison to broad-based indices
BSE Ltd. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Share price Vs BSE Index Share price Vs NSE Index
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h | Disclosure on suspension of trading | Not applicable

Registrars and Transfer Agents
(acting as common agency) for all
investor servicing activities relating
to both electronic and physical
segments)

Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited, Kences Towers,
2" Floor, No. 1, Ramakrishna Street, North Usman Road, T Nagar,
Chennai 600 017.

Telephone: +91 44 28140801 - 803
Fax : +91 44 28142479
E-Mail : einward @integratedindia.in

Investor Contacts:
Sri. K Suresh Babu, Director
Sri. S Sriram, General Manager

Share Transfer System

The share transfer requests are processed within the timelines stipulated
under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors has delegated the power to approve transfer of shares,
transmission of shares, transposition of shares, consolidation of shares, split
of shares, change of name, issue of new share certificates in lieu of old /
mutilated certificates, dematerialization of shares and rematerialization of
shares (“Transactions”) and rejection of the said transactions on technical
grounds to the authorized officers of the Company (delegated authority). The
delegated authority attends to share transfer formalities at such intervals as
required. Later, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the Board takes
on record the approved transactions.
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k | Distribution of shareholding

Shareholders No. of Shares

Number of Shares Number % Number %
Up to 100 50,228 68.04 13,02,822 0.62
101 - 250 8,223 11.14 13,88,154 0.67
251 - 500 5,172 7.00 19,72,214 0.94
501 - 1,000 3,287 4.45 25,60,802 1.22
1,001 - 5,000 5,687 7.70 1,34,17,921 6.39
5,001 - 10,000 688 0.94 49,05,757 2.32
10,001 and above 536 0.73 18,45,80,700 87.84
Total 73,821 100.00 21,01,28,370 100.00
Physical Mode 1,388 1.88 13,70,100 0.65
Demat Mode 72,433 98.12 20,87,58,270 99.35
Total 73,821 100.00 21,01,28,370 100.00

Categories of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024
Category Shares % holding

Promoter 10,16,15,280 48.36
Promoter Group 3,25,763 0.15
Mutual Funds 3,06,38,347 14.58
Insurance Companies, Financial Institutions & Banks 81,33,093 3.87
Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) 2,64,54,595 12.59
Public / Private Limited Companies 18,36,547 0.88
Resident Individuals 3,62,91,205 17.27
Others 48,33,540 2.30
Total 21,01,28,370 100.00

I. | Dematerialisation of Shares and liquidity

Shares of the Company can be held and traded in electronic
form. As stipulated by SEBI, the shares of the Company are
accepted in the Stock Exchanges for delivery compulsorily only
in dematerialized form.

99.35% of total equity share capital (including holding of promoter
companies) is held in dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL
as on March 31, 2024.

The volume of shares traded during FY 2023-2024:-

Stock During Monthly Average
Exchange FY 2023-2024 Volume

BSE 13,31,505 1,10,959

NSE 2,73,01,639 22,75,137

Thus, shares of the Company are actively traded in the BSE and
NSE, and hence have good liquidity.

m | Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments

Not issued.
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Commodity Price Risk or foreign exchange risk
and hedging activities

The foreign exchange risks are hedged from time to time. The
Company closely monitors the exchange risks.

The Company mitigates its major raw material price risks, namely
steel, through price increase realised from customers and
improvement in operational efficiency. The Company’s contracts
with major OEMs have pass through arrangement for passing on
the increase in raw material costs.

Total exposure of the Company to various commodities:
%2,151.56 Crores.

Commodity Name | Exposure in Exposure in % of such exposure
INR towards | quantity terms hedged through
the particular towards the | commodity derivatives
Commaodity particular Domestic &

(% in Crores) Commodity | International Market —
OTC & Exchange
Steel 1,138.83 1,37,979.41 Nil
Metric Ton

M S Scrap & other 116.24 22,812.22 Nil

components Metric Ton

Ferrous, Non- 229.67 11,730.27 Nil

Ferrous and Metric Ton

Powders

Aluminium Ingots 65.49 3,50,566 Nil

Metric Ton

Blank alloy steel 108.88 1,39,32,653 Nil

slug (tappet), Nos.

child parts for

assembly, other

components

(Radiator Caps

and Assemblies)

Other 705.69 Nil Nil

Components

Total 2,364.80

Changes in (5.85)

inventory, finished

goods, work in

progress and

stock in trade

Less: Inter Plant (207.39)

transfers

Total 2,151.56

Plant Location Tamil Nadu

1) Padi, Chennai 600 050, Chengelpattu District

2) Harita, Hosur 635 109, Krishnagiri District

3) Krishnapuram, Aviyur 626 160, Virudhunagar District
4) Mittamandagapet Village 605 106, Villupuram District
5) Velappanchavadi, Chennai 600 077

6) SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Gummidipoondi 601 021
7) Auto Ancillary SEZ, Mahindra World City,

Natham Sub Post, Chengelpattu,

Kancheepuram District 603 002

—_— = D= —

Puducherry (Pondicherry)
8) Korkadu, Nettapakkam Commune, Bahur Taluk
Puducherry 605 110

Telangana
9) Bonthapally Village 502 313, Medak District
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Andhra Pradesh
10) SEZ Unit, Sri City, Andhra Pradesh

Uttarakhand

11) Pantnagar, Integrated Industrial Estate
Rudrapur, Dist. Udam Singh Nagar
Uttarakhand 263 153

p | Address for Correspondence Sri G Anand Babu

Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary

Sundram Fasteners Limited

98A, VII Floor, Dr Radhakrishnan Salai

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004

Telephone: +91-44-28478500 Extn: 213

Fax: +91-44-28478510

Exclusive E-mail id for redressal of investor complaints
E-mail: investorshelpdesk@sfl.co.in

Website - www.sundram.com

Shareholders holding shares in electronic form should address all their
correspondence relating to change in address / instructions regarding
dividend etc. to their respective Depository Participant (DP).

q |List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity | CRISIL Ratings Limited has issued "CRISIL A1+’ (pronounced
along with any revisions thereto during the | ‘CRISIL A one Plus’) rating to the Company for the ¥ 100 Crores
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of | Commercial Paper and % 25 Crores short term debt programme
such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any | during the financial year 2023-24 and there has been no revision
scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving | thereto during the said financial year.

mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad.

13. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Materially significant related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2024:

There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with its Promoters, their subsidiaries,
Directors or Management or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All
the related party transactions are at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.

The Company’s policies on Material Subsidiaries and Related Party Transactions are available on the website under the
following web link: http://www.sundram.com/investors.php

Details of non-compliances during last three years

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by the
Stock Exchange or SEBI or any authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

The Company has complied with all matters relating to the capital market and the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The
Company has complied with all mandatory requirements. Adoption of non-mandatory requirements is provided under ltem
No.15 of this report.

Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism)

Pursuant to Sections 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism through a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy enables stakeholders,
including individual employees and their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical
practices, if any, reporting of concerns by directors and employees about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy or any other genuine concerns or grievances, to provide for
adequate safeguards against victimisation of employees and directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide
for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. No personnel has approached the Audit Committee till date.

Details about the Whistle Blower Policy can be accessed at: http://www.sundram.com/investors.php
Disclosure on Commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities

The Company mitigates its major raw material price risks, namely steel by entering into a long term supply contracts with
the select suppliers. Also, the contracts with customers provide for pricing on the increase in price of raw materials.
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Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under
Regulation 32 (7A).

The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement during the financial
year 2023-24.

Weblink where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: The policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries
can be accessed at https://www.sundram.com/corpgov.php

Weblink where policy on dealing with related party transactions: The policy on dealing with related party transactions can
be accessed at https://www.sundram.com/corpgov.php

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C(10)(i) to the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To the Members of

Sundram Fasteners Limited, [CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943]
98-A, VII Floor, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai, Mylapore,

Chennai 600 004.

We hereby certify that, in our opinion, none of the below named directors on the Board of Sundram Fasteners Limited
(“the Company”) as on 31%t March 2024, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies, by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India (MCA):

sl. . . . Director
No. Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Identification
Number
1. | Sri Suresh Krishna Chairman, Non-Executive Non-Independent 00046919
2. | Ms Arathi Krishna Managing Director 00517456
3. | Ms Arundathi Krishna Joint Managing Director 00270935
4. |Ms Preethi Krishna Non-Executive Non-Independent 02037253
5. | Sri Muthuraman Balasubramanian 00004757
6. | Sri Heramb Ravindra Hajarnavis Non-Executive Independent 01680435
7. | Sri Mahalingam Sethuraman 00121727
8. |Dr Nirmala Lakshman 00141632

We are issuing this certificate based on our verification of the following, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were considered necessary in this regard:

1. Information relating to the directors available in the official web site of Ministry of Corporate Affairs;

2. Disclosures/ declarations/ confirmations provided by the Directors to the Company;

3. Registers, records, forms and returns filed / maintained by the Company; and

4. Information, explanation and representations provided by the Company, its officers / agents.

Management’s responsibility

We wish to state that the management of the Company is responsible to ensure the eligibility of a person for appointment /
continuation as a Director on the Board of the Company.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this, based on our verification.
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness of
the processes followed by the management of the Company with regard to appointment / continuation of a person as a
Director of the Company.
For S Krishnamurthy & Co.,
Company Secretaries,
[Firm Unique Identification No. P1994TN045300]
(Peer Review Certificate No: 739 / 2020)

K Sriram
Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No: F6312
Date: 22" May 2024 Certificate of Practice No:2215

UDIN: F006312F000426261
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Recommendation by the Committees to the Board of Directors
The Board has accepted the recommendations made by its Committees during the financial year 2023-24.

Audit fee:

Total fees for all services paid by the Companies and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditors
and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

The total fee for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to M/s B S R & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company and all entities in the network of Statutory Auditor /network entity
of which the Statutory Auditor is a part during the financial year 2023-2024 is ¥ 1.30 Crores.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Number of complaints filed during the financial year 0
Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year 0
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year 0

Disclosure by the Company and its subsidiaries of loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which
Directors are interested:

Necessary disclosures relating to loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which Directors are
interested are provided in the financial statements in Note No 37.

Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity including the date and place of incorporation and the name and date of
appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company is a material subsidiary during the financial year 2023-2024.
14. There was no non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of para (2) to (12) mentioned above.

15. DISCLOSURE ON NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS (DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS)
The Board

Pursuant to the approval by the shareholders through a postal ballot on March 16, 2021, the Chairman and Non-Executive
Director of the Company is entitled to maintain a Chairperson’s office at the Company’s expense and also entitled for
reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties.

Shareholder Rights — Quarterly/Half yearly/Annual results

The quarterly/half yearly/annual results, after they are taken on record by the Board of Directors, are forthwith sent to the
Stock Exchanges with whom the Company has listing arrangements. The results, in prescribed proforma, are published in
Business Line, The Hindu (English) and Makkal Kural (Tamil) newspapers.

Audit Qualification

There is no audit qualification / reservation / adverse remark / disclaimer with regard to financial statement by the Statutory
Auditors in the Auditors’ Report or by the Company Secretary in Practice in the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial
year 2023-24.

Reporting of Internal Auditors
The Internal Auditor of the Company reports to the Audit Committee.

16. COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONDITIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements of corporate governance report as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The Company
has submitted the quarterly compliance reports on corporate governance to the stock exchanges within the timelines
prescribed by the SEBI for all the quarters during the financial year 2023-24.
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17. DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING LISTING ENTITIES

During the year under review, no agreements were entered into by the shareholders, promoter, promoter group entities,
related parties, directors, key managerial personnel, employees of the Company, or of its holding, subsidiary company,
among themselves or with the Company or with a third party, solely or jointly, which, either directly or indirectly or
potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management or control of the Company or impose any restriction

or create any liability upon the Company.

The Company had acceded to the Non-Competition Agreement (NCA) executed amongst various members of the TVS
family in the year 2022 by executing a Deed of Adherence. The NCA recorded the understanding in respect of conduct
of different kinds of business by the members of the TVS family on the terms and conditions more particularly described
in the NCA. The detail in respect thereof was filed with the Stock Exchanges vide letter dated January 27, 2022 and is

also hosted in the Company’s website www.sundram.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management of the Company.
The code of conduct is available on the website of the Company www.sundram.com. All Board members and senior
management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct. The Code of Conduct has incorporated the
duties of independent directors as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013. A declaration signed by the Managing Director

to this effect is as follows :

To

The members of Sundram Fasteners Limited

financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Arathi Krishna
Managing Director
DIN: 00517456

May 22, 2024

DECLARATION TO THE MEMBERS PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

I, Arathi Krishna, Managing Director, hereby declare that all Board members and senior management personnel
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics formulated by the Company for the

DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Particulars Number of Number of
Shareholders Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in the Unclaimed 701 6,63,933
Suspense Account at the beginning of the year.
Number of Shareholders who approached the issuer and claimed their shares and to 64 63,875
whom shares were transferred from the Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year.
Aggregate number of shareholders and the shares transferred to Investor Education and 24 18,620
Protection Fund Authority from the Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year.
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in the Unclaimed 614 5,81,438

Suspense Account at the end of the year / voting rights on the shares shall remain frozen
till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.
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BSR &Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

KRM Tower, 1%t & 2" Floors, No. 1, Harrington Road,
Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, India
Telephone: +91 44 4608 3100

Independent Auditor’s Report Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

To the Members of Sundram Fasteners Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Sundram Fasteners Limited (the “Company”) which comprise the
standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information, in
which are included the separate financial statements of erstwhile Sunfast TVS Limited (‘STL’) and TVS Engineering Limited
(‘TEL’) for the year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of STL and TEL with the Company,
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated February 19, 2024 with the appointed date of
April 01, 2023. The financial statements of STL and TEL (‘components’) for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been
audited by another firm of chartered accountants (“other auditor”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements of the components for the year ended 31 March 2024, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us along with the consideration of the reports of the other auditor referred to in the “Other Matter” section below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Opinion section, we have determined matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of long-term investments in subsidiaries
Refer Notes 3.9, 6 and 35 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has long-term investments in subsidiaries as at
March 31, 2024. The Company assesses investment in
subsidiaries at each reporting date for any impairment indicators,
based on internal or external sources of information. Where, such
indicators exist, the Company performs impairment testing.

The changes in business environment on budgets and forecasts
and uncertainties caused by external factors affecting estimated
performance of subsidiaries has triggered impairment testing in
respect of certain subsidiaries.

As impairment assessment involves significant estimates and
judgements, it is a key area of focus in our audit.

In view of the significance of the matter, we performed the following

key audit procedures:

* Assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key controls in respect of the Company’s impairment analysis
process including evaluation and approval of forecasts, and the
valuation model used;

¢ Examined the valuation reports of the independent third-party
specialists as engaged by the Company;

* Evaluated and challenged the key assumptions considered in
cash flow forecasts for assessing the recoverable amount such
as growth rates, profitability, discount rates etc., with reference
to our understanding of the business and historical trends;
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The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

* Involved our valuation specialists to examine the valuation
methodology and key assumptions;

» Performed sensitivity analysis considering possible changes in
key assumptions used;

» Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in these financial
statements.

Taxation and contingent liability related matters

Refer Notes 3.12, 18 and 36 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Determination of tax provisions and assessment of contingent
liabilities involves judgment with respect to various tax positions on
deductibility of transactions, interpretation of laws and regulations
etc. Judgment is also required in assessing the range of possible
outcomes for these matters.

The Company makes an assessment to determine the outcome
of these matters and records an accrual or discloses this as a
contingent liability in accordance with applicable accounting
standards.

Accordingly, judgement is required in assessing the level of

provision or contingent liability in these matters and hence are
key areas of focus in our audit.

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the following

key audit procedures:

» Assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key controls in respect of the Company’s assessment of
possible outcome of tax litigations;

* Involved our tax specialists and evaluated and challenged
the underlying judgements used in respect of estimation of
provisions, exposures and contingencies;

» Considered third party advice received by the Company where
applicable, status of recent and current tax assessments,
outcome of previous claims, judgmental positions taken in tax
returns and developments in tax environment;

» Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures on tax provisions and
contingent liabilities made in these financial statements

Revenue recognition

Refer Notes 3.1 to 23 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from sale of
automobile parts and components (“products”). Revenue from
the sale of products is recognised upon the transfer of control of
the products to the customer.

The Company and its external stakeholders focus on revenue as a
key performance metric and the Company uses various shipment
terms across its operating markets.

Revenue recognition has been identified as a key audit matter
as there could be an incentive or external pressures to meet
expectations resulting in revenue being overstated or recognized
before control has been transferred.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following

key audit procedures in this area:

¢ Assessed the Company’s accounting policy for revenue
recognition as per applicable accounting standards;

* Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key controls relating to revenue recognition on a sample basis;

* Performed substantive testing of revenue transactions recorded
during the year on a sample basis by verifying the underlying
documents including sale invoices, shipping documents and
proof of deliveries;

* Tested samples of revenue transactions recorded closer to
the year-end by verifying underlying documents, to assess the
accuracy of the period in which revenue was recognized;

* Tested non-standard manual journal entries posted to revenue.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
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knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
and based on the audit reports of the other auditor, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
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auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the components of the Company to
express an opinion on the standalone financial statements. For the components included in the standalone financial
statements, which have been audited by another auditor, such another auditor remains responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our
responsibilities in this regard are further described in the section titled “Other Matter” in this audit report

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the separate financial statements of the components included in the standalone financial statements of
the Company whose financial statements reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of ¥ 12.77 crores as at
March 31, 2024, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of ¥ 14.18 crores and net cash flows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 0.95 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial
statements. The separate financial statements of the components have been audited by the other auditor whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these components, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid components, are based solely on the reports of such other auditor.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements, and our report on the Other legal and Regulatory Requirements below,
is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the reports of the other auditor on
separate financial statements of the components, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditor
on separate financial statements of the components, as noted in the “Other Matter” paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditor except for the matters stated in the paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account .

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 01, 2024 and April 04, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements of
the components, as noted in the “Other Matter” paragraph:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the standalone financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The management of the Company represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 32 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management of the Company represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 32 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our or the other auditor notice that has caused us or the other auditor to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain
any material misstatement.

e. The second interim dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

The first interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this audit
report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act. The second interim dividend declared by the Company until
the date of this audit report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration
of dividend. However, the said dividend was not paid on the date of this audit report.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the auditor of the components,
the Company and the components have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that the audit trail was not enabled (i) at the database level to log
any direct data changes; and (ii) at the application layer of the accounting software for direct data changes to
tables performed by users having privileged access. Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled
and operated throughout the year, we and the auditor of such components did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’'s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/payable by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid/payable to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required
to be commented upon by us.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration number: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No.: 203491

ICAI UDIN: 24203491BKCQP04389

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024
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BSR&Co.LLP KRM Tower, 15t & 2" Floors, No. 1, Harrington Road,
Chartered Accountants Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, India
Telephone: +91 44 4608 3100

Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Sundram
Fasteners Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible asset.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year.
In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone
financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified by the
management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have
been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records,
where applicable. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage
as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the
quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security, granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to firms or to limited liability partnership. The Company has not granted
any security or loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to any companies during the year.
The Company has provided guarantee and made investments in companies during the year. The Company has not
provided guarantee or security or granted secured loans, secured or unsecured advances in the nature of loans,
to any other parties during the year. However, the Company has made investments in mutual funds and granted
unsecured loans to employees.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us the
Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity as below:
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(vii)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

()

Particulars Guarantees Loans

Aggregate amount during the year

Subsidiaries* ¥ 31.67 crores -
Others - % 4.78 crores
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Subsidiaries* ¥ 115.95 crores ¥ 13.97 crores
Others - % 1.66 crores

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by
us, in our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided during the year and the terms and conditions of
the grant of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The
Company has not granted any securtity or advances in nature of loans during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular except for the loan of Rs. 5.75 crores given
to TVS Upasana Limited and Rs. 0.08 crores given to Sundram International Inc., USA which are repayable
on demand. As informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the loan during the year. Thus,
there has been no default on the part of the parties to whom the money has been lent. The payment of interest
has been regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given. Further, the
Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security given by the Company, in our opinion
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the
Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured
goods and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are
accurate or complete.

(@)

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value added tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities.
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(xii)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as
at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute are as disclosed in Appendix I.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(@)

(b)

(@)

(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not obtained
any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet
of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Act. The Company does
not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture as defined under the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries (as defined
under the Act). The Company does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture as defined under
the Companies Act.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of
the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties are
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have more than one CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is

(xix)

not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order
are not applicable.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration number: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No.: 203491

ICAI UDIN: 24203491BKCQP04389

Place : Chennai

Date

: May 22, 2024
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Appendix |

Nature of the

Amount

Period to which

2017

Name of the statute . the amount Forum where dispute is pending
dues (in X crores)
relates

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 2.26 FY 2004-16 Customs, Excise and Service tax
Appellate Tribunal

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 0.01 FY 2005-17 Commissioner - Appeals

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 0.21 FY 2009-18 | Adjudicating authority / Assessing
Officer/ Division

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.22 FY 2004-18 Customs, Excise and Service tax
Appellate Tribunal

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.06 FY 2008-16 Commissioner - Appeals

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 0.64* AY 2007-08 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 3.90 AY 2015-16 The Income tax Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 0.02 AY 2016-17 The Income tax Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 0.46 AY 2017-18 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 0.25 AY 2018-19 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 0.04 AY 2019-20 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Tamil Nadu Value Added Sales Tax 0.46 FY 2006-17 |Joint/ Deputy / Assistant /

Tax Act, 2006/ Telangana Additional Commissioner

Value Added Tax Act, 2005/

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956

Tamil Nadu Value Added Sales Tax 0.34 FY 2014-17 High Court of Madras

Tax Act, 2006/ Telangana

Value Added Tax Act, 2005/

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956

Goods and Service Tax, GST 0.09 FY 2018-19 Assistant Commissioner (ST),

2017 Chengalpattu

Goods and Service Tax, GST 0.27 FY 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner-

2017 Telangana

Goods and Service Tax, GST 0.87 FY 2017-18 Joint / Deputy / Assistant /

Additional Commissioner
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Nature of the

Amount

Period to which

2017

(ST),Chengalpattu

Name of the statute . the amount Forum where dispute is pending
dues (in X crores)
relates

Goods and Service Tax, GST 0.28 FY 2019-21 Deputy Commissioner

2017

Goods and Service Tax, GST 0.01 FY 2022-23 Assistant Commissioner

2017 (ST),Adjudication,Intellegence-
II,Chennai

Goods and Service Tax, GST 0.16 FY 2017-20 Assistant Commissioner, Circle

2017 I1l', Audit | Commissionerate,
Annanagar, Chennai

Goods and Service Tax, GST 11.12 FY 2018-21 The Additional Commissioner

2017 of CGST &C.EX,Chennai North
Commissionerate

Goods and Service Tax, GST 1.76 FY 2018-19 The Assistant Commissioner

* Rectification order received along with refund, pending closure of appeal.
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BSR &Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

KRM Tower, 1%t & 2" Floors, No. 1, Harrington Road,
Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, India

Telephone: +91 44 4608 3100

Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of Sundram
Fasteners Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of Sundram Fasteners Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date, which includes internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of erstwhile
Sunfast TVS Limited (‘STL’) and TVS Engineering Limited
(‘TEL’) for the year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation of STL and TEL with the Company,
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its
order dated February 19, 2024 with the appointed date of
April 01, 2023. The internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements of STL and TEL (‘components’)
for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been audited by
another firm of chartered accountants (‘other auditor’).

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports
on internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the components as were audited by the
other auditor, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities
for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor as stated
in their reports referred to in the “Other Matter” paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference
to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to the components, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditor of such components.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration number: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No.: 203491

ICAI UDIN: 24203491BKCQP04389
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

As at As at
Note March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 (a) 1,669.24 1,607.46
Capital work-in-progress 5 (b) 153.87 45.90
Investment property 5(c) 0.17 0.17
Right-of-use assets 5 (d) 43.46 45.53
Intangible assets 5 (e) 1.75 1.93
Financial assets
- Investments 6 376.36 344.80
- Loans 7 9.35 9.10
- Other financial assets 8 45.14 36.23
Other tax assets, net 9 52.49 63.03
Other non-current assets 10 85.52 70.29
Total non-current assets 2,437.35 2,224.44
Current assets
Inventories 11 795.35 782.49
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 12 1,045.99 945.45
- Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) 11.37 31.56
- Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 13 (b) 3.99 4.24
- Loans 7 6.28 6.15
- Other financial assets 8 27.49 3.22
Other current assets 10 70.52 60.65
Total current assets 1,960.99 1,833.76
Total assets 4,398.34 4,058.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14A 21.01 21.01
Other equity 3,258.21 2,885.65
Total equity 3,279.22 2,906.66
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 - 41.09
- Lease liabilities 16 5.18 6.42
- Other financial liabilities 21 3.48 -
Provisions 17 711 6.56
Deferred tax liabilities, net 18 134.58 126.59
Other tax liabilities, net 19 5.34 6.99
Total non-current liabilities 155.69 187.65
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 376.04 395.01
- Lease liabilities 16 1.77 2.10
- Trade payables 20
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 86.31 62.75
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 350.50 365.29
- Other financial liabilities 21 81.06 70.59
Other current liabilities 22 15.85 21.50
Provisions 17 23.54 22.07
Current tax liabilities, net 19 28.36 24.58
Total current liabilities 963.43 963.89
Total liabilities 1,119.12 1,151.54
Total equity and liabilities 4,398.34 4,058.20
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 43 are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
forBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 101248W/W-100022

ARATHI KRISHNA
S SETHURAMAN Managing Director
Partner

(DIN: 00517456)

R DILIP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00240372)

Membership No.: 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman

(DIN: 00046919)
ARUNDATHI KRISHNA
Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 23 4,905.65 4,921.61
Other income 24 47.33 29.83
Total income 4,952.98 4,951.44
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 2,151.56 2,298.26
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 26 (5.85) (52.81)
Employee benefits expense 27 347.71 334.05
Finance costs 28 17.99 24.63
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 168.31 157.25
Other expenses 30 1,634.19 1,574.76
Total expenses 4,313.91 4,336.14
Profit before tax 639.07 615.30
Tax expense
a) Current tax 155.06 148.71
b) Deferred tax 4.30 2.85
Total tax expense 159.36 151.56
Profit for the year 479.71 463.74
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement losses on defined benefit liability (1.78) (0.08)
(i) Fair value gains on equity instruments 18.94 22.29
(iii) Income tax effect on above (3.70) (5.73)
Total other comprehesive income 13.46 16.48
Total comprehensive income for the year 493.17 480.22
Earnings per equity share 31
Basic (in%) 22.83 22.07
Diluted (in %) 22.83 22.07
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 43 are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

forBSR &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 101248W/W-100022

S SETHURAMAN
Partner
Membership No.: 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024

ARATHI KRISHNA
Managing Director
(DIN: 00517456)

R DILIP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00240372)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
(DIN: 00046919)

ARUNDATHI KRISHNA

Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

A. Equity share capital Note Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 14A 21.01
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 21.01
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 14A 21.01
Balance as at April 1, 2022 14A 21.01
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 21.01
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 14A 21.01

B. Other equity

ltems of other
Reserves and Surplus comprehensive
income
Items that will not
Particulars be reclassified to Total
General Retained profit and loss
reserve earnings Fair valuation
of equity
instruments
Balances as at April 1, 2023 2,442.99 377.44 65.22 2,885.65
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 2,442.99 377.44 65.22 2,885.65
Profit for the year - 479.71 - 479.71
Other comprehensive income for the year - (1.33) 14.79 13.46
Total comprehensive income for the year - 478.38 14.79 493.17
Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends (refer note 14B) - (120.61) - (120.61)
Total transactions with owners of the Company - (120.61) - (120.61)
Transfer from retained earnings 200.00 (200.00) - -
Balances as at March 31, 2024 2,642.99 535.21 80.01 3,258.21
Balances as at April 1, 2022 (refer note 39) 2,267.99 205.88 48.68 2,522.55
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 2,267.99 205.88 48.68 2,522.55
Profit for the year - 463.74 - 463.74
Other comprehensive income (0.06) 16.54 16.48
Total comprehensive income for the year - 463.68 16.54 480.22
Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends (refer note 14B) (117.12) - (117.12)
Total transactions with owners of the Company - (117.12) - (117.12)
Transfer from retained earnings 175.00 (175.00) - -
Balances as at March 31, 2023 2,442.99 377.44 65.22 2,885.65
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 43 are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

forBSR &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 101248W/W-100022

S SETHURAMAN
Partner
Membership No.: 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024

ARATHI KRISHNA
Managing Director
(DIN: 00517456)

R DILIP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00240372)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman

(DIN: 00046919)
ARUNDATHI KRISHNA
Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Year ended Year ended

Note  \iarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 639.07 615.30
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 165.38 153.34
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 29 2.93 3.91
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss, net (1.47) 4.00
Mark to market loss on derivative instruments 0.19 0.35
Finance costs 28 17.99 24.63
Interest income 24 (3.07) (2.88)
Dividend income 24 (3.24) (4.10)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net 30 1.99 0.92
Financial guarantee income (0.98) (1.29)
Gain on sale of investments 24 (1.55) (0.32)
(Reversal) / allowance of loss towards trade receivables (4.97) 0.74
Operating profit before working capital changes 812.27 794.60

Adjustments for changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories (12.86) (90.99)
Increase in financial assets (126.61) (114.43)
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (9.61) 10.11
Increase / (decrease) in financial liabilities 13.86 (49.19)
Decrease in other liabilities and provisions (5.31) (3.81)
Net increase in working capital (140.53) (248.31)
Cash generated from operating activities 671.74 546.29
Income taxes paid, net (142.38) (150.34)
Net cash from operating activities 529.36 395.95

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(including capital work-in-progress, capital advances and retention (343.45) (214.05)
payable)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.18 1.37
Acquisition of investments (1,868.28) (1,334.23)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,857.79 1,332.82
Dividend received 24 3.24 4.10
Interest received 2.26 2.58
Net cash used in investing activities (347.26) (207.41)
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Note Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (82.25) (78.96)
Repayment of short-term borrowings (444.73) (493.54)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 466.25 541.21
Principal payment of lease liabilities (2.43) (4.46)
Dividend paid (120.61) (117.12)
Interest cost paid (18.52) (18.12)
Net cash used in financing activities (202.29) (170.99)
D. Net cash flows during the year (A + B + C) (20.19) 17.55
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 31.56 14.01
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end the year (D + E) 11.37 31.56

Reconciliation of the cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Balances with banks in current accounts 13 (a) 11.11 31.28
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 13 (a) 0.21 0.23
Cash on hand 13 (a) 0.05 0.05
11.37 31.56

Material accounting policies 3and 4
The notes from 1 to 43 are an integral part of these standalone financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
As per our report of even date attached (CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)
forBSR &Co. LLP SURESH KRISHNA
Chartered Accountants Chairman
Firm’s registration number: 101248W/W-100022 (DIN: 00046919)
ARATHI KRISHNA ARUNDATHI KRISHNA
"SD;‘ ﬁl’EvE:URAMAN Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No.: 203491 (DIN: 00517456) (DIN: 00270935)
R DILIP KUMAR G ANAND BABU
Place : Chennai Chief Financial Officer Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
Date : May 22, 2024 (DIN: 00240372) (ACS Membership No: A19848)
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©)

2.2

2.3

Corporate information

Sundram Fasteners Limited (‘the Company’) is a
public limited company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at No. 98-A, VII Floor,
Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai, Mylapore, Chennai 600004.
The Company has been incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and its equity
shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange
(‘NSE’) and the Bombay Stock Exchange (‘BSE’)
in India. The Company is primarily engaged in
manufacture and sale of bolts and nuts, water pumps,
sintered products, cold extruded components, hot
and warm forged parts, radiator caps and other
parts which have applications mainly in automobile
industry.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time, notified under
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

The standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024 (including comparatives) are
approved for issue by the Board on May 22, 2024.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are
included in notes 3 and 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented
in Indian Rupees which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been presented
in crores of Indian Rupees (Rs.), except share data
and as otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following items;

Items

Measurement basis

Certain financial assets
and liabilities

Fair value

liability

Net defined benefit asset/

Fair value of plan assets less present
value of defined benefit obligations

24

25

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these standalone financial statements,
management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the standalone
financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 3(7) and 40: Leases - whether an
arrangement contains a lease;

- Note 3(5), 3(8) and 35: Investment in subsidiaries
and Financial instruments: Classification and
measurement

Assumptions and estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that
have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses is mentioned below. Actual results may be
different from these estimates.

- Note 3(2), 3(3) and 3(4): Useful lives of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment property

- Note 3(8), 3(9), 6, 12 and 35: Impairment test
on financial and non-financial assets; key
assumptions underlying recoverable amounts;

- Note 3(10), 3(12), 17(b), 18 and 36:
recognition and measurement of provisions
and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources including provision for income taxes
and related contingencies

- Note 17(a): measurement of defined benefit
obligation; key actuarial assumptions.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows.
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Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. The inputs used to measure the
fair value of assets or liabilities fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. Accordingly, the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the low level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

Management uses various valuation techniques to
determine fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the
instrument. Management based on its assumptions
on observable data as far as possible but where
it not available, the management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary
from the actual prices that would be achieved in an
arm’s length transaction at the reporting date (also
refer note 35). The Company recognises transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end
of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose
of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

Material accounting policies

These standalone financial statements have been
prepared applying material accounting policies and
measurement bases summarized below.

Revenue recognition

The Company generates revenue primarily from
manufacture and sale of automotive parts and

1.1

1.2

1.3

components. The Company also earns revenue from
rendering of services.

Sale of products:

Revenue is recognised when a promise in a customer
contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied
by transferring control over the promised goods to the
customer. Control over a promised good refers to the
ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits from, those goods. Control
is usually transferred upon shipment, delivery to,
upon receipt of goods by the customer, in accordance
with the individual delivery and acceptance terms
agreed with the customers. The amount of revenue
to be recognized (transaction price) is based on the
consideration expected to be received in exchange for
goods, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties such as goods and services tax or other taxes
directly linked to sales. If a contract contains more
than one performance obligation, the transaction price
is allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. Revenue
from product sales are recorded net of allowances
for estimated rebates, cash discounts and estimates
of product returns, all of which are established at the
time of sale.

Revenue from rendering of services:

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized
over time as services are recognised in an amount
that reflects the consideration expected to be received
in exchange for those services.

Interest and dividend income:

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit
and loss on the date on which the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the
effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’
is rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of
financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset;
or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
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1.4

2.1

rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Rental income:

The Company earns rental income from operating
leases of its investment property (also refer note 5(c)).
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognised as asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with an item will flow to the Company and cost of
such item can be measured reliably.

Recognition and measurement:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. ltems of
property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

» purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and
service tax, value added tax), after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

» any directly attributable cost of bringing the item
to its working condition for its intended use,
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

» The cost of a self-constructed item of property,
plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain/ loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment at April
01, 2016, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS,
was determined with reference to its carrying value

22

2.3

recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost),
as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation:

a. Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line
basis, over useful life of buildings and other
equipment as prescribed under Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of certain
assets, where useful life is different from those
prescribed under Schedule 1.

b. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
charged over the estimated useful life of the asset
or part of the asset (after considering double/triple
shifts) as evaluated on technical assessment and
in accordance with Part A of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, on a straight-line basis.

c. The estimated useful life of the property, plant and
equipment on technical assessment followed by
the Company is furnished below:

Asset category Manag_em.ent estimate of
useful life (in years)

Buildings 3-60

Plant and machinery 8-30

Furniture and fixtures 8-10

Office equipment 3-10

Vehicles 8-10

d. The residual value for all the above assets are
retained at 5% of the cost.

e. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted if necessary, for each reporting
period.

f. On property, plant and equipment added/
disposed off during the year, depreciation is
charged on pro-rata basis for the period for which
the asset was purchased and used.

Intangible assets and research and development
expenditure

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost.
Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

111



Sundram Fasteners Limited
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill, is recognised in statement of
profit and loss as incurred.

Amortisation:

Intangible assets comprising of Computer softwares
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of 5 years. Amortisation method,
useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of each financial year and adjusted if necessary,
for each reporting period. Goodwill is not amortised.

Research and development expenditure:

Expenditure are mainly on research activities and the
same is recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an
investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Investment property is derecognised either when
it has been disposed of or when it is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal of investment property (calculated as the
difference between the net proceeds from disposal
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Company has depreciated investment property
as evaluated on technical assessment and in
accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013, on a straight-line basis of over 30 years. Any
gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The fair values of investment property is disclosed
in the notes. Fair values is determined by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised and

relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the
investment property being valued.

Transfers to (or from) investment property are
made only when there is a change in use. Transfers
between investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying
amount of the property transferred and they do not
change the cost of that property for measurement or
disclosure purposes.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of
investment is assessed and written down immediately
to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments
in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and carrying amounts are recognized in
statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted average and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production
or conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their present location and condition.
In the case of raw materials and stock-in-trade,
cost comprises of cost of purchase. In the case of
finished goods and work in progress, cost includes
an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished goods. Raw materials, components
and other supplies held for use in the production
of finished products are not written down below
cost except in cases when a decline in the price
of materials indicates that the cost of the finished
products shall exceed the net realisable value. The
comparison of cost and net realisable value is made
on an item-by-item basis.

Leases
Assets held under leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
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is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Assets taken on lease

At commencement or on modification of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of
the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will
exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-
use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing
rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to
reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee; and

- exercise price under a purchase option that
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Company is
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if
the Company changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option or if there is a revised in —substance fixed lease
payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the
statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately on the face of the balance sheet.

Short-term leases

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases.
Ease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Assets leased out

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the
Company makes an overall assessment of whether
the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part
of this assessment, the Company considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major
part of the economic life of the asset.

The Company recognises lease payments received
under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘Other income’.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement:

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they
are originated. A trade receivable without a significant
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8.2
8.2.1

financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument
and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value
through profit and loss which are measured initially
at fair value.

The ‘trade payable’ is in respect of the amount due
on account of goods purchased in the normal course
of business. They are recognised at their transaction
and services availed value if the transaction does not
contain significant financing component.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified and measured based
on the entity’s business model for managing financial
asset and contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial asset at:

a. Those measured at amortised cost.

b. Those to be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

c. Those to be measured at fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL);

a. Financial assets at amortised cost

Includes assets that are held within a business
model where objective is to hold financial assets
to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms gives rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal amount outstanding.

These assets are measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses, if any and impairment are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or
loss on de recognition is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

b. Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Includes assets that are held within a business
model where objective is both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets along with contractual terms giving rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

8.2.2

payments of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding. The Company has made
an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income changes in fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument that is
not held for trading. This selection is made on
instrument-by instrument basis.

Dividends are recognised as income in the
statement of profit and loss unless it clearly
represents a recovery of part of cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss.

The fair values of financial assets in this category
are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where
no active market exists.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

c. Financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets that are designated at FVTPL upon
initial recognition and financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI.
All derivative financial instruments fall into this
category, except for those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, for which the
hedge accounting requirements apply. Assets
in this category are measured at fair value with
gains or losses recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. The fair values of financial assets
in this category are determined by reference to
active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists.

The loss allowance in respect of FVTPL at each
reporting period is evaluated based on expected
credit losses for next 12 months and credit risk
exposure. The Company also measures loss
allowance for financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. The allowance shall be
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for at
FVTPL except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships, which
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8.2.3

8.3
8.3.1

8.3.2

require a specific accounting treatment. To qualify
for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship
must meet several strict conditions with respect
to documentation, probability of occurrence of the
hedged transaction and hedge effectiveness. These
arrangements have been entered into to mitigate
currency exchange risk arising from certain legally
binding sales and purchase orders denominated in
foreign currency. For the reporting periods under
review, the Company has not designated any forward
currency contracts as hedging instruments.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when;

a. The Company has transferred the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset or

b. The Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
expects a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients.

Where entity has transferred an asset, the Company
examines and assesses whether it has transferred
substantially all risk and rewards of ownership of
financial asset. In such cases, financial asset is
derecognised. Where entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of financial asset, such financial asset is not
derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial
asset nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised, if the Company has not retained control
of the financial asset. Where the company retains
control of the financial asset, the same is continued to
be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

Financial Liabilities
Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or at amortised cost. The Company’s financial
liabilities include borrowings, trade and other
payables and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
except for derivatives and financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently
at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

8.3.3

8.4

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company
are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because,
the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

Allinterest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in the
statement of profit and loss are included within finance
costs or finance income.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment
Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognise loss allowance for expected
credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit - impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty;
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9.1.1

- abreach of contract such as a default or being
past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are credit losses that
result from all possible default events over expected
life of financial instrument.

The maximum period considered when estimating
expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit
risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit
losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information. The Company assumes that
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in
default when:

- therecipientis unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or

- the financial asset is past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit
losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

9.1.3 Write-off

9.2

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Company’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising
from a business combination is allocated to CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual
asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the
asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office
building for providing support to various CGUs) do
not generate independent cash inflows. To determine
impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts
of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs)
on a pro rata basis.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets
for which impairment loss has been recognised in
prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in estimates used
to determine recoverable amount. Such a reversal is
made only to an extent that asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation/ amortisation,
if no impairment loss was recognised.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination
or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

The Company has determined that interest and
penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain
tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income
taxes, and therefore accounted for them under Ind AS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering
the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.
Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates in
accordance with tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
difference between carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that

11.

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, at the time of
the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore,
in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent
that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences
or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognised/ recognised, are reviewed
at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced
to an extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred
tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied
by same tax authority on same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle such tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or its tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Post-employment benefits and short-term
employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations:

Short-term employee benefits are measured on an
undiscounted basis and expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably

Other long-term employee benefit obligations:

Accumulated absences expected to be carried
forward beyond twelve months is treated as long-term
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11.3

employee benefit for measurement purposes. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of other long-
term employee benefit of accumulating compensated
absences is the amount of future benefit that
employees have accumulated at the end of the
year. Such benefit is discounted to determine its
present value The obligation is measured annually by
qualified actuary using projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in
the balance sheet if the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

Post-employment obligation:

The Company operates the post-employment schemes
comprising of defined benefit and contribution plans
such as gratuity and group terminal benefit plan,
provident fund contributions for its eligible employees.

11.3.1 Gratuity/ group terminal benefit plan:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of these defined benefit obligation is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by an Independent actuary using projected
unit credit method. The present value of defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of reporting period on the
government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The cost
is included in employee benefit expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Re-measurement gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in
equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendment or curtailment are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

11.3.2 Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled
to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, partly
a defined benefit obligation and partly a defined

12,
12.1

contribution plan, in which both employees and the
Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The
provident fund contributions are made partly to
employee provident fund organisation and partly
to an irrevocable trust set up by the Company. The
Company is liable for annual contributions and any
shortfall in the fund assets based on the Government
specified minimum rates of return and recognises
such contributions and shortfall, if any, as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions:

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost. Expected future operating losses are
not provided for.

12.1.1 Provision for warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when
the underlying products or services are sold. The
provision is based on technical evaluation, historical
warranty data and a weighing of all possible outcomes
by their associated probabilities.

12.1.2 Onerous contract

12.2

A contract is considered to be onerous when the
expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under
the contract. The provision for an onerous contract
is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before such a provision is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.

Contingent liability:

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
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more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity or a present obligation that arises
from past events but is not recognised because (a) it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the standalone financial statements.

Contingent asset:

Contingent asset is not recognised in consolidated
financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is not a contingent
asset and is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
including a bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are
considered for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Cash and cash equivalents and cash flow
statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments maturing within three
months from the date of acquisition and which are
readily convertible into cash and which are subject
to only an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items
and tax is appropriately classified for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future receipts or payments.
In cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, balances with banks in

15.

16.

17.

18.

current accounts and other short- term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of
bolts and nuts, water pumps, sintered products, cold
extruded components, hot and warm forged parts,
radiator caps and other parts which largely have
applications primarily in automobile industry and thus
the Company has only one reportable segment.

Government grants

Government grants and subsidies are recognised
when there is reasonable assurance that conditions
attached to them will be complied and grant/subsidy
will be received. Government grants relating to
income are deferred and recognized in statement of
profit and loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they intended to compensate
and presented in other operating revenues. Grants
that compensate the Company for expenses incurred
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
other operating revenue on a systematic basis in the
periods in which such expenses are recognised.

Foreign currency transactions

In preparing standalone financial statements,
transactions in currencies other than Company’s
functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at rates of exchange prevailing on date
of transactions or an average rate if average rate
approximates actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency
at exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into functional
currency at exchange rate when fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including
exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time
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to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Business Combinations

Business Combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting. Transaction costs
incurred in connection with business combination
are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.
The identifiable assets and liabilities that meet the
condition for recognition are recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

In case of bargain purchase where the fair value
of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the cost
of acquisition, the excess is recognised in other
comprehensive income on the acquisition date and
accumulate the same in equity as capital reserve
after reassessing the fair values of the net identifiable
assets and contingent liabilities.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses
in which all the combining entities or businesses are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the business combination and
where that control is not transitory are accounted for
as per the pooling of interest method. The business
combination is accounted for as if the business
combination had occurred at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented or, if later,
at the date that common control was established;
for this purpose, comparatives are revised. The
assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at
their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves
is preserved, and they appear in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company in the same form
in which they appeared in the financial statements of
the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between
the consideration and the amount of share capital of
the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve.

@

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. As on date of
this Standalone Financial statements, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not issued any standards/
amendments to the accounting standards which are
effective from April 01, 2024.
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5 a) Property, plant and equipment
Reconciliation of carrying amount

Freehold Buildings Plantand Furniture Office Vehicles Total
Gross block land equipment and equip-
fixtures ments

As at April 1, 2022 40.28 299.66 1,918.03 8.79 26.32 11.64 2,304.72

Additions - 50.72 187.28 4.02 4.25 2.28 248.55

Disposals - (0.07) (7.13) (0.18) (1.42)  (0.60)  (9.40)
As at March 31, 2023 40.28 350.31 2,098.18 12.63 29.15 13.32 2,543.87

Additions - 34.94 187.13 0.49 3.81 3.13 229.50

Disposals - (0.58) (9.51) (0.02) (0.08) (0.33) (10.52)
As at March 31, 2024 40.28 384.67 2,275.80 13.10 32.88 16.12 2,762.85

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2022 - 55.13 706.63 454 19.74 5.09 791.13

Depreciation for the year - 11.30 136.12 1.08 2.58 143 152.51

Disposals - (0.01) (5.27) (0.15)  (1.26) (0.54) (7.23)
As at March 31, 2023 - 66.42 837.48 5.47 21.06 5.98 936.41
Depreciation for the year - 12.49 145.97 1.34 2.95 1.80 164.55
Disposals - (0.46) (6.54) (0.01) (0.05) (0.29) (7.35)

As at March 31, 2024 - 78.45 976.91 6.80 23.96 7.49 1,093.61

Net block

As at March 31, 2023 40.28 283.89 1,260.70 7.16 8.09 7.34 1,607.46

As at March 31, 2024 40.28 306.22 1,298.89 6.30 8.92 8.63 1,669.24
Notes:

a) Plant and equipment includes net block of assets held by third parties amounting to ¥ 9.55 (March 31, 2023 : % 6.99).
b) Refer note 36(c) for capital commitments.
c) All the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

As at As at

d) Disclosure of reconciliation between cash flows and notes March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (230.15) (248.61)
Movement in capital work-in-progress (refer note 5(b)) (107.97) 54.32
Movement in capital advances (refer note 10) (15.25) (21.57)
Movement in retention money payables (refer note 21) 9.92 -
Other movements - 1.81
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (343.45) (214.05)
5 b) Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
Gross Block Freehold Buildings Plantand Furniture Office Vehicles Total
land equipment and equip-
fixtures ments
As at April 1, 2022 - 47.82 52.40 - - - 100.22
Additions - 30.15 153.53 - - - 183.68
Capitalised during the year - (50.72) (187.28) - - - (288.00)
As at March 31, 2023 - 27.25 18.65 - - - 45.90
Additions - 41.80 287.86 0.27 0.11 - 330.04
Capitalised during the year - (34.94) (187.13) - - - (222.07)
As at March 31, 2024 - 34.11 119.38 0.27 0.11 - 153.87
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5 (b)(i) Ageing details
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwip Less than More than | Total
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
Projects in progress 138.82 7.57 2.79 4.69 153.87
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 138.82 7.57 2.79 4.69 153.87
As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwip Less than More than | Total
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
Projects in progress 38.80 2.41 1.65 3.04 45.90
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 38.80 2.41 1.65 3.04 45.90
5 (b)(ii) Capital work-in-progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original

plan :

There are no projects as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 where the costs have exceeded the original
plan approved by Board of Directors. The following table summarises projects whose completion is overdue
along with expected completion schedule for such projects.

To be completed in

cwip Less than More than | Total

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
March 31, 2024
Projects in progress
EV project at MWC and Sricity plants 48.48 - - - 48.48
Expansion projects at Wind Energy Fasteners plant 35.97 - - - 35.97
Furnace installation at Madurai plant 9.12 - - - 9.12
Automated material handling system at Padi plant 5.12 - - - 5.12
BEV project at Sricity 4.36 - - - 4.36
Compaction boundary at Uttarakhand plant 1.58 - - - 1.58
Others 8.69 - - - 8.69
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 113.32 - - - 113.32
March 31, 2023
Projects in progress
Expansion projects at Wind Energy Fasteners plant 9.05 - - - 9.05
Vacuum furnace at Aerospace Fasteners plant 4.78 - - - 4.78
Heat treatment furnace work at Pondy Hex plant 4.24 - - - 4.24
Assembly line at Uttarakhand plant 1.98 - - - 1.98
Others 4.93 - - - 4.93
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 24.98 - - - 24.98
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5 (c) Investment property

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Gross block Land Building Total
As at April 1, 2022 0.17 0.03 0.20
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.17 0.03 0.20
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 0.17 0.03 0.20
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2022 - 0.01 0.01
Depreciation for the year - 0.02 0.02
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 - 0.03 0.03
Depreciation for the year - - -
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 - 0.03 0.03
Net block

As at March 31, 2023 0.17 - 0.17
As at March 31, 2024 0.17 - 0.17

Notes

1. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Rental income from investment property 0.11 0.12
Less: Expenses that Contribute to the rental income (including repairs and ) )
maintenance)
Profit before depreciation 0.11 0.12
Less: Depreciation - (0.02)
Profit 0.11 0.10

2. Fair value hierarchy and valuation technique

The fair value of investment properties amounted to ¥ 4.20 (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 10.39). These disclosures are based
on external information available with the Company including valuations reports obtained from an independent valuer
specialised in valuing these types of investment properties and registered as a valuer as defined under Rule 2 of
the Companies (registered valuers and valuation) Rules, 2017. The fair value measurement for all of the investment
property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

3. The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property.
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5 (d) Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Land under Other
Gross block long term land and Total
lease buildings
As at April 1, 2022 39.73 19.74 59.47
Additions - 6.74 6.74
Disposals - (0.63) (0.63)
As at March 31, 2023 39.73 25.85 65.58
Additions - 0.86 0.86
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 39.73 26.71 66.44
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 1, 2022 1.35 15.19 16.54
Amortisation for the year 0.45 3.46 3.91
Disposals - (0.40) (0.40)
As at March 31, 2023 1.80 18.25 20.05
Amortisation for the year 0.45 2.48 2.93
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 2.25 20.73 22.98
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 37.93 7.60 45.53
As at March 31, 2024 37.48 5.98 43.46
5 (e) Intangible assets
Reconciliation of carrying amount
Gross block Software Total
As at April 1, 2022 5.01 5.01
Additions 0.06 0.06
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 5.07 5.07
Additions 0.65 0.65
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 5.72 5.72
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 1, 2022 2.34 2.34
Amortisation for the year 0.80 0.80
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 3.14 3.14
Amortisation for the year 0.83 0.83
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 3.97 3.97
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 1.93 1.93
As at March 31, 2024 1.75 1.75

124



NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

6 Non-current investments
1) Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments in equity instruments

(i) Quoted

a)

b)

c)

Nil (March 31, 2023: 75,000) fully paid equity shares of ¥ 2/- each
in Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited, Mumbai (refer
note B below)

1,31,000 (March 31, 2023: 5,000) fully paid equity shares of ¥ 1/- each
in HDFC Bank Limited, Mumbai (refer note B below)

20,439 (March 31, 2023: 20,439) fully paid equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
in IDBI Bank Limited, Mumbai

(ii) Unquoted
1,25,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,25,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
Madras Engineering Industries Private Limited, Chennai
2,777 (March 31, 2023: 2,777) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in Ki Mobility
Solutions Private Limited, Chennai

Total of (I)

Il) Investments measured at cost

(A) Investment in venture capital fund
168 units (March 31, 2023: 168 units) of ¥ 100/- each in the ICICI Emerging
Sectors Fund, Bengaluru **

(B) Investment in subsidiaries
Indian:

a)

1,18,99,674 (March 31, 2023: 1,18,99,674) equity shares of ¥ 10/-
each in TVS Upasana Limited, Chennai (extent of holding -100%)
Deemed equity in TVS Upasana Limited, Chennai (refer note A below)
2,64,691 (March 31, 2023: 2,64,691) equity shares of % 10/- each fully
paidupin Sundram Non-Conventional Energy SystemsLimited, Chennai
(extent of holding - 52.94%)

24,90,000 (March 31, 2023: 24,90,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
Sundram Fasteners Investments Limited, Chennai (extent of holding - 100%)
1,67,37,339 (March 31, 2023: 1,67,37,339) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
fully paid up in TVS Next Limited, Chennai (extent of holding - 56.43%)

Foreign:

e)

1,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,000) equity shares of £ 1 each fully paid up in
Sundram International Limited, UK (extent of holding -100%)

2,500 (March 31, 2023: 2,500) equity shares of £1 each allotted in
Sundram International Limited, UK pursuant to sale of subsidiaries viz.,
Sundram Fasteners (Zhejiang) Limited, Zhejiang, People’s Republic of
China and Cramlington Precision Forge Limited, UK (extent of holding -
100%), less impairment loss of ¥ 41.30 (March 31, 2023: % 41.30).
Deemed equity in Sundram Fasteners (Zhejiang) Limited, Zhejiang,
People’s Republic of China ¥ 3.49 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 3.49) and
Cramlington Precision Forge Limited, UK ¥ 1.14 (March 31, 2023:
% 0.67) (refer note A below)

18,215 (March 31, 2023: 18,215) common shares of US $ 10 each in
Sundram International Inc., Michigan, USA (extent of holding-100%),
less impairment loss of ¥ 0.81 (March 31, 2023: % 0.81)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

- 19.71
18.97 0.80
0.17 0.09
19.14 20.60
72.78 53.12
14.22 13.48
87.00 66.60
106.14 87.20
0.00 0.00
11.92 11.92
2.40 2.29
0.93 0.93
2.49 2.49
17.45 17.45
0.01 0.01
208.69 208.69
4.63 4.16
248.52 247.94
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6 Non-current investments (Contd.)

(C) Other investments

a) 35 (March 31, 2023: 35) equity shares of ¥ 100/- each (% 65/- paid up)

As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

in The Adyar Property Holding Co. Limited aggregating to ¥ 2,275/-** 0.00 0.00
b) Capital Contribution in PGSD engineering LLP, New Delhi ** 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
Total of (Il) 248.52 247.94
Ill) Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in equity instruments
Unquoted
(i) Power generation companies*
a) 12,935 (March 31, 2023: 12,935) Class A equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
and 2,84,169 (March 31, 2023: 2,84,169) Class B equity shares of
% 10/- each in PPS Enviro Power Private Limited., Hyderabad, less - -
impairment loss of ¥ 1.19 (March 31, 2023: % 1.19)
b) 23,85,762 (March 31, 2023: 23,85,762) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
Clarion Wind Farm Private Limited, Chennai 2.39 2.39
c) 12,28,233 (March 31, 2023: 12,28,233) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
Beta Wind Farm Private Limited, Chennai 2.33 2.33
d) Nil (March 31, 2023: 11,00,000) equity shares of  10/- each in Gayatri
Green Power Private Limited, Chennai = 1.09
e) 6,42,306 (March 31, 2023: 6,42,306) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
Watsun Infra Build Private Limited, Ahmedabad 0.63 0.63
f) 1,40,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,40,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
MMS Steel and Power Private Limited, Chennai 0.13 0.13
g) 31,000 (March 31, 2023: 31,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in Clean
Switch India Private Limited, Hyderabad 0.03 0.03
h) 19,18,800 (March 31, 2023: 19,18,800) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in
First Energy TN1 Private Limited, Chennai 1.92 1.92
i) 47,40,000 (March 31, 2023: Nil) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each in First
Energy TN4 Private Limited, Chennai 4.75 -
j) 17,51,000 (March 31, 2023: Nil) equity shares of % 10/- each in First
Energy 6 Private Limited, Chennai 1.75 -
k) 77,74,500 (March 31, 2023: Nil) equity shares of % 10/- each in First
Energy 5 Private Limited, Chennai 7.77 -
21.70 8.52
*The right to sell / transfer these shares are subject to terms and conditions
of respective shareholder agreement.
(ii) Nil (March 31, 2023: 3,51,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 1/- each in Madurai
Trans Carrier Limited, Chennai less impairment loss of ¥ Nil (March 31, - 1.14
2023:% 2.37)
Total of (llI) 21.70 9.66
Total of (I+11+l11) 376.36 344.80
** Amount less than ¥ 0.01
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 19.14 20.60
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 357.22 324.20
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (included in the above) 43.30 45.67

Note: A. The amount shown as deemed equity investments is in respect of financial guarantee given without any consideration.

B. Pursuant to the merger of Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited, Mumbai with HDFC Bank Limited, equity shares
held in HDFC Bank Limited was exchanged for equity shares in Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited, Mumbai.
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7

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Loans
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Loans to related parties (refer note 37) 8.14 5.83 7.96 5.75
Loans to employees 1.21 0.45 1.14 0.40
9.35 6.28 9.10 6.15

The Company’s exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in note 35.

Disclosure of loans and advances given to subsidiaries as per Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation

and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Maximum balance

Investment by

: Percentage to total outstanding subsidiary in shares
Name of the subsidiary company Amount Outstanding loans during the year of the Company (No.
(purpose of loan) ended of shares)
March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
TVS Upasana Limited, Chennai
(for working capital purposes - Repayable on 5.75 5.75| 36.79%| 37.70% 5.75 5.75 -
demand)
Sundram International Inc. USA
(for working capital purposes - Repayable on 0.08 0.08 0.53% 0.52% 0.08 0.08 -
demand)
Sundram International Limited, UK (for working
capital purposes - Term of 5 years) 8.14 7.88| 52.08%| 51.67% 8.21 7.88

8 Other financial assets

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits

Interest receivable (includes interest receivable from
related party of ¥ 1.09 (March 31, 2023: 0.23)) (refer

note 37)
Claims receivable
Other receivables

Non-current  Current Non-current Current
45.14 0.35 36.23 0.35
- 1.93 - 1.12
- 24.87 - -
- 0.34 - 1.75
45.14 27.49 36.23 3.22

The Company’s exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in note 35.

9 Other tax assets, net

Advance income tax, net of provision

10 Other assets
Prepaid expenses

Capital advances

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Balance with statutory/government authorities
Export incentives and other receivables

Advances to suppliers

Non-current  Current Non-current Current
52.49 - 63.03 -
52.49 - 63.03 -
- 18.49 - 13.43
53.07 - 37.82 -
32.45 10.07 32.47 6.37
- 20.65 - 22.86
- 21.31 - 17.99
85.52 70.52 70.29 60.65
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As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

11 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials and components

(includes raw materials in transit of ¥ 16.01 (March 31, 2023 % 27.88) 245.76 243.22

Work-in-progress 179.87 182.43

Finished goods 295.00 286.59

Stores and spares 28.28 25.85

Loose tools 46.44 44.40
795.35 782.49

For the carrying value of inventories pledged as securities for borrowings, refer

note 15.

In addition, inventories have been reduced by T 25.21 (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 23.50)

as a result of the write-down to net realisable value.

The write-downs and reversals are included in changes in inventories of finished

goods.

12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 1,053.09 946.72

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - 10.80

Trade receivables credit impaired = -

Total trade receivables 1,053.09 957.52

Less: Loss allowance (7.10) (12.07)

Net trade receivables 1,045.99 945.45

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:

Total trade receivables from related parties (refer note 37) 47.58 48.28

Less: Loss allowance (5.80) (10.80)

41.78 37.48

Movement in loss allowance on trade receivables

Opening balance 12.07 11.33

Amount written off - -

Loss allowance / (reversal) (4.97) 0.74

Closing balance 7.10 12.07

The Company's exposure to credit risks and loss allowances related to trade
receivables are disclosed in note 35.

128



NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

12(a) Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months -1 year 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables
(i) Considered good - 85135 170.30 25.45 2.62 1.96 1.41 1,053.09

(i) Which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Credit impaired - - - - = = - -
Disputed trade receivables
(i) Considered good - - - - s - - -

(ii) Which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total - 851.35 170.30 25.45 2.62 1.96 1.41 1,053.09
Less: Loss allowance 7.10
Total trade receivable 1,045.99

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months -1 year 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables
(i) Considered good - 75193 181.11 7.51 5.33 0.50 0.34  946.72

(ii) V;T;Zﬂ nz\ée significant increase in i ) i 10.80 ) ) 10.80
(iii) Credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables
(i) Considered good - - - - - - - .

(i) Which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total - 751.93 181.11 7.51 16.13 0.50 0.34 957.52
Less: Loss allowance 12.07
Total trade receivable 945.45
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As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
13 (a) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- On Current account 11.11 31.28
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 0.05 0.05
Cash on hand 0.21 0.23
Total cash and cash equivalents 11.37 31.56
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Earmarked balances with banks - dividend warrant accounts 3.99 4.24
3.99 4.24
The company’s exposure to credit risk and material risk are disclosed in note 35.
14 Share capital and other equity
A Share capital
Authorised
25,00,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 25,00,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 1/- each 25.00 25.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
21,01,28,370 (March 31, 2023: 21,01,28,370) equity shares of % 1/- each fully
; 21.01 21.01
paid-up
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding
at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting period
Equity shares
At the commencement and end of the
year 21,01,28,370 21.01 21,01,28,370 21.01
b) Shares held by ultimate holding
company/ holding company /
subsidiaries / associates
Equity shares
Equity shares of % 1/- each fully paid up
held by TVS Sundram Fasteners Private  10,16,15,280 10.16 10,16,85,280 10.16

Limited, Chennai
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14 Share capital and other equity (Contd.)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
c) Particulars of shareholders holding
more than 5% of the aggregate
shares
Equity shares of % 1/- each fully paid
up held by
Il\r’n Sitfinggaefn';?s‘e“ers Private 10,16,15,280 48.36%  10,16,15,280 48.36%
HDFC Trustee Company Limited 1,01,69,263 4.84% 1,16,56,978 5.55%
Amansa Holdings Private Limited 1,10,50,511 5.26% 1,13,15,511 5.39%
d) Shares held by promoters / promoter group at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholder share:l %e?c: ” ZLtac::easl du:ﬁl;ftﬁza;/r:ega?'
TVS Sundram Fasteners Private Limited, Chennai 10,16,15,280 48.36% -
Suresh Krishna 36,040 0.02% -
Usha Krishna 74,613 0.04% -
Arathi Krishna 47,040 0.02% -
Arundathi Krishna 51,840 0.02% -
Suresh Krishna HUF 6,400 0.00% -
UFL Properties Private Limited 1,00,174 0.05% -
Lakshminarayana Ancillaries Private Limited 9,656 0.00% -
As at March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder charesheld  shares during the yoar
TVS Sundram Fasteners Private Limited, Chennai 10,16,15,280 48.36% 1.18%
Suresh Krishna 36,040 0.02% -
Usha Krishna 74,613 0.04% -
Arathi Krishna 47,040 0.02% -
Arundathi Krishna 51,840 0.02% -
Suresh Krishna HUF 6,400 0.00% -
UFL Properties Private Limited 1,00,174 0.05% -
Lakshminarayana Ancillaries Private Limited 9,656 0.00% -
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14 Share capital and other equity (Contd.)

e)

f)

9)

Rights, preferences and restrictions

Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and
share in the Company’s residual assets on winding up. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
Rupees. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share
of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which
any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

There are no bonus shares or buy-back of shares or shares issued for consideration other than cash during a
period of five years immediately preceding financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Capital management

The Company’s capital management objective is to ensure adequate return to the shareholder by maintaining
the optimal capital structure. The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain
investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. It sets the amount
of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other
strategic investments.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing
structure while avoiding excessive leverage. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s net debt to adjusted equity ratio i.e. capital gearing ratio was as follows:

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Total debt (bank and other borrowings) 376.04 436.10
Cash and cash equivalents (11.37) (31.56)
Adjusted net debt A 364.67 404.54
Total equity 3,279.22 2,906.66
Equity B 3,279.22 2,906.66
Net debt to equity C = (A/B)*100 11.12% 13.92%

B Other equity - Reserves and surplus
Year ended Year ended

(a) Dividends

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company during
the year:

First interim dividend of ¥ 2.68/- (March 31, 2023: % 5.57/- includes % 2.00/-

special dividend) per equity share for the respective years RESl 1712
56.31 117.12
(b) After the reporting dates the following interim dividend was declared by the
directors; this dividend has not been recognised as liability.
Second Interim dividend of % 4.17/- (March 31, 2023: % 3.06/-) per equity 87.62 64.30
share
87.62 64.30
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14 Share capital and other equity (Contd.)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

General reserve

General reserve is an accumulation of retained earnings of the Company, apart from the balance in the statement
of profit and loss which can be utilised for meeting future obligations.

C Analysis of items of OCI (net of tax)

Fair valuation of equity instruments

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the equity till the same is derecognised/disposed off.

15 Borrowings As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

a) Secured
Working capltal facility from banks ) 94.89 ) 37.83
(refer note (i) below)
- 94.89 - 37.83
b) Unsecured
Term loan from banks
(refer note (i) below) 41.71 B 12327 i
Working capltal facility from bank _ 239.44 ) 57500
(refer note (i) below)
41.71 239.44 123.27 275.00
c) Current_ maturities of long term 41.71) 41.71 (82.18) 82.18
borrowings
Total - 376.04 41.09 395.01

(i) Working capital loan from banks

The Company has various working capital facilities aggregating to ¥ 109.33 (March 31, 2023: % 37.83)
outstanding, carrying interest rate of 9.30% p.a. (March 31, 2023: 8.90 % p.a) These facilities are repayable
on demand, partly secured by pari-passu first charge on current assets viz., stocks of raw materials, work in
process and finished goods.

Preshipment packing credit loan is availed in INR amounting to ¥ 225.00 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 275.00). The loan
is unsecured, is repayable within 360 days and carries interest in the range of 5.58 % to 5.77 % p.a (March 31,
2023: 4.93 % - 5.65 % p.a)

(ii) Term loan from banks

The Company had availed External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) loan from a bank amounting to USD 15
million, repayable over 3 equal yearly instalments of USD 5 million each commencing from July 2021. This loan
was unsecured and its interest rate was linked to Libor + agreed spread p.a. The loan was repaid in full in the
current year (March 31, 2023: USD 5 million, equivalent to % 41.09).

The Company had availed another External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) loan from a bank amounting to USD
15 million, repayable over 3 equal yearly instalments of USD 5 million each commencing from August 2022. This
loanis unsecured and its interest rate is linked to SOFR + agreed spread p.a. Outstanding balance as at March 31,
2024 is USD 5 million, equivalent to ¥ 41.71 (March 31, 2023: USD 10 million, equivalent to ¥ 82.18).

The company’s exposure to liquidity, interest rate and currency risk related to borrowings are disclosed in note 35.
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15 Borrowings (Contd.)
(iii) Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents (11.37) (31.56)
Current borrowings 334.33 312.83
Non-current borrowings 41.71 123.27
Lease liabilities 6.95 8.52
Net debt 371.62 413.06
Other Liabilities from financing activities
assets
Particulars Cash Non- Total
Current Lease
and cash . current .
. borrowings . liabilities
equivalents borrowings
Net debt as at April 1, 2023 (31.56) 312.83 123.27 8.52 413.06
Net cash flows 20.19 - - - 20.19
Proceeds from short-term borrowings = 466.25 = = 466.25
Repayment of short-term borrowings (444.73) - - (444.73)
Repayment of long-term borrowings - - (82.25) - (82.25)
Other movements including foreign _ (0.02) 0.69 ) 0.67
exchange adjustments
New leases - - - 0.86 0.86
Payment of lease liabilities - - - (2.43) (2.43)
Interest expense - 13.29 4.38 0.85 18.52
Interest paid - (13.29) (4.38) (0.85) (18.52)
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 (11.37) 334.33 41.71 6.95 371.62
Other Liabilities from financing activities
assets
Particulars Cash Non- Total
Current Lease
and cash . current R
. borrowings . liabilities
equivalents borrowings
Net debt as at April 1, 2022 (14.01) 271.53 189.50 5.41 452.43
Net cash flows (17.55) - - - (17.55)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings - 541.21 - - 541.21
Repayment of short-term borrowings (493.54) (493.54)
Repayment of long-term borrowings - - (78.96) - (78.96)
Other movements including foreign i (6.38) 1273 i 6.36
exchange adjustments
New leases - - - 6.51 6.51
Payment of lease liabilities - - - (3.40) (3.40)
Interest expense - 11.97 5.09 1.06 18.12
Interest paid - (11.97) (5.09) (1.06) (18.12)
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 (31.56) 312.82 123.27 8.52 413.06
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15 Borrowings (Contd.)

(iv) Other notes

a) Term loans were applied for the purpose they were obtained. Further, short term loans availed have not
been utilised for long term purposes by the Company.

b) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company for the sanctioned working
capital limits with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2024. Certain differences observed for the year ended March 31, 2023 with reconciliation
and reasons thereof are as follows:-

Quarter Amount as Amout as Whether

end Particulars | per books of | per quarterly | Difference Reason for differences subsequently
account statement rectified

Sep-22 |Sales 1,218.19 1,216.05 2.14 | Differences arising on account of Yes

Production 1,032.63 1,028.42 4.21 | adjustments made in connection
’ ’ with book closure process
Dec-22 | Sales 1,226.87 1,229.01 (2.14) | Differences arising on account of Yes
Production 1,047.98 1,052.19 (4.21) | @djustments made in connection
with book closure process

c) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

16 Lease liabi

lities

Lease liabilities (also refer note 40)

17 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Provision

for gratuity *

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for others

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current
5.18 1.77 6.42 2.10
5.18 1.77 6.42 2.10

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current
1.10 7.48 0.99 5.57
6.01 1.79 5.57 1.44
- 14.27 - 15.06
711 23.54 6.56 22.07

* also includes provision towards group terminal benefits

a) Provision for employee benefits

Defined

benefit plans:

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity plan, group terminal benefit
plan and an exempted provident fund managed through trust. The post employment benefit in the form of gratuity
is managed and administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The provident fund contributions to trust are
managed through trust investments. The group terminal benefit plan is made available to certain class of employees
and the same is unfunded. The Company obtains an actuarial valuation from an independent actuary measured
using projected unit credit method to determine the liability as at the reporting date.
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17 Provisions (Contd.)
The post-employment defined benefit plans operated by the Company are as follows:

i) Gratuity
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Gratuity.
The Company has its defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under this legislation,
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided
depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement/ termination age. The gratuity plan is a
funded plan and the Company makes its contributions to a recognised fund in India.
The Company expects to pay % 6.82 in contributions to its defined benefit plans in 2024-25.

The Company’s Gratuity plan valuation report includes employee benefits of the Company, its subsidiaries and
its Holding company. Based on an entity specific valuation data obtained from the actuary in this respect, the
amounts are recognised in the Company’s standalone financial statements. The following table sets out such
amounts recognised in Company’s standalone financial statements:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 3.92 3.82
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.68 0.19
Total expense 5.60 4.01
Net employee benefit expense
Recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 3.77 3.64
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.22 0.26
Sub - total 3.99 3.90
Amount allocated to related entities (0.07) (0.08)
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 3.92 3.82
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 0.24 (1.72)
Actuarial loss arising from experience adjustments 1.47 1.96
Sub - total 1.71 0.24
Amount allocated to related entities (0.03) (0.05)
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.68 0.19
The following table sets out the defined obligation and funded status As at As at
including its related entities March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Net defined obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 62.05 57.25
Fair value of plan assets (55.14) (52.24)
6.91 5.01
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17 Provisions (Contd.)

a) Provision for employee benefits (Contd.)

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation

are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss on obligation

Balance at the end of the year

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets
Contribution made by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the year

Plan assets comprises of :
% of Investment with insurer

Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

Attrition rate

Mortality rate is in accordance with the Indian Assured Lives Mortality

(2012-14) ultimate table

Classification
- Current
- Non-current

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
57.25 54.60

4.00 3.54

3.77 3.64

(4.66) (5.10)

1.69 0.57

62.05 57.25

52.24 49.35

3.78 3.28

(0.01) 0.33

3.93 3.95

(4.80) (4.67)

55.14 52.24
100.00 100.00
7.20% 7.40%
7.00% 7.00%
12.00% 12.00%
6.91 5.01

Year ended March 31, 2023

Sensitivities
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
A. Discount rate
> Sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Defined benefit obligation 59.38 64.96 54.72 60.00
> Impact on defined benefit obligation (2.67) 2.91 (2.53) 2.75
B. Salary escalation rate
> Sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Defined benefit obligation 64.37 59.88 59.45 55.19
> Impact on defined benefit obligation 2.32 (2.17) 2.20 (2.06)
C. Attrition rate
> Sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Defined benefit obligation 62.07 62.02 57.29 57.20
> Impact on defined benefit obligation 0.02 (0.03) 0.04 (0.05)

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.47 years (March 31, 2023: 5.54 years)
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17 Provisions (Contd.)
a) Provision for employee benefits (Contd.)

ii) Group terminal benefit
Group terminal benefit relates to post employment benefit paid to certain class of employees upon their retirement /
death. The level of benefit provided depends on the employee’s length of service at retirement / termination
age. The following table sets out the status of the group terminal benefit plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s standalone financial statements as at balance sheet date:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 0.21 0.21
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.10 (0.11)
Total expense 0.31 0.10
Net employee benefit expense
Recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 0.11 0.11
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.10 0.10
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 0.21 0.21
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from financial assumptions 0.01 (0.05)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from experience adjustments 0.09 (0.06)
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.10 (0.11)
Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1.55 1.69
Interest cost 0.11 0.10
Current service cost 0.11 0.11
Benefits paid (0.20) (0.24)
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation 0.10 (0.11)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1.67 1.55
Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate 7.20% 7.30%
Attrition rate 12.00% 12.00%
Remaining working lives for selected class of employees (in year) 5.13 4.79
Mortality rate is in accordance with the Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14) ultimate table
Classification
- Current 0.57 0.56
- Non-current 1.10 0.99

Note: The impact on defined benefit obligation, if any arising from change in underlying assumptions are not
considered as significant and accordingly, sensitivities have not been presented.
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17 Provisions (Contd.)

a) Provision for employee benefits (Contd.)

iii) Provident Fund

All eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate) contribute monthly. The
Company also contributes as specified under the law, in case of certain class of employees, to a provident
fund trust set up and to respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The Company’s contribution to the
Provident Fund, where set up as a trust, is liable for future provident fund benefits to the extent of its annual
contribution and any shortfall in fund assets based on government specified minimum rates of return relating to
current period service and recognises such contributions and shortfall, if any as an expense in the year incurred.
In accordance with an actuarial valuation, there is no deficiency in the interest cost as the present value of
the expected future earnings on the fund is greater than the expected amount to be credited to the individual
members based on the expected guaranteed rate of interest. Such contributions made into the fund and to the
regional provident fund commissioner during the year are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate 7.20% 7.40%
Interest rate declared by EPFO 8.25% 8.10%
Remaining working lives (in years) 6.80 6.59

iv) Compensated absences

The Company’s net obligation in respect of Compensated absences is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an

annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The Company expects to pay % 1.38 in contributions to its defined benefit plans in 2024-25.

Recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Current service cost 0.81 0.72
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.50 0.44
Net actuarial gain recognised (0.13) (0.29)
1.18 0.87
Principal actuarial assumptions used: DL As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.20% 7.40%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 12.00% 12.00%
b) Provision for others (refer note below)
Movement of Provisions for others as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 15.06 13.16
Provision made during the year, net (0.79) 1.90
Balance at the end of the year 14.27 15.06

Note:

Provision for others primarily includes provision made towards statutory liabilities.
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18 Income Tax

A Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax (a)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Current period 159.59 154.54
Tax relating to earlier years (4.53) (5.83)
Deferred tax (b)
Attributable to - origination and reversal of temporary differences 4.30 2.85
Tax expense (a) + (b) 159.36 151.56
B Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
. Amount Tax Net of tax Amount Tax Net of tax
Particulars
(expense) / (expense) /
benefit benefit
Fair value gain on equity 18.94 (8.15) 14.79 22.29 (5.75) 16.54
instruments
Remeasurements (loss) /
gain on defined benefit (1.78) 0.45 (1.33) (0.08) 0.02 (0.06)
liability
Total 17.16 (3.70) 13.46 22.21 (5.73) 16.48
C Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% Amount % Amount
Profit before tax 639.07 615.30
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 160.84 2517% 154.86
Effect of:
- CSR expenditure disallowance, net of deduction o o
under section 80G of the Income Act, 1961 R e 0.38% 2.31
- Tax relating to earlier years (0.71%) (4.53) (0.95%) (5.83)
- Others 0.03% 0.16 0.05% 0.22
Effective tax rate / tax expense 24.94% 159.36 24.63% 151.56
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18 Income Tax (Contd.)
D Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
assets liabilities (assets) / liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Property, plant and
equipment, intangible - . 121.09 122.60 121.09 122.60
assets and investment
property
Investments measured at
fair value through OCI - - 18.35 14.20 18.35 14.20
Provision for employee )
benefits (1.96) (1.28) (1.96) (1.28)
Loss allowance on trade
receivables (1.80) (3.05) - - (1.80) (3.05)
Others (1.10) (5.88) - - (1.10) (5.88)
(4.86) (10.21) 139.44 136.80 134.58 126.59
Movement in temporary differences for the year ended March 31, 2024
Balance Re_cogn|§ed Recognised Balance
in profit . Other
. as at in OCI . as at
Particulars . and loss . adjust-
April 1, during during ments March 31,
2023 2023-24 2023-24 2024
Property, plgnt and equipment, intangible 122.60 (1.51) ) ) 121.09
assets and investment property
Investments measured at fair value
through OCI 14.20 - 4.15 - 18.35
Provision for employee benefits (1.28) (0.23) (0.45) - (1.96)
Loss allowance on trade receivables (3.05) 1.25 - - (1.80)
Others (5.88) 4.79 - (0.01) (1.10)
126.59 4.30 3.70 (0.01) 134.58
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18 Income Tax (Contd.)

Movement in temporary differences for the year ended March 31, 2023

Balance Recognised | Recognised Balance
. ’ . Other
. as at in profit and in OCI . as at
Particulars . : - adjust-
April 1, loss during during ments March 31,
2022 2022-23 2022-23 2023
Property, plgnt and equipment, intangible 117.08 5.32 ) ) 122 60
assets and investment property
Investments measured at fair value
through OCI 8.45 - 5.75 - 14.20
Provision for employee benefits (1.23) (0.03) (0.02) - (1.28)
Loss allowance on trade receivables (2.86) (0.19) - - (3.05)
Others (3.63) (2.25) - - (5.88)
118.01 2.85 5.73 - 126.59

E Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future
long term capital gain will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom:

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Gross Unrecog- Gross Unrecog-
nised tax nised tax
amount amount
effect effect
Long term capital loss # 7.08 1.78 7.05 1.77

# The long term capital loss expires in Assessment Year 2031-32.

19 Other tax liabilities, net

Provision for taxation, net of advance income tax

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current  Current Non-current Current
5.34 28.36 6.99 24.58
5.34 28.36 6.99 24.58
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20 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Of the above, trade payable to related parties (refer note 37)

Disclosure required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006

20(a)

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year;
interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during the year;

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

Total

Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

86.31 62.75
350.50 365.29
436.81 428.04

1.85 1.62

86.31 62.75

86.31 62.75

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Particulars Not due Less than 1-2 years 2.3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Undisputed dues
(i) MSME 77.22 9.05 0.03 0.01 - 86.31
(i) Others 152.64 95.80 1.00 0.45 0.30 250.19
Disputed dues
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others - - - - - -
Unbilled dues 100.31 - - - - 100.31
Total 330.17 104.85 1.03 0.46 0.30 436.81
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20(a) Ageing schedule (Contd.)
As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Particulars Not due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Undisputed dues
(i) MSME 47.03 15.44 0.08 0.05 - 62.60
(i) Others 173.57 106.69 0.63 0.49 1.19 282.57
Disputed dues
(i) MSME - - - - 0.15 0.15
(i) Others - 0.01 - - 0.07 0.08
Unbilled dues 82.64 - - - - 82.64
Total 303.24 122.14 0.71 0.54 1.41 428.04

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

21 Other financial liabilities

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative liabilities
Premium on financial guarantee
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Liability towards supplier bills discounted
Unclaimed dividend (refer note 13)
Employee benefits payable
Retention money
Other payables*

Non-current  Current  Non-current Current
= 0.19 - -
= 0.96 - 1.36
= 1.24 - 2.33
= 15.56 - 13.77
= 3.99 - 4.24
= 35.90 - 32.14
3.48 7.32 - 0.88
= 15.90 - 15.87
3.48 81.06 - 70.59

* includes managerial commission of ¥ 10.30 (March 31, 2022: % 9.36) (also refer note 37)

The Company’s exposure to currency risk and liquidity risk related to other financial liability are disclosed in note 35.

22 Other current liabilities
Advance from customers
Statutory dues

As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

6.16 9.96
9.69 11.54
15.85 21.50
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Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

23 Revenue from operations

a) Sale of products 4,748.63 4,766.37
b) Sale of services 0.99 0.89
c) Other operating revenues (refer note (i) below) 156.03 154.35
4,905.65 4,921.61
Note:
(i) Other operating revenues
(i) Scrap sales 105.35 120.79
(ii) Export incentives 12.81 9.57
(iii) Others 37.87 23.99
156.03 154.35
(ii) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
In the following disclosure, revenue from contract with customers have been
disaggregated based on type of revenue and customers
a) Sale of products
(i) Domestic (including retail sales) 3,339.20 3,237.42
(i) Exports 1,409.43 1,528.95
4,748.63 4,766.37
b) Sale of services 0.99 0.89
c) Scrap sales 105.35 120.79
d) Total revenue from contracts with customers (a+b+c) 4,854.97 4,888.05
e) Other operating revenues
- Export incentives 12.81 9.57
- Others 37.87 23.99
Total other operating revenue (e) 50.68 33.56
Total revenue from operations (d + e) 4,905.65 4,921.61
(iii)Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets
and contract liabilities from contracts with customers, as applicable
Receivables which are included in trade receivables (refer note 12) 1,045.99 945.45
Contract liabilities - advance from customers (refer note 22) 6.16 9.96
(iv)Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Revenue as per contracted price 4,834.31 4,857.41
Adjusted for:
Rebates, discounts, commission, etc., (85.68) (91.04)
Total revenue from contract with customers 4,748.63 4,766.37

(v) Remaining performance obligation as at March 31, 2024 or at March 31,
2023 have an original expected duration of one year or less, as allowed by
Ind AS 115

(vi) Invoices are issued according to contractual terms which is specific to each
customers which is usually payable within 45 to 90 days
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Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

24 Other income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost

- loans to subsidiaries 0.65 0.48
- on others 2.42 2.40
Net foreign exchange gain 6.98 17.87

Dividend income from
- subsidiary companies 2.40 3.37
- other companies 0.84 0.73
Gain on sale of investments 1.55 0.32
Reversal of loss allowance towards trade receivables 4.97 -
Insurance claims 22.58 -
Other non-operating income 4.94 4.66
47.33 29.83

25 Cost of materials consumed

Opening inventory of raw materials and components 243.22 211.04
Add : Purchases made during the year 2,154.10 2,330.44
Less: Closing inventory of raw materials and components 245.76 243.22
2,151.56 2,298.26

26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
A) Opening inventory:

Work-in-progress 182.43 159.05
Finished goods 286.59 257.16
469.02 416.21
B) Closing inventory:
Work-in-progress 179.87 182.43
Finished goods 295.00 286.59
474.87 469.02
C) Increase / Decrease in inventory:
Work-in-progress 2.56 (23.38)
Finished goods (8.41) (29.43)
Total (A - B) (5.85) (52.81)

27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 297.43 288.15
Expenses relating to post-employment benefit plans (refer note 17) 4.13 4.03
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note below) 12.27 11.27
Staff welfare expenses 33.88 30.60

347.71 334.05
Note:

The amount recognised as expense towards provident fund contribution
aggregated to ¥ 11.11 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 10.33).
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28

29

30

Finance costs

Interest expense

- on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

- on lease liabilities (refer note 40)

- on others

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised (also refer note below)

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs
to be capitalised is weighted average interest rate applicable to the company’s
borrowing, being 6.04% p.a. (March 31, 2023: 5.82%) p.a.

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 5(a))

Depreciation on investment property (refer note 5(c))

Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5(d) and note 40)

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5(e))

Other expenses
Consumption of stores, tools and spares
Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 40)
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings
- plant and equipment
- others
Sub-contract expenses
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below)
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 33)
Freight and cartage outward
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net
Loss allowance on trade receivables

Miscellaneous expenses
(Under this head there are no expenditure which is in excess of 1% of revenue
from operations)

Note:
Auditor’s remuneration
As auditor
Statutory audit
Tax audit
Limited review of quarterly results
Certification
In other capacity
Taxation matters
Reimbursement of expenses

Year ended

Year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

20.15 17.18
0.85 1.06
0.12 2.35
0.68 5.96

(3.81) (1.92)
17.99 24.63
164.55 152.52
- 0.02

2.93 3.91
0.83 0.80
168.31 157.25
508.03 502.67
226.62 210.41
11.16 8.15
49.76 39.34
60.05 55.09
9.45 7.29
502.80 482.14
1.09 1.18
10.81 9.12
139.64 157.80
1.99 0.92

- 0.74
112.79 99.91

1,634.19 1,574.76
0.57 0.65
0.04 0.05
0.35 0.35
0.08 0.08

- 0.02
0.05 0.03
1.09 1.18
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Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

31 Earnings per share (EPS)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 479.71 463.74
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding as at reporting date (B) 21,01,28,370 21,01,28,370
Basic earnings per equity share (in ) (A/B) 22.83 22.07

Diluted earnings per share
The Company does not have any potential equity shares. Accordingly, basic and diluted EPS are the same.

32 Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

(iii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

other than in the ordinary course of business.

(iv) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(vi) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies
(ROC) beyond statutory period except the following:

Registrar  Days of As at As at
Chargeholder Name location delay* March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Government of Tamilnadu Chennai - 2.80 2.80

* The Company is awaiting for No-objection certificate from concerned chargeholders for filing the requisite satisfaction
of charges with ROC since April 2014.
(vii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(viii) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year other than that referred to in Note 39 of these financial statements.

(ix) Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies
Act, 1956 are as follows:-

Relationship

Nature of As at As at -
Name of the struck off Company h with the Struck
transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 off Company
Helical Springs Limited Payable for Purchase 0.03 0.03  Third party
of goods supplier
RBC Bearings Private Limited * Payable for Purchase - 0.00 Third party
of goods supplier
Scanstar Inspection Technology Private Payable for Purchase 0.10 0.13  Third party
Limited of goods supplier
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32 Other statutory information (Contd.)

Relationship

Nature of As at As at .
Name of the struck off Company h with the Struck
transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 off Company
Resems Instruments Private Limited Payable for Purchase - 0.02  Third party
of equipments supplier
Sundharams Private Limited* Services availed 0.00 0.00 Services
provider
Rvee Business Solution Private Limited Payable for Purchase 0.01 0.01  Third party
of goods supplier

* Amount less than ¥ 0.01

(x) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

33 Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR)
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 10.81 9.12
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 10.81 9.12
¢) Amount spent during the year (in cash):
(i) Construction / acquisition of asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above

a) Education 4.52 3.44
b) Healthcare 2.40 1.85
¢) Mental health education 1.83 2.038
d) Others 2.06 1.80

10.81 9.12

d) Unspent obligations as the end of the year - -
e) Total of previous years unspent obligations - -

f) Details of unspent obligation NA NA
g) Details of related party transactions ALY gz:zvl Refer r;)c:livl
h) The movements in the provision for unspent CSR (relating to ongoing project)
is as follows:
Opening balance 0.29 0.64
Amount required to be spent during the year - -
Amount spent during the year 0.29 0.35
Closing balance - 0.29

Details of unspent obligation:
In case of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act (ongoing project)

Opening balance as at . Amount spent during the year Closing balance as at
April 01, 2023 in separate CSR Amount re_qmred to be spent from separate CSR unspent March 31, 2024 in separate CSR
during the year
unspent account account unspent account
0.29 - 0.29 -
In case of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act (ongoing project)

Opening balance as at . Amount spent during the year Closing balance as at
April 01, 2022 in separate CSR Amoundtaﬁ?‘u':ﬁg tc;::a spent from separate CSR unspent March 31, 2023 in separate CSR
unspent account 9 y account unspent account
0.64 - 0.35 0.29

Note 1 : The above expenditure includes contribution of % 1.70 (March 31, 2023 - % 3.50) to Krishna Educational Society, over which the
Company has significant influence (also refer note 37).
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34 Ratios as per the schedule lll requirements:
a) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Current assets 1,960.99 1,833.76
Current liabilities 963.43 963.89
Ratio 2.04 1.90
% change from previous year 7.37%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

b) Debt-Equity Ratio = Total debt divided by total equity where total debt represents aggregate of current and
non-current borrowings

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Total debt 376.04 436.10
Total equity 3,279.22 2,906.66
Ratio 0.11 0.15
% change from previous year (26.67%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Change attributable to reduction in borrowings and profits made during the year.

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by total interest and principal

repayments

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Profit after tax 479.71 463.74
Add:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 168.31 157.25
Finance cost 17.99 24.63
Earnings available for debt services 666.01 645.62
Interest payment on borrowings 20.15 17.18
Principal payment of lease liabilities 2.43 4.46
Principal repayments 82.25 78.96
Total interest and principal repayments 104.83 100.60
Ratio 6.35 6.42
% change from previous year (1.09%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

d) Return on equity ratio / Return on investment ratio = Profit after tax divided by average total equity

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Profit after tax 479.71 463.74
Average total equity (refer note below) 3,092.94 2,727.15
Ratio 15.51% 17.00%
% change from previous year (8.76%)

Note: Average shareholder’'s equity = (Total equity as at beginning of respective year + total equity as at end of
respective year) divided by 2.

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable
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34 Ratios as per the schedule lll requirements: (Contd.)
e) Inventory turnover ratio = Cost of goods sold divided by average inventory

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Turnover (refer note 1 below) 4,892.84 4,912.04
Average inventory (refer note 2 below) 788.92 736.76
Ratio 6.20 6.67
% change from previous year (7.05%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

Note:

1. Turnover represents revenue from operations excluding export incentives.
2. Average inventory = (Total inventory as at beginning of respective year + total inventory as at end of respective
year) divided by 2

f) Trade receivables turnover ratio = Sales divided by average trade receivables

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Turnover (refer note 1 below) 4,892.84 4,912.04
Average trade receivables (refer note 2 below) 995.72 891.77
Ratio 4.91 5.51
% change from previous year (10.89%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable
Note:
1. Turnover represents revenue from operations excluding export incentives

2. Average trade receivables = (Total trade receivables as at beginning of respective year + total trade receivables as
at end of respective year) divided by 2.

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Purchases divided by average trade payables

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases (refer note 1 below) 3,164.93 3,315.25
Average trade payables (refer note 2 below) 432.42 385.59
Ratio 7.32 8.60
% change from previous year (14.88%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable
Note:
1. Purchases includes purchase of materials, consumption of stores, tools and spares and sub-contractor expenses.

2. Average trade payables = (Total Trade Payables as at beginning of respective year + Total Trade Payables as at
end of respective year) divided by 2.
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34

Ratios as per the schedule lll requirements: (Contd.)
h) Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from operations divided by working capital

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations 4,905.65 4,921.61
Working capital (refer note below) 997.56 869.87
Ratio 4.92 5.66
% change from previous year (13.07%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable
Note: Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Revenue from operations

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit after tax 479.71 463.74
Revenue from operations 4,905.65 4,921.61
Ratio 9.78% 9.42%
% change from previous year 3.82%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

j) Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by capital employed

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Earnings before interest and taxes (refer note 1 below) 657.06 639.93
Capital employed (refer note 2 below) 3,796.79 3,477.86
Ratio 17.31% 18.40%
% change from previous year (5.92%)

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

Note:

1. EBIT = Profit before taxes + finance cost
2. Capital employed = Total equity + total debt + deferred tax liabilities + lease liabilities

k) Return on investments = Income generated from invested funds divided by Average invested funds in

treasury investments

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income generated from invested funds 0.39 0.32
Invested funds in treasury investments 712 7.80
Ratio 5.49% 4.10%
% change from previous year 33.90%

Reason for change more than 25% : Change attributable to market volatility
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels
in the fair value hierarchy

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars Note | evpL  Fvoci Amortised o pvRL Fvoct AMOtised o
cost cost

Financial assets
mﬁ:ﬂiﬁi i(rf’éz'é‘gi'd”igries) 6 | 2170 106.14 - 12784 966  87.20 - 96.86
Loans 7 - - 15.63  15.63 - - 15.25 15.25
Security deposits 8 - - 4549  45.49 - - 36.58 36.58
Claims receivable 8 - - 2487  24.87 - - -
Advances recoverable 8 - - 0.34 0.34 - - 1.75 1.75
Interest receivable 8 - - 1.93 1.93 - - 1.12 1.12
Trade receivables 12 - - 1,045.99 1,045.99 - - 945.45 94545
Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) - - 11.37 11.37 - - 31.56 31.56
chandcanequaens 0| - @ s . a4 4
Total financial assets 21.70 106.14 1,149.61 1,277.45 9.66 87.20 1,035.95 1,132.81
Financial liabilities
a%rrr:o"‘;:”gs andinterest 45 ¢ o1 - - 37728 377.28 - - 43843  438.43
Trade payables 20 - - 436.81 436.81 - - 428.04  428.04
Derivative liabilities 21 0.19 - - 0.19 - - -
g&zg;’geon financial 21 0.96 - - 09 136 - - 136
t;ﬁ‘;"gg;g:”nigs supplier 4 - - 1556  15.56 - - 1377 1377
Unclaimed dividend 21 - - 3.99 3.99 - - 4.24 4.24
Employee benefits payable 21 - - 35.90 35.90 - - 32.14 32.14
Retention money 21 - - 10.80 10.80 - - 0.88 0.88
Other payables 21 = = 15.90 15.90 - - 15.87 15.87
Total financial liabilities 1.15 - 896.24 897.39 1.36 - 933.37 934.73

Fair value measurement hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data

153



Sundram Fasteners Limited

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)

B Accounting classification and fair values (Contd.)

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
standalone financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Particulars Note |Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amount Level1 Level2 Level3 amount |[evel1 Level2 Level3

Financial assets

:rr]‘\‘:::fm::tt: i‘ﬁ’;‘jggggries) 6 127.84  19.14 - 10870 96.86  20.60 - 7626

Loans # 7 15.63 - - - 15.25 -

Security deposits # 8 45.49 - - - 3658 -

Claims receivable 8 24.87 - - - -

Advances recoverable # 8 0.34 - - - 1.75 -

Interest receivable # 8 1.93 - - - 1.12 -

Trade receivables # 12 1,045.99 - - - 945.45 -

Cash and cash equivalents # 13 (a) 11.37 - - - 3156 -

e o | am - - -

Total financial assets 1,277.45 19.14 - 108.70 1,132.81 20.60 - 76.26

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and interest thereon # 15 & 21 | 377.28 - - - 43843 -

Trade payables # 20 436.81 - - - 428.04 -

Derivative liabilities 21 0.19 - 0.19 - - -

Premium on financial guarantee 21 0.96 - 0.96 1.36 1.36

E;:::)Iﬁﬁttggvzrds supplier bills 21 15.56 ) ) 13.77 i

Unclaimed dividend # 21 3.99 - - 4.24 -

Employee benefits payable # 21 35.90 - - 32.14 -

Retention money 21 10.80 - - 0.88 -

Other payables # 21 15.90 - - 15.87 -

Total financial liabilities 897.39 - 1.15 - 934.73 1.36

# For those financial assets and liabilities, which are not carried at its fair value, disclosure of fair value is not required as the

carrying amounts approximates the fair values.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2022 54.06
Investments made during the year 1.92
Gains / (loss) included in statement of profit and loss and OCI 20.28
Balance as at March 31, 2023 76.26
Investments made during the year 14.27
Investments sold during the year 2.23
Gains / (loss) included in statement of profit and loss and OCI 20.40
Balance as at March 31, 2024 108.70
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)
B Accounting classification and fair values (Contd.)
Measurement of fair values

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments
measured at fair value in balance sheet including the related valuation techniques used

Inter-relationship between

Valuation technique Significant unobservable - -
Type . significant unobservable inputs
used inputs ;
and fair value measurement
Investments | Discounted cash flows: The - Cash flow estimates for the The estimated fair value would
valuation model considers the projected period, particularly increase/ (decrease) if:
present value of the net cash flows EBITDA margin - Cash flow estimates were higher/
expected to be generated. The cash |- Risk adjusted discount rate (lower)
flow projections include specific - Risk adjusted discount rate lower/
estimates for projected period. (higher)

The expected net cash flows are
discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate.

Derivative | Market comparison technique: The | Not applicable Not applicable
liabilities fair value is determined using quoted
forward exchange rates at the
reporting dates based on information
obtained from respective bankers.

C Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Market risk
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk

Financial risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The board of directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s senior management advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company.

The Company’s risk management policies established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through establishment of standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide
guarantees to support the operations of its group companies. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and
other receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the company.
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts that are entered to hedge foreign
currency risk exposure. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)
Financial risk management (Contd.)
The sources of risks which the company is exposed to and their management is given below:

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price
of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits,
foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings. The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial
instruments and specifically to currency risk, interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which arise from both its operating
and investing activities.

i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the foreign currency borrowings, import of raw materials and spare parts, capital expenditure, export sales and the
Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.
Currency risk (foreign exchange risk) arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
in a currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured. For the purpose of Ind AS, currency risk
does not arise from financial instruments that are non-monetary items or from financial instruments denominated in the
functional currency.
The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions through forward contracts, for the repayment of
short and long term borrowings and payables arsing out of procurement of raw materials and other components. When
a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to
match the terms of the hedged exposure.
Where the amounts to be paid and received in a specific currency are expected to largely offset one another, no further
hedging activity is undertaken.
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities which expose the Company to currency risk are disclosed
below. The amounts shown are those reported translated at the closing rate. Unhedged foreign currency risk exposure
at the end of the reporting period has been expressed in Rupees.

Short-term exposure Long-term exposure
Usb  GBP E“)’tﬁ:r’;d Total | USD  GBP Egtﬁ ;’;d Total
March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 393.58 31.72 96.08 521.38 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1.66 - - 1.66 - - - -
Trade payables (6.27) (0.90) (13.04) (20.21) - - - -
Borrowings (41.71) - - (41.7) - - - -
Others including loans (0.45) - - (0.45) 0.08 9.23 - 9.31
346.81 30.82 83.04 460.67 0.08 9.23 - 9.31
March 31, 2023
Trade receivables 258.34 34.49 81.30 374.13 -
Cash and cash equivalents 0.05 - - 0.05 -
Trade payables (14.44) (0.98) (4.01)  (19.43) -
Borrowings (82.18) - - (82.18)| (41.09) - - (41.09)
Others including loans (1.37) 0.23 - (1.14) 0.08 7.89 - 7.97
160.40 33.74 7729 271.43| (41.01) 7.89 - (33.12)
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)

i)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit and equity with respect to the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities and in relation to the fluctuation in the respective currencies ‘all other things being equal’.

If the Indian Rupee had strengthened/ weakened against the respective currency by 5% during the year ended March
31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 5%), then this would have had the following impact on profit before tax and equity:

The sensitivity analysis is based on the Company’s foreign currency financial instruments held at each reporting date.
Strengthening Weakening

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Increase / (decrease) in

profit and equity

usb (17.34) (5.97) 17.34 5.97

GBP (2.00) (2.08) 2.00 2.08

EUR and others (4.15) (3.86) 4.15 3.86
(23.50) (11.92) 23.50 11.92

Derivative instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward to mitigate the risk of changes in
exchange rates on foreign currency exposure arising from receipt of collections from export customers and repayment
of External commercial borrowings to a foreign bank. The counterparties of these contracts are generally banks. These
derivative financial instruments are determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the reporting dates based on
information obtained from respective bankers.

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Less than 180 days More than 180 days Less than 180 days More than 180 days

Receivables

Forward exchange
contracts maturing

Net exposure 75.11 -

Average %/ USD forward

contract rate 83.45 .

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal
maturity profile and financing cost. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed
and variable rate borrowings. The Company has Nil% (March 31, 2023: Nil%) of its borrowings at a fixed rate of interest.

Interest rate exposure
Floating rate Fixed rate

Particulars instruments instruments ezl
Financial assets - 59.46 59.46
Financial liabilities (376.04) - (376.04)
As at March 31, 2024 (376.04) 59.46 (316.58)
Financial assets - 50.29 50.29
Financial liabilities (436.10) - (436.10)
As at March 31, 2023 (436.10) 50.29 (385.81)
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit and equity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of
+/- 1% for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. These changes are considered to be reasonably
possible based on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average
market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Increase +1% 3.76 4.36
Decrease -1% (3.76) (4.36)
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Increase +1% 2.82 3.27
Decrease -1% (2.82) (3.27)

The Company does not expect any change in interest rates on fixed rate borrowings and accordingly have not presented
any sensitivities on such borrowings.The Company also does not expect any significant impact of changes in the market
interest rates.

Equity price risk

The Company has invested in listed and unlisted equity instruments. All investments in equity portfolio are reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At the reporting date, the exposure to equity securities at fair value 106.14 87.20

Sensitivity analysis — Equity price risk

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of change in fair values on other comprehensive income and equity to a
reasonably possible changes in equity price of +/- 5% for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. These
changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions. The calculations
are based on a changes in the equity price for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that
are sensitive to changes in equity price. All other variables are held constant.

Impact in other comprehensive income G As at

p p March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase +5% 5.31 4.36
Decrease -5% (5.31) (4.36)
Impact in equit LEEL As at

P qury March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase +5% 3.98 3.27
Decrease -5% (3.98) (3.27)
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)
b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an
allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of the Company’s trade
receivables, certain loans and advances and other financial assets. The Company enters into long term contracts with its
customers whereby it mitigates the risk exposure on high risk customers. Further, none of the customers contributes to more
than 10% of the Company’s total revenues as continuous efforts are made in expanding its customer base. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored and reviewed by the Audit committee periodically.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Carrying Amount

Particulars Reference As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables (i) 1,045.99 945.45
Investments (ii) 127.84 96.86
Loans (ifi) 15.63 15.25
Cash and cash equivalents (iv) 11.37 31.56
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (iv) 3.99 4.24
Security deposits (v) 45.49 36.58
Claims receivable (v) 24.87 -
Advances recoverable (v) 0.34 1.75
Interest receivable (v) 1.93 1.12
Total 1,277.45 1,132.81

(i) Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers
are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including end-user customers, their geographic location, industry,
trading history with the Company and existence of previous financial difficulties. With respect to other financial
assets, the Company does not expect any credit risk against such assets except as already assessed. The Company
is monitoring the economic environment in the country and is taking actions to limit its exposure to customers with
customers experiencing particular economic volatility.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine
incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant
credit losses. The Company has adopted a practical measure of computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivable and other financial assets, which comprise large number of small balances, based on a provision matrix.
The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information
including consideration for increased likelihood of credit risk. Further, the Company also makes an allowance for doubtful
debts on a case to case basis.
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)
b) Credit risk (Contd.)
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Not more than 180 days 1,021.65 933.05
More than 180 days 31.44 24.47
Sub-total 1,053.09 957.52
Less: Loss allowance in accordance with expected credit loss model (7.10) (12.07)
Total 1,045.99 945.45

The composition of trade receivable and unbilled revenue balances are as follows:-

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Weighted Gross Weighted Gross
average  carrying average carrying
lossrate  amount loss rate amount

Loss Credit
allowance  imapired

Loss Credit
allowance imapired

Not due 0.03% 851.35 0.26 - 0.03% 751.93 0.22
Less than 6 months 0.05% 170.30 0.08 - 0.04% 181.11 0.08
6 months to one year 19.21% 25.45 4.89 - 1.20% 7.51 0.09
More than one year 31.22% 5.99 1.87 - 68.83% 16.97 11.68
Sub-total 0.67%  1,053.09 7.10 - 1.26% 957.52 12.07

Add: Unbilled dues - o o R

Add: Disputed trade
receivables

Total trade receivables 1,053.09 7.10 - 957.52 12.07

(ii) Investments

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approval of Board of Directors. Investments primarily
include investments in equity instruments of various listed entities, power generation companies, compulsorily
convertible preference shares and other trade investments.

(iii) Loans
The balance is primarily constituted by loans given to related parties and to its employees. The Company does not
expect any loss from non-performance by these counter-parties.

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loans to related parties 13.97 13.71
Loans to employees 1.66 1.54
Net carrying amount 15.63 15.25

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

The Company has its cash and bank balances deposited with credit worthy banks as at the reporting date. The Company
does not expect any loss from non-performance by these counter-parties.

(v) Others
Other financial assets comprising of security deposits, derivative assets, interest receivable and advance recoverable
primarily consists of deposits with TNEB for obtaining Electricity connections, rental deposits given for lease of premises,
claims receivable. The Company does not expect any loss from non-performance by these counter-parties.
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35 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Contd.)
c¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company’s treasury team is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks
are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on
the basis of expected cash flows.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a current ratio with an optimal mix of short term loans and long term loans. The
Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company
has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months and the management is confident
that it can roll over its debt with existing lenders. The Board of Directors periodically reviews the Company’s business
requirements vis-a-vis the source of funding.
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at March 31, 2024 c:::::;nn% than 180 t:;: than 180 I::;:
Borrowings and interest thereon 377.28 378.74 -
Derivative liabilities 0.19 0.19 -
Premium on financial guarantee 0.96 0.25 0.71
Retention money 10.80 7.32 3.48
Trade payables 436.81 433.53 3.28
Liability towards supplier bills discounted 15.56 15.56 -
Unclaimed dividend 3.99 0.49 3.50
Employee benefits payable 35.90 35.86 0.04
Other payables 15.90 10.30 5.60
Total 897.39 882.24 16.61
As at March 31, 2023 C:JIZL"ngt than 180 IJ:;: than 180 ZI:;:
Borrowings and interest thereon 438.43 401.80 43.33
Premium on financial guarantee 1.36 0.45 0.91
Retention money 0.88 0.88

Trade payables 428.04 425.64 2.40
Liability towards supplier bills discounted 13.77 13.77 -
Unclaimed dividend 4.24 0.46 3.78
Employee benefits payable 32.14 31.67 0.47
Other payables 15.87 9.37 6.50
Total 934.73 884.04 57.38

D Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company does not have any financial instruments that are offset or are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements
and other similar agreements.
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As at As at

36 Contingencies and commitments March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Contingent liabilities
- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

Legal claims
- Sales tax / Entry tax 11.89 12.54
- Excise duty / Customs duty / Service tax / GST 16.78 7.24
- Income-tax 5.88 1.98
- Others 1.00 1.00

35.55 22.76
(i) The Hon’ble Supreme Court in its ruling dated February 28, 2019 held that the allowances paid to employees
are essentially a part of the basic wage, which are necessarily and ordinarily paid to all employees and are to
be treated as wages for the purpose of ‘(PF)’ Provident Fund contribution, with fewer exception to the same.
With respect to a demand of ¥ 1.63 pertaining to the period March 2011 to December 2013 raised earlier by PF
authorities, a provision has been made, however writ petition/appeal has been filed by the Company challenging
the same. Based on legal advice, considering that the PF authorities has not commenced any proceedings claiming
contribution on allowances for prior or subsequent periods and considering interpretative challenges surrounding
the retrospective application of the judgement and absence of reliable measurement of provisions relating to earlier
periods, this matter has been disclosed as a contingent liability. The said amount has been paid to the authorities
by the Company.
(i) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in these financial statements.

The Company is involved in taxation matters that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business.
Judgment is required in assessing the range of possible outcomes for some of these tax matters, which could
change substantially over time as each of the matter progresses depending on experience on actual assessment
proceedings by tax authorities and other judicial precedents. Based on its internal assessment supported by
external legal counsel views, where the management considered necessary, the Company believes that it will be
able to sustain its positions if challenged by the authorities and accordingly no additional provision is required for
these matters.

Management is of the view that above matters will not have any material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position and results of operations.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Guarantees
Guarantees including financial guarantees issued to subsidiaries and
utilised (Total guarantees issued to subsidiaries: ¥ 299.97 (March 31, 2023: 115.95 140.25
¥ 303.90))
- Other money for which the Company is contingently liable
On letters of credit 22.05 11.42

On partly paid shares of The Adyar Property Holding Company Limited

(aggregating to ¥ 1,225/-)* v 0.00
* Amount less than % 0.01
b) Contingent assets
Claim of additional compensation against land acquisition 0.23 0.23
c) Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 118.89 101.01

and not provided for
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37 (A) Related party disclosures

Related Parties:

() Where control exists:

(A)

(B)

(%)

(D)

Ultimate holding company

(1) TVS Sundram Fasteners Private Limited, Chennai, India

Subsidiary companies
Indian subsidiaries

1) Sundram Fasteners Investments Limited, Chennai,
2) TVS Upasana Limited, Chennai,

3) Sundram Non-Conventional Energy Systems Limited, Chennai,

(1)
(@)
3)
(4) TVS Next Limited, Chennai,

Foreign subsidiaries
(1) Sundram International Limited, UK and

(2) Sundram International Inc, Michigan, USA

Step down subsidiary companies
Foreign subsidiaries

(1) Sundram Fasteners (Zhejiang) Limited, Zhejiang, People’s Republic of China
(Subsidiary of Sundram International Limited, UK);

(2) Cramlington Precision Forge Limited, Northumberland, United Kingdom
(Subsidiary of Sundram International Limited, UK); and

(3) TVS Next Inc., Michigan, USA (Subsidiary of TVS Next Limited, Chennai, India)

Others

Post employement benefit plan

(1) Sundram Fasteners Limited Gratuity Fund

(2) Sundram Fasteners Limited Senior Staff Superannuation Fund and

(3) Sundram Fasteners Limited Staff Provident Fund (Employees)

Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant influence
1) Krishna Educational Society

Suresh Krishna HUF

UFL Properties Private Limited

)
)
4) Lakshminarayana Ancillaries Private Limited
) Madras Engineering Industries Private Limited
)

Southern Roadways Private Limited
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37 Related party disclosures (Contd.)

(Il) Other related parties:
(A) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
(1) Mr Suresh Krishna
(2) Ms Arathi Krishna
(3) Ms Arundathi Krishna
(4) Mr S Meenakshisundaram (upto June 30, 2022)
(5) Mr R Dilip Kumar* and
(6) Mr G Anand Babu*

(B) Non-executive directors

1) Mr S Mahalingam
) Mr Heramb R Hajarnavis
) Mr B Muthuraman

4) Ms Preethi Krishna
)

Dr. Nirmala Lakshman

(C) Relatives of KMP
(1) Ms Usha Krishna
(2) Ms Preethi Krishna and
(3) Mr. Vinod Krishnan

* Key Managerial Personnel as per Companies Act, 2013
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37 Related party disclosures (Contd.)
(lll) Transactions with related parties referred in (I) and (ll) above, in the ordinary course of business:

] Subsidiary Ultim_ate Key Relatives of key
Nature of transaction companies holding management management Others
company personnel personnel
Purchases
Goods and materials (including 10.01 - - - -
reimbursement of expenses) (5.86) - - - -
Fixed Assets 0.12 - - - -
(0.16) - - - -
Sales
Goods and materials 21.86 114.08 - = 1.06
(14.62) (123.50) - - (0.94)
Services
Rendered 0.02 = = = =
(0.57) - - - -
Received 14.87 = = = 5.02
(11.47) - - - (4.86)
Finance
Interest on inter-corporate loans 0.65 - - - -
(0.48)
Dividend received 2.40 - - - -
(3.37)
Dividend paid - 58.33 0.08 0.04 0.07
- (56.60) (0.08) (0.04) (0.06)
Others
;srzﬂgg;1nem?éd or outward / hire purchase 0.01 0.10 1.00 } }
(0.01) (0.06) (1.11) (0.05) (0.01)
Guarantees and collaterals furnished or 3167 ) ) ) )
availed
Post employee benefit contribution - - - - 12.18
- - - - (11.72)
Donations = = = = 1.70
- - - - (3.50)
Reversal of loss towards trade receivables 5.00 - = = >
(4.14) - - - -
Management contracts (including ; ; 16.36 013 )
commission)
- - (16.16) (0.13) -
Sitting fees to KMP / sitting fees and _ _ _ B 0.54
commission to non-executive directors
- - - - (0.54)
Reimbursement of expenses - 3.66 - - -
- (3.96) - - -
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37 Related party disclosures (Contd.)
(Ill) Transactions with related parties referred in (I) and (ll) above, in the ordinary course of business: (Contd.)

] Subsidiary UItim_ate Key Relatives of key
Nature of transaction companies holding management management Others

company personnel personnel

Outstanding balances

Investments 248.52 - - - -
(247.94) - - - -
Outstanding loan 13.97 - - - -
(14.11) - - - -
Interest receivable 1.09 - - - -
(0.23) - - - -
Due to the Company 20.35 27.15 - - 0.08
(29.25)  (18.73) - - (0.30)
Due by the Company 1.77 - - = 0.08
(0.98) - - - (0.64)
Guarantees given outstanding 115.95 - - - -
(140.25) - - - -

(Previous year figures are in brackets)

(IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are at arm’s length and all the outstanding balances are unsecured (also refer
note 42).

38 Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
financial year ended March 31, 2024

Nature of Amount of | Purpose for which the loan / security / acquisition of

Name of the body corporate transaction transaction | shares / guarantee utilised by receipient

Sundaram Overnight Fund Direct Growth Scheme of | Investment in

Sundaram Asset Management Co Limited, Chennai | mutual funds 1,854.00 | Treasury investments

Corporate

Cramlington Precision Forge Limited, UK
guarantee

31.67 | Availment of working capital loan from bank
Investment in
First Energy 4 Private Limited power generation 4.75
companies

Investment in equity shares for purchase of power
under group captive basis

Investment in
First Energy 5 Private Limited power generation 7.77
companies

Investment in equity shares for purchase of power
under group captive basis

Investment in
First Energy 6 Private Limited power generation 1.75
companies

Investment in equity shares for purchase of power
under group captive basis
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39 Amalgamation

a)

f)

Sunfast TVS Limited was a public limited company engaged in the business of promoting the non-auto business
segments through job-work, establishing supply-chain and sourcing components. TVS Engineering Limited was a
public limited company engaged in the business of manufacture of aerospace and defence components.

Both Sunfast TVS Limited and TVS Engineering Limited were wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company as at
March 31, 2023.

The Board of Directors of the Sundram Fasteners Limited, at their meeting held on November 08, 2022, approved
Composite Scheme of Merger between Sundram Fasteners Limited, Sunfast TVS Limited and TVS Engineering
Limited and their respective shareholders for the Merger by Absorption of the Sunfast TVS Limited and TVS
Engineering Limited into Sundram Fasteners Ltd, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).
The Company made an application for such amalgamation with NCLT on December 26, 2022.

Pursuant to the order dated 19 February 2024 by National Company Law Tribunal, Sunfast TVS Limited and TVS
Engineering Limited (the “transferor companies”) were merged with the Company with an appointed date of April 1,
2023. The order has been made effective on 15 May 2024, upon complying with all the relevant requirements under
the Companies Act, 2013.

The amalgamation has been accounted for under the ‘pooling of interest’ method as prescribed by Appendix C of
Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”. Given that the merger is a common control transaction, the prior year figures
have been restated as if the merger had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period. i.e., April 1, 2022.

Consequent to the scheme of amalgamation, the authorized share capital of the transferor companies stands
cancelled. Also, since the merger is of the wholly owned subsidiary with its parent company, no shares were
exchanged to effect the amalgamation.

Summary of the assets, liabilities and reserves taken over as on April 1, 2022 as mentioned below:-

- Sunfast TVS . T.VS

Particulars s Engineering Amount
Limited o

Limited
Total assets taken over 0.32 2.69 3.01
Total liabilities taken over (0.34) (2.37) (2.71)
Reserves taken over 0.03 1.68 1.71
Net assets taken over 0.01 2.00 2.01
Cancellation of investment made in Transferor companies (2.01)

Difference between investment value and net assets
(after reducing reserves) adjusted in retained earnings

The impact of the above merger on the previously reported balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Sundram TVS

. Sunfast TVS . . . Year ended
Particulars Fiisrtnei:l:c;s Limited EnEilg?tzrglng Adjustments March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,604.82 - 2.64 - 1,607.46
Capital work-in-progress 45.90 - - - 45.90
Investment property 0.17 - - - 0.17
Right-of-use assets 45.53 - - - 45.53
Intangible assets 1.93 - - - 1.93
Financial assets
- Investments 346.82 - - (2.02) 344.80
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39 Amalgamation (Contd.)

Particulars Fiirt]:rzzlr‘; Sun_fa_st VS Engi-:-l\é:ring Adjustments Year ended
Limited Limited Limited March 31, 2023
- Loans 13.61 - (4.51) 9.10
- Other financial assets 36.23 - - - 36.23
Other tax assets, net 63.03 - - - 63.03
Other non-current assets 70.29 - - - 70.29
Total non-current assets 2,228.33 - 2.64 (6.53) 2,224.44
Current assets
Inventories 782.12 0.20 0.17 - 782.49
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 944.84 0.29 2.86 (2.54) 945.45
- Cash and cash equivalents 30.96 0.05 0.55 - 31.56
cI;Baasrr11ket(;:::Iii:l/;lceenstsother than cash and 404 i i ) 404
- Loans 6.15 - - - 6.15
- Other financial assets 2.87 - 0.35 - 3.22
Other current assets 60.11 0.02 0.52 60.65
Total current assets 1,831.29 0.56 4.45 (2.54) 1,833.76
Total assets 4,059.62 0.56 7.09 (9.07) 4,058.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 21.01 0.01 2.00 (2.01) 21.01
Other equity 2,888.02 0.01 (2.38) - 2,885.65
Total equity 2,909.03 0.02 (0.38) (2.01) 2,906.66
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 41.09 - 4.51 (4.51) 41.09
- Lease liabilities 6.42 - - - 6.42
Provisions 6.56 - - - 6.56
Deferred tax liabilities, net 126.56 - 0.03 - 126.59
Other tax liabilities, net 6.99 - - - 6.99
Total non-current liabilities 187.62 - 4.54 (4.51) 187.65
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 395.01 - - - 395.01
- Lease liabilities 2.10 - - - 2.10
- Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro 62.04 012 0.39 i 62.75

enterprises and small enterprises; and
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39 Amalgamation (Contd.)

. Sundram Sunfast TVS .TVS . . Year ended

Particulars Fasteners - Engineering Adjustments

. Limited A March 31, 2023

Limited Limited

total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small 364.93 0.41 2.50 (2.55) 365.29
enterprises
- Other financial liabilities 70.58 - 0.01 - 70.59
Other current liabilities 21.47 - 0.03 - 21.50
Provisions 22.07 - - - 22.07
Current tax liabilities, net 24.57 0.01 - - 24.58
Total current liabilities 962.97 0.54 2.93 (2.55) 963.89
Total liabilities 1,150.59 0.54 7.47 (7.06) 1,151.54
Total equity and liabilities 4,059.62 0.56 7.09 (9.07) 4,058.20

The impact of the above merger on the previously reported statement of profit and loss for the year ended
March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Sundram TVS
Particulars Fasteners Sun'fa.st VS Engineering Adjustments Year ended
.. Limited .. March 31, 2023
Limited Limited
Income
Revenue from operations 4,919.43 0.77 3.47 (2.06) 4,921.61
Other income 29.98 - - (0.15) 29.83
Total income 4,949.41 0.77 3.47 (2.21) 4,951.44
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 2,297.85 0.37 1.72 (1.68) 2,298.26
Changes in myentones of finished (52.69) 0.03 (0.15) i (52.81)
goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 333.98 - 0.07 - 334.05
Finance costs 24.63 - 0.15 (0.15) 24.63
Depreciation and amortisation expense 157.02 - 0.23 - 157.25
Other expenses 1,572.69 0.31 214 (0.38) 1,574.76
Total expenses 4,333.48 0.71 416 (2.21) 4,336.14
tF;lr)?flt before exceptional items and 615.93 0.06 (0.69) ) 615.30
Exceptional item - - - - -
Profit before tax 615.93 0.06 (0.69) - 615.30
Tax expense
a) Current tax 148.70 0.01 - - 148.71
b) Deferred tax 2.83 - 0.02 - 2.85
Total tax expense 151.53 0.01 0.02 - 151.56
Profit for the year 464.40 0.05 (0.71) - 463.74
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39 Amalgamation (Contd.)

. Sundram Sunfast TVS .TVS . . Year ended

Particulars Fasteners - Engineering Adjustments

. Limited A March 31, 2023

Limited Limited

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements losses on defined i i )
benefit liability (0.08) (0.08)
(i) Fair value gains on equity ) ) B
instruments through OCI 22.29 22.29
(iii) Income tax effect on above (5.73) - - - (5.73)
Total other comprehensive income 16.48 - - - 16.48
Total comprehensive income for the 480.88 0.05 (0.71) i 480.22

year

i) The impact of the above merger on the previously reported statement of cashflows for the year ended
March 31, 2023 is as follows:

. Sundram Sunfast TVS .TVS - . Year ended

Particulars Fasteners Lo Engineering Adjustments

.. Limited .. March 31, 2023

Limited Limited

Cashflows from operating activities 394.09 (0.01) (0.66) 2.53 395.95
Cashflows used in investing activities (206.15) - (1.10) (0.16) (207.41)
Cashflows from financing activities (170.99) - 2.37 (2.37) (170.99)
Total 16.95 (0.01) 0.61 0.00 17.55
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40

Leases
The Company has taken various premises including godowns, offices, flats, machinery and other assets under lease
for which lease agreements are generally cancellable in nature and are renewable by mutual consent on agreed upon

terms.

The following are the disclosures that has been made pursuant to Ind AS 116 requirements:

(i) Right-of-use assets

Refer note 5 (d) for detailed break-up of right-of-use assets and amortisation thereon.

(i) Lease liabilities

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

41

42

43

Not later than one year 2.38 2.84

Later than one year and not later than five years 6.03 713

More than five years - 0.86

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 8.41 10.83

Lease liabilities

Current 1.77 2.10

Non-current 5.18 6.42
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss M arzﬁa;f';g;g Ma th? gq e;ggg

Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.85 1.06

Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5(d)) 2.93 3.90

Expenses relating to short-term leases 11.16 8.15
(iv) Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows from financing

activities

Principal payment of lease liabilities 2.43 4.46

Segment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, segment information with respect to geographic segment has been provided in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and therefore no separate disclosures have been given in these
standalone financial statements.

Transfer Pricing

Management believes that the Company’s international transactions with related parties continue to be at arm’s length
and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on these financial statements, particularly on amount
of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Events after the reporting period
The Board of Directors of the Company has declared interim dividend in its meeting held on May 22, 2024 as disclosed
under note 14B(b).

The notes from 1 to 43 are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Sundram Fasteners Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sundram Fasteners Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information in which are included the separate financial statements of erstwhile Sunfast TVS Limited (‘STL’)
and TVS Engineering Limited (‘TEL’) for the year ended 31 March 2024 pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation of STL
and TEL with the Holding Company, approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated 19 February
2024 with the appointed date of 01 April 2023. The financial statements of STL and TEL (‘components’) for the year ended
31 March 2024 have been audited by another firm of chartered accountants (‘other auditor’). (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited
by the other auditors and the reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements of components as were audited
by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of
reports of the other auditors referred to in the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries audited by them, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Opinion section, we have determined matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Taxation and contingent liability related matters
Refer Notes 3, 18 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Determination of tax provisions and assessment of contingent
liabilities involves judgment with respect to various tax positions
on deductibility of transactions, interpretation of laws and
regulations etc. Judgment is also required in assessing the range
of possible outcomes for these matters.

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the following
key audit procedures:

* Assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls in respect of the Group’s
assessment of possible outcome of tax litigations;
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The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group makes an assessment to determine the outcome
of these matters and records an accrual or discloses this as
a contingent liability in accordance with applicable accounting
standards.

Accordingly, judgement is required in assessing the level of
provision or contingent liability in these matters and hence are
key areas of focus in our audit.

* Involved our tax specialists and evaluated and challenged
the underlying judgements used in respect of estimation of
provisions, exposures and contingencies

* Considered third party advice received by the Group where
applicable, status of recent and current tax assessments,
outcome of previous claims, judgmental positions taken in tax
returns and developments in tax environment.

* Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures on tax provisions and
contingent liabilities made in the these financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Refer Notes 3 to 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is derived primarily from sale of automobile
parts and components (“products”). Revenue from the sale of
products is recognised upon the transfer of control of the goods

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following
key audit procedures in this area:

* Assessed the Group’s accounting policy for revenue recognition

to the customer. as per applicable accounting standards.

The Group and its external stakeholders focus on revenue as a | ©
key performance metric and the Group uses various shipment
terms across its operating markets.

Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key controls relating to revenue recognition on a sample
basis.

* Performed substantive testing of revenue transactions recorded
during the year on a sample basis by verifying the underlying
documents including sales invoice, shipping documents and
proof of deliveries.

Revenue recognition has been identified as a key audit matter

as there could be an incentive or external pressures to meet

expectations resulting in revenue being overstated or recognized

before control has been transferred.

¢ Tested samples of revenue transactions recorded closer to
the year-end by verifying underlying documents, to assess
the accuracy of the period in which revenue was recognized.

¢ Tested non-standard manual journal entries posted to revenue.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed and based on the audit reports of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
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the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this
assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities and components included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other matters

a. We did not audit the separate financial statements of the components included in the standalone financial statements
of the Holding company whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 12.77
crores as at 31 March 2024, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 14.18 crores and net cash flows
(before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 0.95 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements. These separate financial statements of the components have been audited by
the other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these components, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid components is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

b. We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 860.25 crores as at 31 March 2024, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments)
of Rs. 608.01 crores and net cash outflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 14.85 crores for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above mattes with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and components as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors
on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and components, as were audited by other auditors, as noted in
the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
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The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 01 April 2024
and 04 April 2024 as on taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and components, as noted in the “Other Matters” :

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(i) The management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies shall directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements/financial information have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or the
other auditors notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.
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C.

e. The second interim dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend. The first
interim dividend declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year and until the date of this audit report
is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act. The second interim dividend declared by the Holding Company until
the date of this audit report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of
dividend. However, the said dividend was not paid on the date of this audit report.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the auditor of the components and
subsidiaries, the Holding Company, its components and subsidiary companies, have used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the audit trail was not enabled
(i) in case of the Holding Company, its components and one subsidiary at the database level to log any direct data
changes; (ii) in case of two subsidiaries, at the application layer of the accounting software for part of the year; (iii)
in case of one subsidiary at the application level for certain fields / tables relating to all the significant processes
and (iv) in case of the Holding Company and its components at the application layer of the accounting software
for direct data changes to tables performed by users having privileged access. Further, where audit trail (edit log)
facility was enabled and operated throughout the year, we and the auditor of such components and subsidiaries
did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of the statutory
auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid/
payable during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies to its directors is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director by the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No.: 203491

ICAI UDIN: 24203491BKCQPP3795

Place : Chennai
Date : 22 May, 2024
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Chartered Accountants Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, India
Telephone: +91 44 4608 3100

Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies incorporated in India
and included in the consolidated financial statemens, have unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks
given by the respective auditors in their reports under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO) :

Holding Company/ Clause number of the
Sr. No Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary/JV/ (.:ARO report which
. is unfavourable or
Associate ier

qualified or adverse

1 Sundram Fasteners Investments | U65991TN1992PLC022618 Subsidiary Clause (i)(c)

Limited
2 | TVS Upasana Limited U65991TN1992PLC022619 Subsidiary Clause (i)(c)

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No.: 203491

ICAI UDIN: 24203491BKCQPP3795

Place : Chennai
Date : 22 May, 2024
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BSR &Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

KRM Tower, 1%t & 2" Floors, No. 1, Harrington Road,
Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, India

Telephone: +91 44 4608 3100

Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements of Sundram Fasteners

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

of even date)
Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Sundram Fasteners Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company in which are included internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of erstwhile Sunfast
TVS Limited (‘STL’) and TVS Engineering Limited (‘TEL’) for
the year ended 31 March 2024 pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation of the components with the Holding Company,
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide its
order dated 19 February 2024 with the appointed date of 01
April 2023. and such companies incorporated in India under
the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports
on internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of subsidiary companies and components, as
were audited by the other auditors, the Holding Company
including the component and such companies incorporated
in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by such companies
considering the essential components of such internal
controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities
for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s Management and the Board of
Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the respective company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the
relevant subsidiary companies and components, in terms of
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their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference
to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Place : Chennai
Date : 22 May, 2024

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to two subsidiary companies which are companies
incorporated in India, and components is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such components
and companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

S Sethuraman

Partner

Membership No.: 203491

ICAI UDIN: 24203491BKCQPP3795
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5(a 2,000.52 1,923.16
Capital work-in-progress 5(b 163.86 64.39
Investment property 5(c 2.68 2.68
Right-of-use assets 5(d 89.85 96.76
Goodwill 5 (e) 3.34 3.34
Other intangible assets 5 (e) 2.93 2.98
Intangible assets under development 5 (f) 0.25 0.55
Financial assets
- Investments 6A 130.97 98.79
- Loans 7 1.19 1.22
- Other financial assets 8 47.71 38.56
Deferred tax assets, net 18 0.58 0.12
Other tax assets, net 9 54.92 66.10
Other non-current assets 10 98.46 77.09
Total non-current assets 2,597.26 2,375.74
Current assets
Inventories 11 947.77 923.42
Financial assets
- Investments 6B 6.31 3.51
- Trade receivables 12 1,247.25 1,144.57
- Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) 22.51 57.53
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 (b) 12.81 29.45
- Loans 7 0.62 0.51
- Other financial assets 8 60.07 4.28
Other tax assets, net 9 4.86 5.05
Other current assets 10 89.07 80.33
Total current assets 2,391.27 2,248.65
Total assets 4,988.53 4,624.39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14A 21.01 21.01
Other equity 3.399.72 2,994.70
Total equity attributable to equity owners of the company 3,420.73 3,015.71
Non-controlling interest 20.6 18.36
Total equity 3,441.33 3,034.07
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 81.24 140.85
- Lease liabilities 16 13.92 18.83
- Other financial liabilities 21 5.84 2.64
Provisions 17 12.42 11.46
Deferred tax liabilities, net 18 145.63 136.83
Other tax liabilities, net 19 5.34 6.99
Total non-current liabilities 264.39 317.60
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 546.48 565.18
- Lease liabilities 16 4.90 5.43
- Trade payables 20
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 88.59 65.34
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 450.26 475.80
- Other financial liabilities 21 102.59 80.31
Other current liabilities 22 28.58 26.78
Provisions 17 25.21 22.82
Current tax liabilities, net 19 36.20 31.06
Total current liabilities 1,282.81 1,272.72
Total liabilities 1.547.20 1,590.32
Total equity and liabilities 4,988.53 4,624.39
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
forBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 101248W/W-100022
ARATHI KRISHNA
ISD;’ HEE;'URAMAN Managing Director
Membership No.: 203491 (DIN: 00517456)
R DILIP KUMAR
Place : Chennai Chief Financial Officer

Date : May 22, 2024 (DIN: 00240372)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman

(DIN: 00046919)
ARUNDATHI KRISHNA
Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 23 5,666.31 5,662.75
Other income 24 54.16 44.85
Total income 5,720.47 5,707.60
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 2,372.15 2,554.87
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 26 (15.33) (65.29)
Employee benefits expense 27 553.72 518.90
Finance costs 28 31.99 39.69
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 213.33 197.97
Other expenses 30 1,869.07 1,800.80
Total expenses 5,024.93 5,046.94
Profit before tax 695.54 660.66
Tax expense 18
a) Current tax 165.38 155.78
b) Deferred tax 4.52 4.53
Total tax expense 169.90 160.31
Profit for the year 525.64 500.35
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement (losses) / gains on defined benefit liability (2.34) 0.39
(ii) Fair value gains on equity instruments 19.47 22.29
(iii) Income tax effect on above (3.62) (5.85)
13.51 16.83
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (9.72) 0.24
(i) Income tax effect on above - -
(9.72) 0.24
Total other comprehensive income 3.79 17.07
Total comprehensive income for the year 529.43 517.42
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 521.68 494.69
Non-controlling interest 3.96 5.66
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3.95 16.87
Non-controlling interest (0.16) 0.20
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 525.63 511.56
Non-controlling interest 3.80 5.86
Earnings per equity share 31
Basic (in ) 24.83 23.54
Diluted (in ) 24.83 23.54
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
forBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

ARATHI KRISHNA
S SETHURAMAN Managing Director
Partner

(DIN: 00517456)

R DILIP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00240372)

Membership No.: 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
(DIN: 00046919)

ARUNDATHI KRISHNA

Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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Sundram Fasteners Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

A. Equity share capital Note Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 14A 21.01
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 21.01
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 21.01
Balance as at April 1, 2022 14A 21.01
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 21.01
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 21.01
B. Other equity
Attributable to owners of the company
Items of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive income
Items that | Items that
will not be will be Non-
Particulars rec|a5f§ified reclas:ified Total other | controlling Total
General Special Retained | ' pll'g;;and to p:g;; and | equity interest
reserve reserve earnings - -
Fair Foreign
valuation currency
of equity | translation
instruments |  reserve
Balances as at April 1,2023 2,444.65 0.87 410.85 65.62 2.1 2,994.70 18.36 3,013.06
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - - - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 2,444.65 0.87 410.85 65.62 2.1 2,994.70 18.36 3,013.06
Profit for the year - - 521.68 - - 521.68 3.96 525.64
Other comprehensive income for the year - (1.59) 15.26 9.72) 3.95 (0.16) 3.79
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 520.09 15.26 9.72) 525.63 3.80 529.43
Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends (refer note 14B) (120.61) (120.61) (1.56) (122.17)
Total transactions with owners of the Company - (120.61) (120.61) (1.56) (122.17)
Transfer from retained earnings 200.00 (200.00) - -
Other adjustments - - - - - - - -
Balances as at March 31, 2024 2,644.65 0.87 610.33 80.88 62.99 3,399.72 20.60 3,420.32
Balances as at April 1, 2022 2,269.65 0.88 208.21 49.06 7247 2,600.27 14.92 2,615.19
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - - - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 2,269.65 0.88 208.21 49.06 72.47 2,600.27 14.92 2,615.19
Profit for the year - - 494.69 - - 494.69 5.66 500.35
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.07 16.56 0.24 16.87 0.20 17.07
Total comprehensive income for the year - 494.76 16.56 0.24 511.56 5.86 517.42
Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends (refer note 14B) (117.12) (117.12) (242) (119.54)
Total transactions with owners of the Company - - (117.12) (117.12) (2.42) (119.54)
Transfer from retained eamings 175.00 - (175.00) - - -
Other adjustments - (0.01) - - - (0.01) - (0.01)
Balances as at March 31, 2023 2,444.65 0.87 410.85 65.62 72.71 2,994.70 18.36 3,013.06
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

S SETHURAMAN
Partner
Membership No.: 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : May 22, 2024

ARATHI KRISHNA
Managing Director
(DIN: 00517456)

R DILIP KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00240372)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman
(DIN: 00046919)

ARUNDATHI KRISHNA

Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Year ended Year ended

Note  \iarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 695.54 660.66
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 205.93 191.14
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 29 7.40 6.83
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss, net (2.76) 2.48
Mark to market loss on derivative instruments 0.19 0.35
Finance costs 28 31.99 39.69
Interest income 24 (4.96) (4.50)
Dividend income 24 (0.88) (0.76)
Loss / (profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment, net 2.27 (7.14)
Reversal of provision no longer required - (0.14)
Gain on sale of investments 24 (1.78) (0.32)
Ilz)iisr value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or o4 (2.79) (0.50)
Allowance / (reversal) of loss towards trade receivables 0.22 (1.90)
Operating profit before working capital changes 930.37 885.89
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories (27.94) (102.56)
Increase in financial assets (156.98) (139.28)
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (17.42) 15.55
Increase / (decrease) in financial liabilities 11.36 (31.70)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 0.90 (1.28)
Cash generated from operating activities 740.29 626.62
Income taxes paid, net (151.57) (157.66)
Net cash from operating activities 588.72 468.96
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets (including capital work-in-progress, capital advances and (399.54) (238.53)
retention payable)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.57 10.14
Acquisition of investments (1,868.95) (1,335.19)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,858.02 1,332.82
?;r::oﬁﬁgsits made with maturity more than 3 months but less than (14.09) (26.60)
?;r::odnetﬁgsits redeemed with maturity more than 3 months but less than 30.58 18.41
Dividend received 0.75 0.76
Interest received 4.00 3.96
Net cash used in investing activities (387.66) (234.23)
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Sundram Fasteners Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payment of lease liabilities (8.09) (7.32)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 467.10 552.01
Repayment of short-term borrowings (446.81) (494.85)
Repayment of long-term borrowings (93.58) (112.41)
Dividend paid (122.17) (119.54)
Interest paid (31.54) (32.15)
Net cash used in financing activities (235.09) (214.26)
D. Net cash flows during the year (A+B+C) (34.03) 20.47
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 57.53 36.47
F. E‘:teai(gno:jﬁzr;i;ge differences on cash and cash equivalents held in (0.99) 059
G. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E+F) 22.51 57.53
Reconciliation of the cash and cash equivalents as per the cash
flow statement
Balances with banks in current accounts 13 (a) 22.24 49.36
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 13 (a) 0.05 0.29
Cash on hand 13 (a) 0.22 7.88
22.51 57.53
Material accounting policies 3and 4

The notes from 1 to 42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
forBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 101248W/W-100022
ARATHI KRISHNA
Isjas ”E;(I;I;IURAMAN Managing Director
Membership No.: 203491 (DIN: 00517456)
R DILIP KUMAR
Place : Chennai Chief Financial Officer

Date : May 22, 2024 (DIN: 00240372)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUNDRAM FASTENERS LIMITED
(CIN: L35999TN1962PLC004943)

SURESH KRISHNA
Chairman

(DIN: 00046919)
ARUNDATHI KRISHNA
Joint Managing Director
(DIN: 00270935)

G ANAND BABU
Senior Manager - Finance & Company Secretary
(ACS Membership No: A19848)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

©)

2.2

2.3

Corporate information

Sundram Fasteners Limited (‘the Company / the
parent company’) is a public limited company
domiciled in India, with its registered office situated
at No. 98-A, VIl Floor, Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai,
Mylapore, Chennai 600004. The Company has been
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 and its equity shares are listed on the
National Stock Exchange (‘NSE’) and the Bombay
Stock Exchange (‘BSE’) in India. These consolidated
financial statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (referred to collectively as ‘the Group’).
The Group is primarily engaged in manufacture
and sale of bolts and nuts, water pumps, sintered
products, cold extruded components, hot and warm
forged parts, radiator caps and other parts which have
applications mainly in automobile industry.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024 (including comparatives) are
approved for issue by the Board on May 22, 2024.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included
in notes 3 and 4.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Indian Rupees which is also the Group’s functional
currency. All amounts have been presented in crores
of Indian Rupees (Rs.), except share data and as
otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following items:

Items

Measurement basis

Certain financial assets
and liabilities

Fair value

Net defined benefit
asset/ liability

Fair value of plan assets less present
value of defined benefit obligations

24

2.5

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 3(7) and 39: Leases - whether an
arrangement contains a lease;

- Note 3(8) and 35: Financial instruments:
Classification and measurement

Assumptions and estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that
have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses is mentioned below. Actual results may be
different from these estimates.

- Note 3(3), 3(4) and 3(5): Useful lives of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment property

- Note 3(8), 3(9), 6, 12 and 35: Impairment test
on financial and non-financial assets; key
assumptions underlying recoverable amounts;

- Note 3(10), 3(12), 17(b), 18 and 35:
recognition and measurement of provisions
and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources including provision for income taxes
and related contingencies

- Note 17(a): measurement of defined benefit
obligation; key actuarial assumptions.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.
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Sundram Fasteners Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

2.6.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data as
far as possible. The inputs used to measure the fair
value of assets or liabilities fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy. Accordingly, the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the low level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

Management uses various valuation techniques to
determine fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the
instrument. Management based on its assumptions
on observable data as far as possible but where
it not available, the management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date
(also refer note 35). The Group recognises transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end
of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 1l to
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Material accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared applying material accounting policies and
measurement bases summarized below.

Basis of consolidation
Business combinations

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts
for business combinations using the acquisition

method when control is transferred to the Group.
The consideration transferred for the business
combination is generally measured at fair value as at
the date the control is acquired (acquisition date), as
are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill
that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any
gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there
exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as resulting in
a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised
directly in equity as capital reserve. Transaction costs
are expensed as incurred, except to the extent related
to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to
pay contingent consideration that meets the definition
of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then
it is not re-measured subsequently and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration is re-measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognised in profit or
loss.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, any
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or
OCl, as appropriate.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses
in which all the combining entities or businesses are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the business combination and
where that control is not transitory are accounted for
as per the pooling of interest method. The business
combination is accounted for as if the business
combination had occurred at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented or, if later,
at the date that common control was established;
for this purpose, comparatives are revised. The
assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at
their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves
is preserved, and they appear in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in the same form
in which they appeared in the financial statements of
the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between
the consideration and the amount of share capital of
the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

2.1

i. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date
on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Consolidation procedure followed is as under:

ltems of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries are combined like to like basis. For this
purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are
based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities
recognized in the consolidated financial statements
at the acquisition date.

ii. Non-controlling interests (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

iii. Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components
of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the
control is lost.

iv. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transactions gain or loss) arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated.

Revenue recognition

The Group generates revenue primarily from
manufacture and sale of automotive parts and
components. The Group also earns revenue from
rendering of services.

Sale of products:

Revenue is recognised when a promise in a customer
contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied

2.2

23

by transferring control over the promised goods to the
customer. Control over a promised good refers to the
ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits from, those goods. Control
is usually transferred upon shipment, delivery to,
upon receipt of goods by the customer, in accordance
with the individual delivery and acceptance terms
agreed with the customers. The amount of revenue
to be recognized (transaction price) is based on the
consideration expected to be received in exchange for
goods, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties such as goods and services tax or other taxes
directly linked to sales. If a contract contains more
than one performance obligation, the transaction price
is allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. Revenue
from product sales are recorded net of allowances
for estimated rebates, cash discounts and estimates
of product returns, all of which are established at the
time of sale.

Revenue from rendering of services:

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized
over time as services are recognised in an amount
that reflects the consideration expected to be received
in exchange for those services.

Interest and dividend income:

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit
and loss on the date on which the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the
effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset;
or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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3.1

Rental income:

The Group earns rental income from operating leases
of its investment property (also refer note 5 (c)).
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognised as asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with an item will flow to the Group and cost of such
item can be measured reliably.

Recognition and measurement:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Items of
property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

» purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and
service tax, value added tax), after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

» any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

» The cost of a self-constructed item of property,
plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain/ loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment at April
01, 2016, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS,
was determined with reference to its carrying value
recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost),
as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

3.2

3.3

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation:

a. Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line
basis, over useful life of buildings and other
equipment as prescribed under Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of certain
assets, where useful life is different from those
prescribed under Schedule I1.

b. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
charged over the estimated useful life of the asset
or part of the asset (after considering double/triple
shifts) as evaluated on technical assessment and
in accordance with Part A of Schedule 1l to the
Companies Act, 2013 on a straight-line basis.

c. The estimated useful life of the property, plant and
equipment on technical assessment followed by
the Group is furnished below:

Management estimate of useful life
Asset category .
(in years)
Buildings 3-60
Plant and machinery 8-30
Furniture and fixtures 8-10
Office equipment 3-10
Vehicles 8-10

4.

d. The residual value for all the above assets are
retained at 5% of the cost.

e. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted if necessary, for each reporting
period.

f.  On property, plant and equipment added/
disposed off during the year, depreciation is
charged on pro-rata basis for the period for which
the asset was purchased and used.

Intangible assets and research and development
expenditure

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost.
Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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(All amounts are in crores of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill is recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

Amortisation:

Intangible assets comprising of Computer software
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years. Amortisation
method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at the end of each financial year and adjusted if
necessary, for each reporting period. Goodwill is not
amortised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure are mainly on research activities and the
same is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
as incurred.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an
investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Investment property is derecognised either when
it has been disposed of or when it is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal of investment property (calculated as the
difference between the net proceeds from disposal
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group has depreciated investment property
as evaluated on technical assessment and in
accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013, on a straight-line basis. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

The fair values of investment property is disclosed
in the notes. Fair values is determined by an

7.2

independent valuer who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the
investment property being valued.

Transfers to (or from) investment property are
made only when there is a change in use. Transfers
between investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying
amount of the property transferred and they do not
change the cost of that property for measurement or
disclosure purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted average and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production
or conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their present location and condition.
In the case of raw materials and stock-in-trade,
cost comprises of cost of purchase. In the case of
finished goods and work in progress, cost includes
an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished goods. Raw materials, components
and other supplies held for use in the production
of finished products are not written down below
cost except in cases when a decline in the price
of materials indicates that the cost of the finished
products shall exceed the net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is
made on an item-by-item basis.

Leases
Assets held under leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Assets taken on lease

At commencement or on modification of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of its relative standalone
prices.
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The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise
a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use
asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing
rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to
reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee; and

- exercise price under a purchase option that
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change

7.3
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in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option
or if there is a revised in —substance fixed lease
payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the
statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately on the face of the balance sheet.

Short-term leases

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases.
Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Assets leased out

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease,
the Group makes an overall assessment of whether
the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part
of this assessment, the Group considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major
part of the economic life of the asset.

The Group recognises lease payments received
under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘Other income’.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement:

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they
are originated. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument
and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value
through profit and loss which are measured initially
at fair value.

The ‘trade payable’ is in respect of the amount due
on account of goods purchased in the normal course
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8.2
8.2.1

of business. They are recognised at their transaction
and services availed value if the transaction does not
contain significant financing component.

Financial assets:

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified and measured based
on the entity’s business model for managing financial
asset and contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial asset at:

a. Those measured at amortised cost.

b. Those to be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) and;

c. Those to be measured at fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL)

a. Financial assets at amortised cost

Includes assets that are held within a business
model where objective is to hold financial assets
to collect contractual cash flows and contractual
terms gives rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal amount outstanding.

These assets are measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses, if any and impairment are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

b. Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income

Includes assets that are held within a business
model where objective is both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets along with contractual terms giving
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding. The Group has
made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income changes in fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument that is not
held for trading. This selection is made on an
instrument-by instrument basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Dividends are recognised as income
in the statement of profit and loss unless it
clearly represents a recovery of part of cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are

recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss.

The fair values of financial assets in this category
are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where
no active market exists.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

c. Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets that are designated at FVTPL upon
initial recognition and financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI.
All derivative financial instruments fall into this
category, except for those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, for which the
hedge accounting requirements apply. Assets
in this category are measured at fair value with
gains or losses recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. The fair values of financial assets
in this category are determined by reference to
active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists.

The loss allowance in respect of FVTPL at
each reporting period is evaluated based on
expected credit losses for next 12 months and
credit risk exposure. The Group also measures
loss allowance for financial instrument at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
The allowance shall be recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

8.2.2 Derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for at
FVTPL except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships, which
require a specific accounting treatment. To qualify
for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship
must meet several strict conditions with respect
to documentation, probability of occurrence of the
hedged transaction and hedge effectiveness. These
arrangements have been entered into to mitigate
currency exchange risk arising from certain legally
binding sales and purchase orders denominated in
foreign currency. For the reporting periods under
review, the Group has not designated any forward
currency contracts as hedging instruments.
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8.3
8.3.1

8.3.2

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when;

a. The Group has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial asset or

b. The Group retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
expects a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients.

Wh